
SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT 
300 Lakeside Drive, P. 0. Box 12688, Oakland, CA 94604-2688 

BOARD MEETING AGENDA 
January 9, 2020 

9:00 a.m. 

A regular meeting of the Board of Directors will be held at 9:00 a.m. on Thursday, January 9, 2020, in 
the BART Board Room, 2040 Webster Street, Oakland, California. 

Members of the public may address the Board of Directors regarding any matter on this agenda. 
Please complete a "Request to Address the Board" form (available at the entrance to the Board Room) 
and hand it to the Secretary before the item is considered by the Board. If you wish to discuss a matter 
that is not on the agenda during a regular meeting, you may do so under Public Comment. 

Any action requiring more than a majority vote for passage will be so noted. 

Items placed under "consent calendar" are considered routine and will be received, enacted, approved, 
or adopted by one motion unless a request for removal for discussion or explanation is received from a 
Director or from a member of the audience. 

Please refrain from wearing scented products (perfume, cologne, after-shave, etc.) to these meetings, as 
there may be people in attendance susceptible to environmental illnesses. 

BART provides service/accommodations upon request to persons with disabilities and individuals who 
are limited English proficient who wish to address BART Board matters. A request must be made 
within one and five days in advance of Board meetings, depending on the service requested. Please 
contact the Office of the District Secretary at 510-464-6083 for information. 

Rules governing the participation of the public at meetings of the Board of Directors and Standing 
Committees are available for review on the District's website (http://www.bart.gov/about/bod), in the 
BART Board Room, and upon request, in person or via mail. 

Meeting notices and agendas are available for review on the District's website 
(http://www.bart.gov/about/bod/meetings.aspx); at bart.legistar.com; and via email 
(https://public.govdelivery.com/accounts/CATRANBART/subscriber/new?topic id=CATRANBART 
1904) or via regular mail upon request submitted to the District Secretary. Complete agenda packets 
(in PDF format) are available for review on the District's website and bart.legistar.com no later than 48 
hours in advance of the meeting. 

Please submit your requests to the District Secretary via email to BoardofDirectors@bart.gov; in 
person or U.S. mail at 300 Lakeside Drive, 23rd Floor, Oakland, CA 94612; fax 510-464-6011; or 
telephone 510-464-6083. 

Patricia K. Williams 
District Secretary 



Regular Meeting of the 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

The purpose of the Board Meeting is to consider and take such action as the Board may desire 
in connection with: 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

A. Roll Call. 
B. Pledge of Allegiance. 
C. Introduction of Special Guests. 

2. CONSENT CALENDAR 

A. Approval of Minutes of the Meetings of December 5, 2019 and 
December 19, 2019.* Board requested to authorize. 

B. 2020 Organization of Committees and Special Appointments.* 
Board requested to ratify. 

C. BART Accessibility Task Force (BATF) Membership Appointment.* 
Board requested to authorize. 

D. Award oflnvitation for Bid No. 9067A, Automated External Defibrillator 
(AED) Devices.* Board requested to authorize. 

E. Fiscal Year 2020 First Quarter Financial Report.* For information. 

3. PUBLIC COMMENT- 15 Minutes 
(An opportunity for members of the public to address the Board of Directors on matters under 
their jurisdiction and not on the agenda. An additional period for Public Comment is provided at 
the end of the Meeting.) 

4. ADMINISTRATION ITEMS 
Director Simon, Chairperson 

A. Award of Digital Railway' s Master Program License Agreement 
(MPLA), with Mobilitie Services, LLC. * Board requested to authorize. 

5. ENGINEERING AND OPERATIONS ITEMS 
Director Foley, Chairperson 

A. Fiscal Year 2019 Quality of Life Reserve Expenditure Plan.* 
Board requested to authorize. 

B. Award of Contract No. 15EI-181 , Willow Pass Road High Voltage 
Substation (CWS) Transformer Replacement Project.* 
Board requested to authorize. 

C. Award of Contract No. 15II-120A, Station Emergency Lighting.* 
Board requested to authorize. 

* Attachment available 2 of3 



D. Award of Contracts for Communications Based Train Control.* 
• Contract No. 49GH-110, Communications Based Train 

Control. 
• Contract No. 49GH-120, Train Control Performance Support 

Services. 
Board requested to authorize. 

6. PLANNING, PUBLIC AFFAIRS, ACCESS, AND LEGISLATION ITEMS 
Director Raburn, Chairperson 

A. Memorandum of Understanding for Transit Oriented Development 
at Ashby and North Berkeley Stations.* Board requested to authorize. 

B. Update on El Cerrito Plaza Transit Oriented Development.* 
For information. 

C. Update on BART and Valley Transportation Authority Phase I.* 
For information. 

7. GENERAL MANAGER'S REPORT 

A. Report of Activities, including Updates of Operational, Administrative, 
and Roll Call for Introductions Items. 

8. BOARD MATTERS 

A. Amendment to Consent Calendar Guidelines.* 
(President Simon's request) Board requested to adopt. 

B. Board Member Reports. 
(Board member reports as required by Government Code Section 53232.3(d) are 
available through the Office of the District Secretary. An opportunity for Board 
members to report on their District activities and observations since last Board Meeting.) 

C. Roll Call for Introductions. 
(An opportunity for Board members to introduce a matter for consideration at a future 
Committee or Board Meeting or to request District staff to prepare items or reports.) 

D. In Memoriam. 
(An opportunity for Board members to introduce individuals to be commemorated.) 

9. PUBLIC COMMENT 
(An opportunity for members of the public to address the Board of Directors on matters under 
their jurisdiction and not on the agenda.) 

* Attachment available 3 of3 



SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT 
300 Lakeside Drive, P.O. Box 12688, Oakland, CA 94604-2688 

Board of Directors 
Minutes of the 1,853rd Meeting 

December 5, 2019 

DRAFT 

A regular meeting of the Board of Directors was held on December 5, 2019, convening at 9:01 
a.m. in the BART Board Room, 2040 Webster Street, Oakland, California. President Dufty 
presided; Patricia K. Williams, District Secretary. 

Present: Directors Ames, Foley, Li, McPartland, Raburn and Dufty. 

Absent: Director Saltzman. Directors Allen and Simon entered the Meeting later. 

Consent Calendar items brought before the Board were: 

1. Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) Exchange Account Withdrawal for 
Expansion Rail Cars Procurement. 

2. Resolution Fixing the Non California Public Retirement System (CalPERS) Medical Plan 
Structure and Rates for Calendar Year 2020. 

3. Agreement between Capitol Corridor Joint Powers Authority and San Francisco Bay Area 
Rapid Transit District for Administrative Support. 

4. Award oflnvitation for Bid No. 9068, 750 kcmil Direct Current (DC) Power Cables. 

5. Award oflnvitation for Bid No. 9076, Bearing Assembly, Truck Journal. 

6. Expansion of National Association of State Procurement Officials Value Point Purchase 
Program for Parts and Supplies. 

Director Raburn made the following motions as a unit. Director McPartland seconded the motions, 
which carried by unanimous electronic vote. Ayes: 6 - Directors Ames, Foley, Li, McPartland, 
Raburn, and Dufty. Noes: 0. Absent: 3 - Directors Allen, Saltzman, and Simon. 

1. That the withdrawal of up to $18,000,000.00 from the BART Car Replacement Funding 
Exchange Account to fund the purchase of railcars under the Transbay Corridor Core 
Capacity Project, be formally approved. 

2. That Resolution No. 5430, In the Matter of the Non-CalPERS Medical Plan Plan Structure 
and Rates For Calendar Year 2020, be adopted. .. 

3. That the General Manager be authorized to execute an Agreement between the Capitol 
Corridor Joint Powers Authority and the San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District 
for Administrative Support for a consecutive five-year term through February 19, 2025 

-1-



DRAFT 

under generally the same terms as the current agreement, subject to approval of the 
General Counsel. 

4. That the General Manager be authorized to award Invitation for Bid No. 9068, for 750 
kcmil DC Power Cable for Traction Power DC Cable Replacement Projects to 
PRYSMIAN CABLES & SYSTEMS, North Dighton, MA, for an amount of $666,803.20 
(includes all applicable taxes) pursuant to notification to be issued by the General 
Manager, subject to compliance with the District's Protest Procedures and the Federal 
Transit Administration's (FTA) requirements related to protests. 

5. That the General Manager be authorized to award Invitation for Bid No. 9076, for the 
purchase of Bearing Assembly, Truck Journal, to Jamaica Bearing for the Bid price of 
$516,702 including tax, pursuant to notification to be issued by the General Manager, 
subject to compliance with the District's Protest Procedures. 

(The foregoing two motions were made on the basis of analysis by the staff and 
certification by the Controller/Treasurer that funds are available for this purpose.) 

6. That the General Manager be authorized to utilize the National Association of State 
Procurement Official's (NASPO) ValuePoint Cooperative Purchasing Organization to 
make purchases from the Facilities Maintenance and Repair Operations (MRO) and 
Industrial Supply contract and the Automotive Original Equipment Manufacturer 
(OEM)/ Aftermarket contract, until such time that the State of California ceases these or 
subsequent contracts, subject to the availability of funding. 

Consent Calendar report brought before the Board was: 

1. Independent Auditor's Reports on the Basic Financial Statements and Internal Control for 
the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019. ' 

President Dufty called for Public Comment. No comments were received. 

Director Allen entered the Meeting. 

Director Simon entered the Meeting. 

President Dufty brought the matter of Independent Police Auditor's Report before the Board. Mr. 
Russell Bloom, Independent Police Auditor, presented the report. 

Mr. Bloom introduced Ms. Gia Irlando, Board Member for the National Association for Civilian 
Oversight of Law Enforcement (NACOLE). 

Director Ames requested information on de-escalation training for police officers. 

President Dufty asked how training is provided to police officers and about assessments for the 
additional training. 

-2-



DRAFT 

Director McPartland welcomed Ms. Irlando and asked for clarification of education efforts. Ms. 
Irlando responded to Director McPartland' s question. 

President Dufty commented on developing a plan to approach young people as part of an outreach 
program and on Board Members' involvement in outreach efforts. 

Director Raburn expressed support for the awareness survey and appreciation for Mr. Bloom' s 
leadership within NACOLE. He also commented on the NACOLE meeting held at BART and 
asked Ms. Irlando to discuss mediation practices in Denver, CO. Ms. Irlando responded to Director 
Raburn' s request. Director Raburn expressed appreciation for Ms. Irlando ' s work with bridging 
the gap between cops and kids, and he commented on BART Police Department' s bake sale 
fundraiser for the Shop with a Cop program. 

Director Simon, Chairperson of the Administration Committee, had no report. 

Director Foley, Chairperson of the Engineering and Operations Committee, brought the matter of 
Award of Contract No. 54RR-270, Richmond Yard Fire Protection, before the Board. Mr. Samuel 
Hoffman, Principal Mechanical Engineer, Maintenance and Engineering, presented the item. 

Director McPartland moved that the General Manager be authorized to award Contract No. 54RR-
270 to DMZ Builders for Richmond Yard Fire Protection in the amount of$4,467,950.00, pursuant 
to notification to be issued by the General Manager and subject to compliance with the District' s 
Protest Procedures. Director Raburn seconded the motion and commented on the Minority 
Business Enterprise (MBE) and Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) percentages received 
on the contract. The motion brought by Director McPartland and seconded by Director Raburn 
carried by unanimous electronic vote. Ayes - 8: Directors Allen, Ames, Foley, Li, McPartland, 
Raburn, Simon, and Dufty. Noes - 0. Absent - 1: Director Saltzman. 

Director Foley brought the matter of Change Orders to Contract No. 09AU-120, BART Earthquake 
Safety Program Transbay Tube (TBT) Internal Retrofit before the Board. Mr. Zecharias Amare, 
Group Manager Capital Projects; Mr. Carl Holmes, Assistant General Manager, Design and 
Construction; and Ms. Tamar Allen, Assistant General Manager, Operations, presented the item. 

Director Raburn asked whether the item had been presented to the Earthquake Safety Program 
Citizens' Oversight Committee. 

Director Allen asked for additional information regarding the $8,000,000.00 cost increase and for 
clarification of the original contract requirements. 

Director McPartland commented on the justification for the Change Order No. 114 Part 01: 
Impacts from Rule Changes to Contract No. 09AU-120. 

John Arantes addressed the Board. 

Director Foley asked whether the work has previously been performed by District staff and about 
the duration of the expected need for this next phase of the project. 

-3-



DRAFT 

Director McPartland commented on the regulations that gave rise to Change Order No. 114 Part 
01 and Ms. Tamar Allen clarified Director McPartland' s comments. 

Sal Cruz addressed the Board. 

Director Simon expressed that she would like staff to discuss changes with union leaders prior to 
public meetings and include information about these discussions in Board presentations. 

Sal Cruz addressed the Board. 

John Arantes addressed the Board. 

Ms. Tamar Allen offered additional comments. 

Director McPartland asked whether the Change Order No. 114 Part 01 needed to be approved 
immediately and whether the staff can respond to the union leaders' concerns after approving the 
Change Order. 

Sal Cruz addressed the Board. 

John Arantes addressed the Board. 

Director McPartland moved that the General Manager be authorized to execute Change Order No. 
036 Part 02 : Revisions to TBT Gallery Wall Flange Plates, for an amount not to exceed 
$3,500,000; and Change Order No. 114 Part O 1: Impacts from Rule Changes, for an amount not to 
exceed $8,000,000, to Contract No. 09AU-120, BART Earthquake Safety Program TBT Internal 
Retrofit, with Shimmick/CEC Joint Venture. Director Allen seconded the motion. 

Director Raburn clarified that the funding source for this project is the Earthquake Safety Bond 
from 2004. He also commented that there is an oversight body for the Earthquake Safety Bond and 
that the funds will be spent before the project is completed. Director Raburn expressed that the 
project requires close scrutiny and that his vote in support of the motion is contingent upon 
ensuring ongoing outreach to the Earthquake Safety Program Citizens' Oversight Committee and 
labor units. 

President Dufty supported Director Raburn' s comment. 

Director Ames expressed concern regarding transparency and requested more detailed information 
about Change Orders. 

Director Foley suggested that union locals should be provided with opportunities to ask questions 
and resolve issues and he requested that staff continue lines of communication. 

The motion brought by Director McPartland and seconded by Director Allen carried by unanimous 
electronic vote. Ayes - 8: Directors Allen, Ames, Foley, Li, McPartland, Raburn, Simon, and 
Dufty. Noes - 0. Absent - 1: Director Saltzman. 

-4-



DRAFT 

Director Foley brought the matter of Quarterly Service Performance Review - First Quarter Fiscal 
Year 2020 before the Board. Ms. Tamar Allen and Interim Chief of Police Ed Alvarez presented 
the item. 

Director Simon asked questions about whether organized groups committed the thefts of mobile 
devices, how police officers are stationed at the end of the line, and the process for calling for 
police service. 

Director Li asked a question regarding insurance liability for bicycle thefts from BikeLink® 
lockers or rooms and she commented on a rider' s experience with obtaining reimbursement from 
BikeLink for a stolen bicycle. 

Director Raburn commented on the train delay data, the wayside train control system data, 
automatic fare collection (AFC) gate changes, the fencing surrounding the elevator at 12th Street 
Oakland City Center Station, the additional data regarding homelessness and customer comments 
related to train cleanliness, and asked for clarification of the data regarding employee injuries on 
trains. 

President Dufty commented on train checks and the availability of social services in local cities 
and counties and asked staff to discuss the BART Police Department's activities at the 
Embarcadero and downtown stations and the number of BART Police Officers who participate in 
issuing a single citation for fare evasion. 

Director Simon commented on a video depicting an indigent homeless man, six police officers, 
and three inspectors. 

President Dufty shared a BART employee' s recent experience in a station, and suggested he, 
Director Li, Director Simon, Chief Alvarez, and Ms. Tamar Allen meet with the new District 
Attorney for the City and County of San Francisco, Mr. Chesa Boudin, to discuss Mr. Boudin's 
philosophy and BART's challenges. President Dufty also shared that he would be attending an 
Alameda County Board of Supervisors hearing to discuss the Civil Grand Jury Report and 
available resources for BART. President Dufty asked for clarification of BART Police Officer 
retirements. 

Director Ames asked questions regarding police actions, the number of police officers who would 
respond to a "police action," the time of day when calls for service are received, automobile 
burglaries at the Hayward and South Hayward stations, and how cities are involved in addressing 
burglaries. Director Ames shared the experience of a bicycle theft victim. 

Director Allen commented on the train delay data, the status of recently hired BART Police 
Officers, and riders ' desire for an increase in police presence throughout the BART system. 

Director McPartland asked clarifying questions regarding the size of the BART police force; the 
required number of train rides for each BART Police Officer; and the arrest of the suspect who 
committed automobile burglaries on the A-Line. 

-5-



DRAFT 

Director Foley requested that reports include information about proactive changes to achieve goals 
in the next quarter and commented on reduced weekend fare and efforts to encourage ridership on 
evenings and weekends. 

President Dufty commented on the relationship between safety and increased ridership. 

Director Raburn, Chairperson of the Planning, Public Affairs, Access, and Legislation Committee, 
brought the matter of2020 Federal and State Advocacy Program before the Board, and recognized 
Ms. Emily Bacque DaSilva with CJ Lake, LLC. Ms. Amanda Cruz, Manager of Government 
Relations and Legislative Affairs; Mr. Roddrick Lee, Assistant General Manager, External Affairs; 
and Mr. Robert Powers, General Manager, presented the item. 

Ms. Bacque presented information about federal legislative activities and BART's meetings with 
legislators and the Federal Transit Administration. 

Director Li asked clarifying questions about discretionary grant programs that operate under a 
continuing resolution and funding for Better Utilizing Investment to Leverage Development 
(BUILD) grant cycles. 

Director Ames asked questions about funding for the Core Capacity grant, the strategy to secure 
the funding, the deadline for BART to receive the funding, and surface transportation funds. Direct 
Ames requested an analysis of climate-change related improvements that will be addressed by both 
administrations and commented on climate change. 

President Dufty commented on his meetings with legislators regarding the second rail crossing, 
thanked Mr. Powers for his contributions during the meetings, and recognized CJ Lake, LLC and 
Ms. Bacque for their work. 

Director Raburn expressed support for Ms. Bacque' s approach and commented on revisions to the 
Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) regarding service animal parameters. 

Ms .. Cruz presented the District's proposed federal and state advocacy goals. 

Director Ames asked clarifying questions regarding the programs for which funding would be 
pursued and the staffing levels that would be requested for these programs. Director Ames asked 
for clarification of the Critical Asset Patrol (CAP) team and the availability of funding for the CAP 
tearri. Director Ames expressed~ desire to identify funding for a more robust package and asked 
for clarification of the funding source for station hardening and fare gates. 

Director Li presented an amendment to the prepared motion to add additional language to the 
second state advocacy goal to support BAR T's discount fare program, indicating that the discount 
for the regional means-based program should increase to 50% and BART should obtain funding 
from state and regional agencies. She also noted that BART should develop discounted fare 
programs to encourage ridership and ensure that the system is affordable for those who depend on 
public transportation, and that state legislators should provide additional assistance with various 
issues. 

-6-



DRAFT 

Director Li moved that the 2020 Federal and State Legislative Advocacy Program as presented by 
staff, with the addition of enhanced discount fare programs after the second state advocacy goal, 
be approved. Director Simon seconded the amended motion. 

Director Allen commented on the proposed advocacy for planning funds, the amended motion, 
subsidizing discounts, subsidizing the cost of projects, and fare prices. 

Director Raburn commented on Assembly Bill (AB) 2923 implementation and Assemblymember 
Chiu's assistance with obtaining funding from the Metropolitan Transportation Commission 
(MTC); the District's obligations and his discussion with the former Mayor of Berkeley regarding 
Ashby Station; the allocation of funding for special districts; support for item nw:nber four of the 
proposed state advocacy goals; the California Integrated Travel Project; the FASTER Bay Area 
Act and BART's Safe Routes to BART Program; funding faregates and affordable housing; his 
experience at the ribbon-cutting event for the development at Millbrae Station; homelessness and 
providing jobs for homeless individuals; interest in reviewing the bills that BART will sponsor 
and monitor; adding Santa Clara County to the prohibition order language; and support for Director 
Li's comments and the amended motion. 

The amended motion brought by Director Li and seconded by Director Simon carried by electronic 
vote. Ayes - 7: Directors Ames, Foley, Li, McPartland, Raburn, Simon, and Dufty. Noes - I: 
Director Allen. Absent - I: Director Saltzman. 

Director Raburn brought the matter of BART and Valley Transportation Authority Operations & 
Maintenance Agreement before the Board. Mr. Carl Holmes, Ms. Bernadette Lambert, Project 
Manager, Extensions, and Ms. Pamela Herbold, Assistant General Manager, Performance and 
Budget, presented the item. 

The Board applauded staff members who had worked on the Operations & Maintenance 
Agreement. 

Mr. Holmes and Ms. Lambert continued the presentation. 

Director Ames commented on the station platform size and requested that staff provide information 
about ridership issues, including the size of the platform at Diridon Station. 

Director Ames moved that the General Manager or his designee be hereby authorized to execute 
an Operations and Maintenance Agreement between BART and the Santa Clara Valley 
Transportation Authority (VTA) for the Silicon Valley BART Extension. Director Raburn 
seconded the motion. 

Director Allen asked clarifying questions regarding the cost reimbursement agreement for the 
Extension, the allocation of fare revenue, operating costs, direct costs, indirect costs, 
reimbursement for the core system, and the cost recovery formula outlined in the Operations and 
Maintenance Agreement. 

Director McPartland exited the Meeting. 

-7-



DRAFT 

Director Allen asked for clarification of the projected estimate of the costs in the coming year 
attributed to stations located North of Santa Clara County and commented on the five-year 
assessment included in the Operations and Maintenance Agreement, the San Francisco 
International Airport extension, equity, and the previously proposed extension to Livermore. 

Director Raburn commented on scheduling an additional BART-VTAjoint meeting, the five-year 
reassessment provision included in the Operations and Maintenance Agreement, and BART staffs 
involvement in developing the Agreement. 

Director Foley asked clarifying questions regarding the stations included in the Agreement and 
loss of revenue. 

Director Ames acknowledged the comments regarding operational and capital costs and expressed 
support for an additional BART-VT A joint meeting. Director Ames commented on payment and 
ridership issues, noted that BART will have ongoing dialogue with the VT A and political leaders, 
and suggested that impacts to the system be measured. 

The motion brought by Director Ames and seconded by Director Raburn carried by electronic 
vote. Ayes - 5: Directors Ames, Li, Raburn, Simon, and Dufty. Noes - 2: Directors Allen and 
Foley. Absent- 2: Directors McPartland and Saltzman. 

Director Raburn brought the matter of Update on Silicon Valley BART Extension, Phase 1 before 
the Board. Mr. Holmes presented the item. 

President Dufty called for the General Manager's Report. Mr. Powers reported on his Listening 
Tour sessions at the San Francisco International Airport, Millbrae, El Cerrito Del Norte, and 
Embarcadero stations, upcoming Listening Tour sessions at Fruitvale and West Oakland stations, 
the ground-breaking event at Millbrae Station, and BART's partnership with The Salvation Army 
for the seasonal Red Kettle Campaign. Mr. Powers commented on ridership data for November 
2019; weekend and evening ridership data for the year; Clipper® card utilization for November 
2019; active Roll Call for Introductions (RCI) requests; and BART Police Officer and Community 
Service Officer staffing. 

President Dufty called for Board Member Reports, Roll Call for Introductions, and In Memoriam 
requests. 

Director Foley reported that he had attended the Sun Terrace Neighborhood Group meeting. 

Director Ames reported that she had attended the California Transportation Commission meeting. 

Director Raburn reported that he had attended Mr. Mike Healy's presentation about the history of 
BART to the Oakland Heritage Alliance and the Millbrae Station ground-breaking event. 

Director McPartland re-entered the Meeting. 

Director Li reported on her experience with public transit in Hong Kong. 

-8-



DRAFT 

Director Li requested a presentation from BART staff in early 2020 regarding "quality of life" 
citations and contacts. Information should include the total number, location, and times of all types 
of citations that are considered as quality-of-life violations, as well as, available demographics of 
the persons cited. Violations should include, but not be limited to, the individual violations under 
California Penal Code Part 1, Title 15, Chapter 2, Section 640. The purpose of this presentation 
should be to provide a data-driven account for the way BART resources, particularly law 
enforcement, are deployed and the benefits to our ridership and system safety. President Dufty 
seconded the request. 

Director Allen commented on a San Francisco Examiner article and citation data. 

Director Simon reported on her lobbying experience in Washington, D.C. with a delegation of 
members of the BART Board and staff. Director Simon commented on the research conducted by 
the Alliance for Girls and an upcoming Town Hall meeting for the Alliance for Girls to provide 
recommendations and commended BART staff for their interaction with the Alliance for Girls. 

Director McPartland reported that he had attended a table top exercise at Embarcadero Station and 
recognized San Francisco Fire Department Battalion Chief Charles (Charlie) Crane; and he had 
attended the Millbrae Station ground-breaking event and acknowledged former BART Board 
Director Joel Keller' s attendance at the event. 

President Dufty requested the Meeting be adjourned in honor of Harry Overstreet, the owner and 
founder of Gerson/Overstreet Architects. 

President Dufty requested that his fellow Directors donate to the Holiday Toy Drive and he noted 
that the Board would be presenting the gifts to Mission Neighborhood Centers, Inc. President 
Dufty recognized Ms. Molly Burke, Principal Government and Community Relations 
Representative, and Mr. Richard Fuentes, Manager of Special Projects, Grant Development, for 
their assistance with BART toy drives. President Dufty commented on the story about The 
Salvation Army that was reported in The Bay Area Reporter; the Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual, 
Transgender, Queer or Questioning (LGBTQ) community; and services for those in need. 
President Dufty gave remarks about leadership growth within BART, various projects, and his 
experience as President of the Board of Directors. President Dufty recognized Director McPartland 
for his military service. 

President Dufty called for Public Comment. 

Jerry Grace addressed the Board. 

The Meeting was adjourned at 12:38 p.m. 

-9-

Patricia K. Williams 
District Secretary 



SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT 
300 Lakeside Drive, P.O. Box 12688, Oakland, CA 94604-2688 

Board of Directors 
Minutes of the 1,854th Meeting 

December 19, 2019 

DRAFT 

A regular meeting of the Board of Directors was held on December 19, 2019, convening at 9:09 
a.m. in the BART Board Room, 2040 Webster Street, Oakland, California. President Dufty 
presided; Patricia K. Williams, District Secretary. 

Present: 

Absent: 

Directors Ames, Foley, McPartland, Raburn, Saltzman, Simon, and Dufty. 

Director Allen. Director Li entered the Meeting later. 

President Dufty recognized Director McPartland for his military service. 

Director Li entered the Meeting. 

President Dufty called for Introduction of Special Guests. President Dufty and Director Ames 
introduced Sophia Humphrey. President Dufty and Director Ames recognized Ms. Humphrey for 
her act of selflessness in assisting Mr. Oliver Williams after he was attacked. Ms. Humphrey 
addressed the Board. President Dufty presented Ms. Humphries with a Certificate of Recognition 
and Director Ames thanked BART staff and the BART and Hayward Police Departments for their 
assistance with apprehending the suspect who fatally stabbed Mr. Oliver Williams. President Dufty 
commented on the Alameda County Board of Supervisors ' plan to convene a mental health summit 
in the spring of 2020. He also noted that BART would participate in the Homeless Services 
Coordinating Council in Alameda County. 

Mr. Michael Jones, Deputy General Manager, introduced Michael C. Healy, retired BART 
spokesman. Mr. Healy recognized Ms. Humphrey and addressed the Board. 

President Dufty thanked and recognized BART Office of External Affairs staff, Ms. Maisha 
Everhart, Manager of Local Government and Community Relations, and Ms. Molly Burke, 
Principal Government and Community Relations Representative, and Mr. Carl Holmes, Assistant 
General Manager, Design and Construction, for their assistance with the 2019 Holiday Toy Drive. 
President Dufty introduced the following representatives from Mission Neighborhood Centers, 
Inc. (MNC), the 2019 Holiday Toy Drive recipient: Edward (Teddie) Honey, Site Coordinator for 
the Precita Valley Community Center; Gloria Dominguez, Mission Girls Site Coordinator; and 
Rafael Moreno, Family Resource Center Manager. Mr. Honey, Ms. Dominguez, and Mr. Moreno 
addressed and thanked the Board. President Dufty recognized Police Lieutenant Ja'Son Scott, for 
his assistance with the 2019 Holiday Toy Drive. 

Consent Calendar item brought before the Board was: 

1. Approval of Minutes of the Meeting ofNovember 21, 2019. 

-1-



DRAFT 

Director Foley moved that the Minutes of the Meeting of November 21 , 2019 be approved. 
Director McPartland seconded the motion, which carried by unanimous electronic vote. Ayes: 7 -
Directors Ames, Foley, Li, McPartland, Raburn, Simon, and Dufty. Noes: 0. Abstain: 1 -Director 
Saltzman. Absent: 1 - Director Allen. 

President Dufty called for Public Comment. 

Suzanne Gamble addressed the Board. 

Director Simon, Chairperson of the Administration Committee, had no report. 

Director Foley, Chairperson of the Engineering and Operations Committee, had no report. 

Director Raburn, Chairperson of the Planning, Public Affairs, Access, and Legislation Committee, 
had no report. 

President Dufty called for the General Manager' s Report. Mr. Robert Powers, General Manager, 
introduced Mr. Maceo Wiggins, Director of the Office of Civil Rights. Mr. Wiggins recognized 
the Small Business Support Services Team, Ms. Anna Duckworth, Communications Officer, and 
Mr. Javieree PruittHill, Senior Administrative Analyst, Office of Civil Rights, for their assistance 
with creating an informational video that encourages small businesses to compete for work related 
to the new BART headquarters. The video was played. 

Mr. Powers reported on his Listening Tour sessions at the Walnut Creek, 16th St. Mission, 
Fruitvale, and West Oakland stations. He reported that the BART website will include information 
derived from the Listening Tour. He also reported that he spoke at the Women' s Transportation 
Seminar (WTS) International event, and he reminded the Board of the upcoming Board Workshop 
in February. 

President Dufty called for Board Member Reports, Roll Call for Introductions, and In Memoriam 
requests. 

President Dufty reported that he had attended the Alameda County Board of Supervisors meeting 
with Directors Raburn, Ames, and McPartland. 

Director Simon reported that she had attended a meeting with the Alliance for Girls and BART 
staff at the Betti Ono gallery. Director Simon also recognized and thanked Ms. Alicia Trost, Chief . 
Communications Officer, for connecting with the Alliance for Girls. 

Director Ames thanked Ms. Nicole Franklin, Principal Property Development Officer, Systems 
Development, for her assistance with her discussion with the City of Fremont regarding the build
out of Warm Springs/South Fremont Station. She also reported on her meetings with the City of 
Fremont and realty experts. Director Ames reported that she had attended the Shop with a Cop 
event with Lt. Scott and Interim Chief of Police Ed Alvarez at Walmart in San Leandro and thanked 
BART staff for their work with the community. 

Director Raburn reported that he had attended an open house event at WSP' s new offices in 
Oakland; the Alameda County Building and Construction Trades Council's 45th Annual Holiday 

-2-



DRAFT 

Luncheon; the Conference of Minority Transportation Officials (COMTO) celebration and 
scholarship awards event; the Alameda County Board of Supervisors meeting; and the 56th Annual 
Holiday Moose Feed event sponsored by the Northern California Carpenters Regional Council and 
the San Francisco Building and Construction Trades Council. Director Raburn thanked BART 
Police Officers and Community Service Officers for their fundraisiri.g efforts for the Shop with a 
Cop event. 

Director Li reported that over the past year, she has toured different facilities with John Arantes, 
President of the BART Chapter of the Service Employees International Union (SEID); participated 
in a fire drill in the Transbay Tube with Director McPartland; and met with Police Sergeant Rick 
Martinez, Master Police Officer Keith Garcia, and Mr. Jones to observe the 5:00 a.m. fare 
enforcement operation at Embarcadero Station. She noted that she met great Fare Inspection 
Officers, namely Carlos, Jen, and Michael. Director Li also recognized Mr. Cecil Mc Griff, Station 
Agent, and thanked Ms. Humphrey. 

Director Saltzman commented on the Memorandum of Understanding for housing development at 
the North Berkeley and Ashby stations that was unanimously passed by the Berkeley City Council 
and thanked Director Simon for her assistance. 

Director McPartland reported that he had attended the Alameda County Board of Supervisors 
meeting; the 56th Annual Holiday Moose Feed event; Congressman Eric Swalwell ' s Military 
Academy Panel; and the BART Police Citizen Review Board meeting. 

Director Foley reported that he had attended the Holiday Open House event for Senator Steve 
Glazer. Director Foley thanked BART staff and the meeting attendees. 

President Dufty requested the Meeting be adjourned in honor of Patrick "Butch" Hallinan, civil 
rights and criminal defense attorney in San Francisco. 

President Dufty expressed thanks to BART leadership and stakeholders over the past year, 
recognizing Ms. Alicia Trost, Mr. James (Jim) Allison, Mr. Christopher (Chris) Filippi, Ms. Anna 
Duckworth, Ms. Cheryl Stalter, Ms. Melissa Jordan, Ms. Melissa Miller, Mr. Seung Lee, Ms. Anita 
Lau-Hung, Ms. Patricia Williams, Ms. Jacqueline (Jackie) Edwards, Ms. April Quintanilla, Mr. 
Benny Mart, Ms. Jessica Abrego, Ms. Magdalene (Mag) Tatum, and Ms. Sheryel Davis. 

President Dufty brought the matter of Election of Officers before the Board and opened the floor 
for nominations for President. Vice President Saltzman nominated Director Simon for President 
of the Board of Directors. Vice President Saltzman and President Dufty offered comments 
regarding Director Simon' s leadership and experience. Nominations were closed. Director 
Saltzman moved that Director Simon be elected Board President for 2020. Director Li seconded 
the motion, which carried by unanimous electronic vote. Ayes: 8 - Directors Ames, Foley, Li, 
McPartland, Raburn, Saltzman, Simon, and Dufty. Noes: 0. Absent: 1 - Director Allen. 

President Simon shared comments about BART staff, the Board of Directors, partnerships with 
local governments, and the upcoming year. 

President Simon opened the floor for nominations for Vice President. Director McPartland 
nominated Director Foley for Vice President of the Board of Directors. Nominations were closed. 

-3-



DRAFT 

Director McPartland commented on an experience he shared with Director Foley. Director 
McPartland moved that Director Foley be elected Board Vice President for 2020. Director 
Saltzman seconded the motion, which carried by unanimous electronic vote. Ayes: 8 - Directors 
Ames, Foley, Li, McPartland, Raburn, Saltzman, Simon, and Dufty. Noes: 0. Absent: 1 -Director 
Allea · 

Vice President Foley shared comments about the upcoming year, associated himself with Pres}dent 
Simon' s comments, and thanked the Board of Directors. 

President Simon thanked Director Dufty for his leadership and presented him with a commemorate 
plaque. 

President Simon called for Public Comment. No comments were received. 

The Meeting was adjourned at 10:23 a.m. 

-4-

Patricia K. Williams 
District Secretary 



SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: Board of Directors DATE: January 3, 2020 

FROM: District Secretary 

SUBJECT: 2020 Organization of Committees and Special Appointments 

Board Rule 3-3.2 requires the ratification by a majority vote of all members of the Board any 
appointment of any Committee member by the Board President. The Rule includes a provision 
that such appointments shall be submitted directly to the Board. 

In accordance with Board Rule 3-3.2, President Simon is bringing the 2020 Organization of 
Committees and Special Appointments before the Board of Directors for ratification at the Regular 
Board Meeting on January 9, 2020. 

Should you have any questions, please contact President Simon or me at your convenience. 

cc: Board Appointed Officers 
Deputy General Manager 
Executive Staff 

MOTION: 

\_;j - /J/A " ", , 
t( l1Ad(,a. " - iUJJkcW'--'1 
Patricia K. Williams 

That the Board of Directors ratifies the 2020 Organization of Committees and Special 
Appointments. 



SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT 
ORGANIZATION OF COMMITTEES AND SPECIAL APPOINTMENTS 

STANDING COMMITTEES 

ADMINISTRATION** 
John McPartland, Chairperson 
Janice Li, Vice Chairperson 
Debora Allen 

ENGINEERING AND OPERATIONS** 
Bevan Dufty, Chairperson 
Robert Raburn, Vice Chairperson 
Liz Ames 

PLANNING, PUBLIC AFFAIRS, ACCESS AND LEGISLATION** 
Rebecca Saltzman, Chairperson 
Debora Allen, Vice Chairperson 
Robert Raburn 

SPECIAL COMMITTEES 

LABOR NEGOTIATIONS REVIEW SPECIAL COMMITTEE** 
Mark Foley, Chairperson Janice Li, Vice Chairperson 

PERSONNEL REVIEW SPECIAL COMMITTEE** 
Bevan Dufty, Chairperson Lateefah Simon, Vice Chairperson 

Rebecca Saltzman 

John McPartland 

SANTA CLARA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY PARTNERSHIP SPECIAL COMMITTEE** 
Debora Allen Liz Ames BevanDufty Robert Raburn 

SPECIAL APPOINTMENTS - LIAISON 

CONTRA COSTA TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY** LIAISON 
Debora Allen, Primary Mark Foley, Alternate 

PARA TRANSIT SERVICE REVIEW ADVISORY COMMITTEES LIAISON 
Robert Raburn Lateefah Simon 

SAN FRANCISCO TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY** LIAISON 
Janice Li, Primary Bevan Dufty, Alternate 

** Brown Act Committee, subject to public meeting requirements. 

NOTE: BART Directors discharging liaison functions do not serve as members of either a committee of BART or the other organization, nor as 
members of a joint committee. Any action on behalf of BART must be taken by the full Board. 

Proposed 1/9/2020 



SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT 
ORGANIZATION OF COMMITTEES AND SPECIAL APPOINTMENTS 

SPECIAL APPOINTMENTS - EXTERNAL 

ALAMEDA COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION** 
Rebecca Saltzman, Primary Robert Raburn, Alternate 

ALTERNATE REPRESENTATIVE TO THE AMERICAN PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION ASSOCIATION BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS 
Bevan Dufty 

BART AND AC TRANSIT COORDINATING COMMITTEE** 
Robert Raburn (Co-Chair) Liz Ames Rebecca Saltzman 

CAPITOL CORRIDOR JOINT POWERS BOARD*** 
Debora Allen, Contra Costa County 
Bevan Dufty, San Francisco County 
Janice Li, San Francisco County 

John McPartland, Alameda County 
Robert Raburn, Alameda County 
Rebecca Saltzman, Contra Costa County 

Liz Ames, Alameda County Alternate 

DIRIDON STATION AREA JOINT POLICY ADVISORY BOARD (City of San Jose)*** 
Robert Raburn 

OVERSIGHT BOARD TO SUCCESSOR AGENCY OF SAN FRANCISCO REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY*** 
Vacant 

PLEASANT HILL BART STATION LEASING AUTHORITY BOARD OF DIRECTORS*** 
Debora Allen Mark Foley 

SOUTH HAYWARD BART STATION ACCESS AUTHORITY** 
Liz Ames John McPartland Robert Raburn, Alternate 

TRI-VALLEY - SAN JOAQUIN REGIONAL RAIL AUTHORITY*** 
John McPartland 

WEST CONTRA COSTA TRANSPORTATION ADVISORY COMMITTEE (WCCTAC)** 
Debora Allen, Primary Lateefah Simon, Alternate 

** Brown Act Committee, subject to public meeting requirements. 
*** Brown Act Board, subject to public meeting requirements. 

Proposed 1/9/2020 



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT 

Originator/Prepared by: Elena Van Loo 

Dept: Customer Access & Accessibility 

[ l 

GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D: 
Robert Powers 

BOARD INITIATED ITEM: Yes 

Controller/Treasurer District Secretary 

BART Accessibility Task Force Membership Appointment 

PURPOSE: 

BARC 

Request the BART Board of Directors to appoint a nominated candidate, Marjorie Mc Wee, 
to the BART Accessibility Task Force (BATF). 

DISCUSSION: 

The BATF has been in existence since 1975 to advise the BART Board and BART staff on 
accessibility issues at BART. The BATF by-laws provide for the committee to be composed 
ofup to eighteen members who live or work in the BART service area. The BATF by-laws 
also state that to become a member of the committee an interested candidate is endorsed by 
the members of the BATF through a majority vote, then the appointment to the BATF is 
submitted to the BART Board of Directors. 

Candidate for BATF membership: 

• Marjorie McWee, a candidate for membership to the BATF, was endorsed by a 
majority of votes by the members of the BATF that were present at the November 13, 
2019 BATF meeting. 

This BATF membership recommendation is being submitted to the BART Board for 
consideration. The prospective candidate, if approved by the BART Board, will officially be 
seated as a member of the BATF on January 23, 2020 for a term of one year, or until the 
BART Board announces appointments and/or re-appointments for a new term, whichever 
occurs later. If approved, the BATF will be comprised of sixteen (16) members. 



BART Accessibility Task Force Membership Appointment (cont.) 

FISCAL IMP ACT: 

Members receive a $15 monthly stipend for travel to attend regularly scheduled monthly 
committee meetings. Additionally, members are eligible to be reimbursed for the actual cost 
of travel for additional pre-approved meetings. 

Funds will be budgeted in the Customer Access Department operating budget (Dept. 
1102491 , Account 681500-0ther-Non-Professional Services) in Fiscal Year 2020 and are 
included in the Department's existing operating budget. Funding for subsequent years will be 
included in the proposed annual operating budget, which is subject to Board approval. 

This action is not anticipated to have any fiscal impact on the unprogrammed district 
reserves in the current fiscal year. 

ALTERNATIVES: 

Do not make appointment. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Appoint Marjorie Mc Wee to the BART Accessibility Task Force (BATF). 

MOTION: 

The BART Board accepts the recommendation of the BA TF and appoints the nominated 
candidate, Marjorie Mc Wee, for membership to the BATF for a term beginning January 23 , 
2020 for one year, or until Board makes new appointments and/or reappointments for a new 
term, whichever occurs later. 



m 
EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT 

GENERAL MANAGER APPROVAL: GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D: 

BOARD INITIATED ITEM: No 

Originator/Prepared by: Edward Moore Controller/Treasurer District Secretary 

De~ ~ 

Signature/Date: 

I - '3-'},o')-O [ l 

·:r J 
ij Clj' 

BART Authorization for IFB #9067 A Automatic External Defibrillator (AED) 

PURPOSE: To request Board authorization to award Invitation for Bid (IFB) Number 
9067 A, Automated External Defibrillator (AED) Devices to Mithril Enterprises DBA FC 
Safety. 

DISCUSSION: 

[ l 

The District's System Safety Department is currently working on a program to install 46 
Automated Defibrillator Devices (AED), Wall Cabinets and Pad Sets at the primary station 
agent booths at all stations throughout the District. The program calls for the first 21 units to 
be installed during the first quarter of 2020 at those stations with the heaviest patron traffic. 
The wall cabinets will be installed by District employees. Following installation of the 
cabinets and notification of that installation the vendor will have 30 days to deliver the AED 
devices. 

The Contract requires Program Management by the vendor including monthly inspections of 
the units where they will replace any pads, batteries, wires, or any defective item or unit and 
provide a monthly report of the inspection results. Monthly service will commence 30 days 
after AED units are installed at designated stations. 

A notice requesting bids was published on July 23, 2019 and sent to three prospective 
bidders. Bids were opened on September 10, 2019 and two (2) bids were received. 

BIDDER UNIT PRICE GRAND TOTAL PLUS 
9.25°/o TAX 

Mithril Enterprises $224,891.12 



BART Authorization for IFB #9067A Automatic External Defibrillator (AED) (cont.) 

Baker MedFirst $461,111.47 

The lowest responsive bidder was Mithril Enterprises for $224,891.12. The Independent 
Cost Estimate by BART staff was $297,160.00. Staff determined that the bid price is fair 
and reasonable based on previous cost proposals submitted for these types of devices and 
services. 

The District's Non-Discrimination Program for Subcontracting is not applicable to 
Invitations for Bid. Accordingly, the Office of Civil Rights did not set Minority Business 
Enterprise (MBE) and Women Business Enterprise (WBE) Availability Percentages for this 
IFB. 

Pursuant to the District's Non-Federal Small Business Program, the Office of Civil Rights 
set a 5% Small Business Prime Preference for this IFB for Small Businesses certified by the 
California Department of General Services. The lowest responsive Bidder Mithril Enterprises 
is a certified Small Business, thus, making it eligible for the Prime Preference. Since the 
Bidder Mithril Enterprises is the lowest responsive Bidder, and is eligible for the 5% Small 
Business Prime Preference, the application of the Prime Preference will not alter the award to 
the Bidder Mithril Enterprises. 

FISCAL IMP ACT: The subject EDD proposes to purchase 46 AED units along with 
entering into a 4-year service and maintenance agreement for the purchased unit for an 
overall 4-year total of $224,891.12. All AED units will be purchased during FY 2020 with 
service and maintenance starting 30 days from installation date. Between February 1, 2020 
and January 31, 2021, a total of 46 AED units will be purchased and installed at 46 BART 
stations. 

BART personnel will install purchased AED cabinets at the BART stations. 

Total funding for this contract in the amount, not to exceed $224,891.12, is based upon the 
following totals by year: 

FY2020 

FY 2021 

FY 2022 

FY2023 

$112,871.12 

$ 37,340.00 

$ 37,340.00 

$ 37,340.00 

Total cost for FY 2020, which consist of $77,031.12 for equipment and $35,840.00 for the 
annual maintenance, testing and reporting services for all 46 existing BART stations are 



BART Authorization for IFB #9067A Automatic External Defibrillator (AED) (cont.) 

included in the operating budget of Department 1303388, Account number 680030 (Non
Inventory Material Purchases) and 681300 (Professional Fees). The Controller/Treasurer 
certifies that funding is available. 

Funding for subsequent years will be included in the proposed annual operating budget of 
Department 1303388, which is subject to Board approval. This action is not anticipated to 
have any Fiscal Impact on unprogrammed District reserves in the current Fiscal Year. 

Fiscal years 2021, 2022 and 2023 take into account the additions of the Milpitas (S40,) and 
Berryessa (S50) stations. 

ALTERNATIVES: 

Not purchasing the items will minimize the District's ability to respond to medical 
emergencies experienced by patrons or employees. The District has experienced situations 
where it is reasonable to assume employees and patrons lives could have been saved or 
healthy recovery possible if such devices had been available. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

On the basis of analysis by staff and, certified by the Controller-Treasurer that the funds are 
available for this purpose, it is recommended that the Board adopt this motion. 

MOTION: 

The General Manager is authorized to award IFB #9067 A for the Automated External 
Defibrillator (AED) Devices to Mithril Enterprises DBA, FC Safety for an amount of 
$224,891.12, pursuant to notification issued by the General Manager, subject to compliance 
with the District's Protest Procedure and FTA's requirements related to Protest Procedure. 



SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: Board of Directors DATE: January 3, 2020 

FROM: General Manager 

SUBJECT: FY20 First Quarter Financial Report 

The FY20 First Quarter Financial Report (July - September 2019) is attached. The net result for the quarter 
was $9 .1 million (M) favorable to budget; however, staff remains cautious regarding the year-end outlook 
due to increasing pressure oh operating expense. 

Operating Sources 

Total Ridership was 0.7% over budget for the first quarter of FY20, and 0.9% lower than in the same period 
of FY 19, with weekend ridership performing better than budget expectations. First quarter FY20 weekday 
trips were 0.1% below budget and 1.7% below FYI9, due in part to the timing of special events. Passenger 
revenue in the first quarter was $2.4M ( 1.9%) favorable. A new one-page summary providing additional 
information is attached to the Quarterly Financial Report. 

Financial Assistance in the first quarter of FY20 was favorable to budget primarily due to revenue from 
Sales Tax and Low Carbon Fuel Standard (LCFS) credit sales. The state continues to remit sales tax revenues 
from prior quarters to agencies, distorting quarterly budget results. Preliminary sales tax data for BART 
through December indicates sales tax results will be back on budget by the end of the second quarter. 
Additionally,LCFS credit sales in the first quarter exceeded budget by $2.4M due to strong credit pricing. 
Per the LCFS Policy, proceeds from LCFS sales are allocated equally to the Sustainability program and to 
the general operating fund. 

Operating Uses 

Total Expense for the first quarter was slightly over budget, finishing $I.4M (0.7%) unfavorable. Labor and 
benefits were over budget, at $5.6M (3.8%) unfavorable, driven by increases to overtime and less than 
expected capital labor reimbursements. Total non-labor was $4.2M (8.6%) under budget, largely due to 
timing of expenses for professional & technical service fees; lower than projected bank card fees; and 
increased Clipper reimbursements. 

Staff is cautious about the outlook for FY20. Ridership and fare revenue are expected to remain close to 
budget. However, the District faces substantial added financial pressures to address Quality of Life and the 
customer experience, requiring overtime and redirection of budgeted resources. Additionally, labor expenses 
are projected to increase while non-labor savings are expected to be offset by increased expenditures later in 
the fiscal year. Staff will continue cost saving measures and are committed to limiting spending and 
increasing efficiencies to help manage the FY20 budget. 

cc: Board Appointed Officers 
Deputy General Manager 
Executive Staff 



Revenue 

• Avs weekday trip, for th quarter were 412,596, 0.1 % under budget and 
1.7% below th same quarter last year . Total trips for the quarter were 
o 7% over bude~• and 0.9% lower than FV 19Ql, with weekend ond hollday 
trips 6.2" over budget. Net passenger revenue was 1.9" ewer budget. 

• Other operatlnR revenue was $ l.2M favorable mainly due to over budget 
investment Income and special fees and perm,K 

Expense 

ot.abor (excluding OPES and GASB) was $S.6M unfavorable in Ql. mostly 
due to unfavorable overtime and capital labor reimbursement. 
• Power was $0.SM favorable In Ql due to lower than expected costs for 
compliance, and hydroelectric and short-term electric procurement. 
• Other Non Labor was under budget by $3.8M for QI, due to tlmlns of 
invoice payments (S3.6M of Professional fees, S0.2M Repairs & 
Malnl enanco, SD.2M Rental Expense and SO. IM Insurance Premiums) and 
$1.2M lower than proiected bank/credrt card fees and an Increase in 
Olppcr reimbursement. Thi> favorab, ltty wo, offset by $1.SM of 
unfavorablr Mi'.lt trfal Usage. 

Financial Assistance and Allocations 

• Sales Tax for Ql was 24 7% above FY19Ql and $8 .SM favorable due to 
continuing receipt of missing payments from prior periods, however, sales 
t,u, Is ~xpccted to f'nd the year on budget. 

• Property Tax, Other A•slstance was SO.3M favorable mainly due to over 
budget property tax payment , . 
• Low C.,rbon Tr,,nslt Operal lons Program (LCTOP) revenue was $5. l M 
unfavorable du to timing. MTC payment> will be on budget at year-end. 
• Low C.,rbon Fuel Standard (LCFS) PrORrnm revenue was $2.4M favorable to 
budget due to hl1thcr than anticipated sale of credits generated as a result of 
strong mnrkct price,. 
• Capital and other allocations were SO.SM lower than budget pnmarlly due 
to under budget Incremental rare increase revenue, offset bv Increased LCFS 
revenue (allocated bctwe n ~sta1nab1htv and general operating fund per 
LCFS Polley) and over budg t SFO E,t fare revenue. 

Net Operating Result 

• The Net Operating Result to, Q1 was $9.lM favorable, mostly due to Net 
Passenger Revenue, lnvestm nt Income .ind Sales Ta,c revenues. 

Quarterly Financial Report 
First Quarter 

Fiscal Yoar. 2020 

Current Quartor 

Bud ot Actual Var 

121.8 124.1 
9.3 9.3 
7.0 8.2 

138.0 ---;m-

149.0 154.6 
11 .4 10.9 

7.9 7.9 
29.5 25.8 

197.8 ~ 

(59.8) (67.7) 

66.3 74.9 12.9% 
3.0 3.3 9.2% 
8.4 3.3 -60.5% 
3.5 5.9 67.6% 

(11.8) (11.8) 0.0% 
(23.7) (22.9) 3.6% 
45.7 ~ 15.3% 

(14.1 ) (4.9) 9.1 

69.8% 71 .1% 

0.416 0.419 

0 

• 

($ MIM\onl) Year to Dato 

Budget Actual Var 

Revenue 
Net Passenger Revenue 121.8 124.1 

Parlung Revenue 9.3 9.3 
Other Operating Revenue 7.0 8.2 

Total Nat Oparatlng Revenue ~ ---;m-

Expense 
Net labor 149.0 154.6 

Electrlc Power 11.4 10.9 
Purchased Transportation 7.9 7.9 

Other Non Labor 29.5 25.8 
Total Operating Expense ~ ~ 

Operating Result (Dellclt) (59.8) (57.7) 

Taxes and Financial Assistance 
Sales True 66.3 74.9 12.9% 

Property Tax. Othe< Assistance 3.0 3.3 9.2% 
Low Carbon T ranstt Op Prog 8.4 3.3 -60.5% 
Low Carbon Fuel Std Prog 3.5 5.9 67.6% 

Oebt Service (11 .8) (11.8) 0.0% 
Capital and 01her Allocations (23.7) ~ 3.6% 

Not Financial Au lstanco ~ 52.7 15.3% 

Net Operating Result (14.1) (4.9) 9.1 

Systom Oporatlng Ratio 69.8% 71 .1% 1.3% 

Rall Coat / Pas19n r Mlle 0.416 ¢ 0.419 
• Total• may not add due to rounding to \he nearest million. 

No Problem 

Caution: Potenllal Problem/Problem Being Addressed 

Significant Problem 



II 0 

10.5 

100 

~ 9.S : 
::. 90 

8S 

8.0 

Exits 

Wc~kday 

Saturday 
Sunday 
Total 

Jul Au1 Sep 

" , \ 
I \ 

Oct 

FY20 Ql Ridershi p Stats 

Monthly Ridership 

\ 
\ , 
\ ,,----,, ,' 
\ ,' ',~' 

\ ,, I 
\ ,' ', , 
'- ...... ,' ,, 

J•n Fob M•r Apr M.ly Jun 

300,000 

250,000 

200,000 

150,000 

100,000 

50,000 

-S0,000 

100,000 

150,000 

-200,000 
- FY20 Actuals - - - FV.20 8ud1et fY 19 Actuals 

Actual 
FY19 Ql 

419,692 

165,941 

123,049 

30,563,071 

Budget 

FY20 Ql 
412,913 

156,290 

108,342 
30,081,341 

Actual 
fY20 Q1 

4 12,596 

164,307 

117,211 
30,286,863 

FY20 Ql Actual vs. 
FY19 Ql FV20 Ql 

·1.7" -0.1% 

· l .0% 5.1% 

-4 .7% 8.2% 

0.9" 0.7% 

FY20 Ql Ridership Budget to Actual Variance 
(budg<t • D} 

Jul Sep 

Rolling 12 Month Clipper Adoption Rate 



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT 

Originator/Prepared by: Travis Engstrom , 

Dept: Office o~ the CIO --- . /AM/:J 
Signature/Date: IZ/Lr /MJ f 

GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D: 

BOARD INITIATED ITEM: No 

Controller/Treasurer District Secretary BARC 

BART DIGITAL RAILWAY - MASTER PROGRAM LICENSE AGREEMENT 
(MPLA) 

PURPOSE: 
To request Board authorization for the General Manager or his designee to enter into a 
Master Program License Agreement (MPLA), and associated Project License Agreements 
(PLAs) with Mobilitie Services, LLC (Mobilitie) for the development of the BART Digital 
Railway and a related project for the San Francisco Municipal Transportation Agency 
(SFMTA). 

DISCUSSION: 

The proposed Digital Railway is a system of wired and wireless communications 
infrastructure along the District's rights of way, within stations and on board BART's Fleet 
of the Future. Included as part of the overall Project is a project with the San Francisco 
Municipal Transportation Agency (SFMT A) expanding commercial cellular communications 
and fiber optic infrastructure to the SFMT A underground. 

The Board authorized the General Manager to enter into a Communications Agreement with 
SFMTA in September 2016. The Communications Agreement, also approved by the 
SFMT A Board and the San Francisco Board of Supervisors, authorized BART to work with 
SFMT A and a commercial vendor to pursue an expansion of the District's revenue 
generating underground cellular and fiber optic infrastructure to underground areas of 
SFMT A service, primarily in downtown San Francisco, and share revenue obtained with 
SFMTA. 

In order to obtain proposals to develop and manage the BART Digital Railway and the 
SFMT A project an Invitation for Proposal (Invitation) was issued in March 2017. The 



BART DIGITAL RAILWAY - MASTER PROGRAM LICENSE AGREEMENT (MPLA) (cont.) 

Invitation included new commercial business opportunities in fiber optic cable, station 
wireless services and in-train wireless services for the District's Fleet of the Future. 

The Invitation sought proposals from private commercial entities to construct commercial 
telecommunications infrastructure for BART and SFMTA that would provide valuable 
services to patrons and generate revenue for the District, and in SFMT A areas, generate 
shared revenue with SFMT A. 

In response to the Invitation, ten proposals were received. The responsive proposals were 
reviewed and scored based on several factors, including revenue for the District, the firm's 
qualifications, experience and references, key personnel and project team organizational 
structure, proposed services and project impact and plan and schedule. As a result of the 
analysis, Mobilitie was determined to be the top respondent. 

Mobilitie is the nation's largest private wireless services firm, with infrastructure projects 
across all 50 states. Mobilitie owns and operates 60 neutral host cellular systems. Mobilitie 
has built over 3,000 communication towers, 70,000 miles of fiber, over 60,000 cell sites, and 
generated over 100,000 network designs for the major cellular carriers. Mobilitie has high 
density metropolitan cellular and fiber deployments in New York City, Chicago, San 
Francisco and Los Angeles. Mobilitie has deployments in many sports stadiums across the 
country, resorts and in Seattle's Sound Transit light rail system. 

In 2018 the Board authorized an Exclusive Negotiating Agreement (ENA) with Mobilitie. 
Since then staff has worked with Mobilitie to conduct preliminary design work, meet 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) requirements and negotiate a Master Program 
License Agreement (MPLA) and associated Project License Agreements (PLAs) to cover 
the four primary elements of the BART Digital Railway and SFMTA project, as set forth in 
the Invitation: 1) Underground Cellular Services for SFMTA, 2) Wayside and Fleet of the 
Future Wireless Services, 3) In-Station Wireless Services, and 4) Fiber Optic 
Telecommunication Services for both BART and SFMTA. 

District staff has determined that the Project will not have a significant impact on the 
environment and is categorically exempt from the provisions of the California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Title 14 California Code of Regulations, Section 15301, 
Existing Facilities, and Section 15303, New Construction or Conversion of Small structures, 
because the project consists of alternations to equipment on existing faculties involving no 
expansion of use in addition to the limited construction of new small structures on District 
property. Therefore, no further environmental review is required. 

All agreements will be approved as to form by the Office of General Counsel prior to 
execution. 



BART DIGITAL RAILWAY -MASTER PROGRAM LICENSE AGREEMENT (MPLA) (cont.) 

Invitation included new commercial business opportunities in fiber optic cable, station 
wireless services and in-train wireless services for the District's Fleet of the Future. 

The Invitation sought proposals from private commercial entities to construct commercial 
telecommunications infrastructure for BART and SFMT A that would provide valuable 
services to patrons and generate revenue for the District, and in SFMT A areas, generate 
shared revenue with SFMTA. 

In response to the Invitation, ten proposals were received. The responsive proposals were 
reviewed and scored based on several factors, including revenue for the District, the firm's 
qualifications, experience and references, key personnel and project team organizational 
structure, proposed services and project impact and plan and schedule. As a result of the 
analysis, Mobilitie was determined to be the top respondent. 

Mobilitie is the nation's largest private wireless services firm, with infrastructure projects 
across all 50 states. Mobilitie owns and operates 200 neutral host cellular systems. Mobilitie 
has built over 3,000 communication towers, 70,000 miles of fiber, over 15,000 cell sites, and 
generated over 100,000 network designs for the major cellular carriers. Mobilitie has high 
density metropolitan cellular and fiber deployments in New York City, Chicago, San 
Francisco and Los Angeles. Mobilitie has deployments in many sports stadiums across the 
country, resorts and in Seattle's Sound Transit light rail system. 

In 2018 the Board authorized an Exclusive Negotiating Agreement (ENA) with Mobilitie. 
Since then staff has worked with Mobilitie to conduct preliminary design work, meet 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) requirements and negotiate a Master Program 
License Agreement (MPLA) and associated Project License Agreements (PLAs) to cover 
the four primary elements of the BART Digital Railway and SFMTA project, as set forth in 
the Invitation: 1) Underground Cellular Services for SFMT A, 2) Wayside and Fleet of the 
Future Wireless Services, 3) In-Station Wireless Services, and 4) Fiber Optic 
Telecommunication Services for both BART and SFMTA. 

District staff has determined that the Project will not have a significant impact on the 
environment and is categorically exempt from the provisions of the California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Title 14 California Code of Regulations, Section 15301, 
Existing Facilities, and Section 15303, New Construction or Conversion of Small structures, 
because the project consists of alternations to equipment on existing faculties involving no 
expansion of use in addition to the limited construction of new small structures on District 
property. Therefore, no further environmental review is required. 

All agreements will be approved as to form by the Office of General Counsel prior to 
execution. 



BART DIGITAL RAILWAY - MASTER PROGRAM LICENSE AGREEMENT (MPLA) (cont.) 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
This action is not anticipated to have any Fiscal Impact on unprogrammed District reserves 
in the current Fiscal Year. This project is expected to generate revenue for the District. The 
terms of the Master Program License Agreement (MPLA) includes a scheduled minimum 
license revenue payment made by Mobilitie to the District, a revenue share of all earnings 
after expenses for each project, and that all Capital and Operating costs for the project will 
be borne by Mobilitie. The term of these License Agreements will be twenty years, 
estimated to begin in the first quarter of calendar year 2020, with two optional five year 
extensions. 

Total Anticipated Revenue to the District: 

Total Minimum Annual Guarantee payments: 

Total Technology Improvement Fund Reserve: 

Anticipated Capital Expenditure by Mobilitie: 

Minimum Annual Guarantee Payment Schedule 

$243,100,000 

$26,700,000 

$10,000,000 

$48,200,000 

Contract Year Minimum Annual Guarantee 

FY20 $2,000,000 

FY2I $900,000 

FY22 $900,000 

FY23 $900,000 

FY24-FY39 $1,375,000 

ALTERNATIVES: 
Do not enter into Master Program License Agreement (MPLA) with Mobilitie. This action 
would significantly delay consideration and development ofthe BART Digital Railway. 

RECOMMENDATION: 
Adoption of the following motion. 



BART DIGIT AL RAILWAY - MASTER PROGRAM LICENSE AGREEMENT (MPLA) ( cont.) 

MOTION: 

The Board of Directors: 

(1) Approves the BART Digital Railway Project. 

(2) Authorizes the General Manager or his designee to execute a Master Program License 
Agreement (MPLA), and associated License Agreements with Mobilitie Services, LLC 
(Mobilitie), for development of the BART Digital Railway, including 1) Underground Cellular 
Services for SFMTA, 2) Wayside and Fleet of the Future Wireless Services, 3) In-Station 
Wireless Services, and 4) Fiber Optic Telecommunication Services for both BART and 
SFMTA. 



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT 

GENERAL MANAGER APPROVAL: GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D: 

BOARD INITIATED ITEM: No 

Originator/Prepared by: Gia Hole 
G_en~ 

~'¢~0 
i -ic> r 

Controller/Treasurer District Secretary 

Dept: Human Resources Administration 

Slgo,t,n/Dote~ ...k 
I [ ] 

Fiscal Year 2019 Quality of Life Reserve Expenditure Plan 

PURPOSE: 
To seek Board authorization to allocate $1,500,000 from Operating Reserve to fund Quality 
of Life efforts. 

DISCUSSION: 
On October 10, 2019, the Board approved a motion to revise the Fiscal Year 2019 Year-End 
Budget. Included in the revision was an allocation to a Quality of Life Operating Reserve: 
$1,500,000 to fund Quality of Life efforts, including addressing fare evasion, safety and 
security, homelessness, cleanliness, and a pilot ambassador program. 
Based on staff research and stakeholder engagement, staff has determined that the most 
readily available, efficient, and cost-effective option to pilot a Community Ambassador 
program is to create the role as a special assignment for Community Service Officers. This 
recommendation ensures appropriate training, staff commitment, program administration and 
measurement of effectiveness. Measurements analyzed will include incidents reported, 
incidents addressed, customer satisfaction comments, and trending in calls for police 
service. 

The Ambassador program will be launched by offering the special assignment for bid upon 
approval of this motion. Ambassadors will be deployed within one month from bidding 
selection and will work in teams of 2 daily, on IO hour shifts providing presence on trains 
from 2pm to midnight, with full coverage (five teams of2) on Saturdays. The total cost of 
the BART Ambassador pilot is not to exceed $690,000. 

The remaining $810,000 will be allocated to funding a paid area around the Coliseum 



Fiscal Year 2019 Quality of Life Reserve Expenditure Plan (cont.) 

elevator. The paid area will ideally utilize a prototype fare gate. 
Approval of this recommendation will allow the General Manager to execute this amendment 
in accordance with the authorization approved by the Board on October 10, 2019. 

FISCAL IMP ACTS: 
Quality of Life initiative will be $1,500,000. The pilot program will be entirely funded by the 
FY19 Quality of Life Operating Reserve year-end allocation, account 431067, and will not 
exceed $1,500,000 cumulatively through FY21. Funding for any subsequent years will be 
included in the subsequent year's proposed annual operating budget, which is subject to 
Board approval. This action is not anticipated to have any Fiscal Impact on unprogrammed 
District reserves in the current Fiscal Year. 

ALTERNATIVES: 
Deny authorization of this Agreement, limit the duration and/or allocate the funds to another 
program/initiative. 

RECOMMENDATION: 
It is recommended that the Board adopt the following motion: 

MOTION: 
The Board authorizes the General Manager to implement the BART Quality of Life initiatives 
to include: 

$690,000 to fund BART Ambassador Program 
$810,000 to fund Station Hardening 

This agreement is not to exceed $1,500,000 through FY21. 



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT 

GEN RAL MANAGER APPROVAL: GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D: 
Approve and Forward to the Board 

BOARD INITIATED ITEM: No 

Originator/Prepared by: Reza Hessa bi Controller/Treasurer District Secretary 

Signature/Da~~ 'rs f <Z-<> \ ~ 
[ ] [ l 

Award Contract No. 15EI-181 - Willow Pass Road High Voltage Substation (CWS) 
Transformer Replacement Project 

PURPOSE: 
To obtain Board authorization for the General Manager to award Contract No. l SEI-181 for 
the Willow Pass Road High Voltage Substation (CWS) Transformer Replacement Project to 
Blocka Construction, Inc., of Fremont, California for the bid amount of $6,164,500.00. 

DISCUSSION: 

Contract No. 15EI-181 is a Measure RR Public Works Construction Contract for the 
replacement of the critical existing high voltage transformer at the Willow Pass Road High 
Voltage Substation (CWS) located between the North Concord and Pittsburg/Bay Point 
stations. The contract work includes the demolition and disposal of the existing transformer, 
construction of an upgraded mounting pad and containment facility, installation of the 
replacement Transformer, and the provision of a 27MW spare transformer. 

This substation feeds the Evora Road Switching Station which provides power to 5 traction 
power substations and is an alternative power source to 10 traction power substations. 

The existing high voltage transformer, which was installed about 45 years ago, transforms 
115KV to 34.5KV to feed the BART traction power system. It has reached the end of its 
useful life and requires replacement. It has a high risk of failure, which could cause major 
service disruptions and impose a significant impact to revenue service. 

This Contract will provide a new 27-Megawatt natural oil filled Power Transformer and 
upgrade the existing Control and protection system to ensure reliable power for the Traction 



Award Contract No. l 5EI-181 - Willow Pass Road High Voltage Substation (CWS) Transfonner Replacement Project 

Power Substations. 

Advanced Notice to Bidders was emailed, published and posted to the BART Procurement 
Portal to one hundred eighty-one ( 181) prospective bidders with an A Contractor License 
Classification on August 29, 2019. Bids were opened on October 15, 2019, and the 
following two (2) bids were received 

BIDDER 

Blocka Construction, Inc. 

Becker Electric, Inc. 

Engineer's Estimate 

Fremont, CA 

San Francisco, CA 

TOTAL BID 

$6,164,500.00 

$8,452,867.00 

$5,830,000.00 

Both Bids were evaluated and Staff determined that the apparent low Total Bid price 
submitted by Blocka Construction, Inc., of Fremont, CA, is fair and reasonable, based on 
the Engineer's Estimate. A review ofBlocka Construction, Inc.'s business experience and 
financial capabilities has resulted in a determination that they are a responsible Bidder, and 
that their Bid is responsive to the requirements of the Contract Book. 

Pursuant to the District's Non-Discrimination Program for Subcontracting, the Availability 
Percentages for this Contract are 6.0% for Minority Business Enterprises ("MBEs") and 
3 .9% for Women Business Enterprises ("WBEs"). The Office of Civil Rights has 
determined that the apparent low Bidder Blocka Construction, Inc. has exceeded both the 
MBE and WBE Availability Percentages for this Contract at 10.6% for MBEs and 5.4% for 
WBEs. 

Pursuant to the District's Non-Federal Small Business Program, the Office of Civil Rights 
set a 6% Local Small Business (LSB) Subcontractor Participation Goal for this Contract. 
Bidders who meet the LSB Subcontractor Participation Goal are eligible for an LSB 
Preference of7% of the lowest responsive Bidder's Bid, up to a cap of $150,000. The 
Office of Civil Rights determined that the Bidder Blocka Construction, Inc. committed to 
subcontracting 1. 7% to LSBs. The apparent low Bidder Blocka Construction, Inc. did not 
meet the LSB Subcontractor Participation Goal and, therefore, is not eligible for the Bid 
Preference, but is still the apparent low Bidder. 

CAPITAL FISCAL IMP ACT: 

Funding in the amount of $6,164,500 for award of Contract No. 15EI-181 is included in the 
total project budget for FMS # 15EIRR1 - CWS Bulk Supply Transformer Replacement. 
The Office of Controller/freasurer certifies that funds are currently available to meet this 
obligation. The following table depicts funding assigned to the referenced project and is 



Award Contract No. 15EI-181 - Willow Pass Road High Voltage Substation (CWS) Transfonner Replacement Project 

included in totality to track funding history against spending authority. Funds needed to meet 
this request will be expended from a combination of these sources as listed. 

As ofNovember 12, 2019, $9,502,570 is available for this project from the following source: 

Fund No. Fund Description Source Amount 
802A-B Measure RR GOB BART 9,502,570 
Total 9,502,570 

BART has expended $1,133,503, committed $70,557 and reserved $0 to date for other 
action. This action will commit $6,164,500 leaving an available fund balance of$2,134,010 
in this project. 

There is no fiscal impact on available unprogrammed District Reserves. 

ALTERNATIVES: 
Reject all bids and re-advertise the Contract. This will not likely result in increased 
competition or lower prices and would delay the critical replacement, which could negatively 
impact revenue service due to transformer failure. 

RECOMMENDATION: 
On the basis of analysis and evaluation by Staff and certification by the Controller-Treasurer 
that funds are available for this purpose, it is recommended that the Board adopt the 
following Motion 

MOTION: 

The General Manager is authorized to Award Contract No. 15EI-181 - Willow Pass Road 
High Voltage Substation (CWS) Transformer Replacement Project to Blocka Construction, 
Inc. of Fremont, California for the Bid Price of$6,164,500.00, Pursuant to notification to be 
issued by the General Manager, and compliance with the District's Protest Procedures. 



m 
EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT 

GENERAL MANAGER APPROVAL: 

Originator/Prepared by: Balvir Tbind 

Dept: ainte ; ce ~ g 

Signature/Date : 

I:}... -- :J- 0 · J)-u 

GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D: 
Approve and Forward to the Board 

BOARD INITIATED ITEM: No 

Controller/Treasurer District Secretary 

elu,· f:ft,v/ 

t~ltt/ 
[ l [ l 

AWARD OF CONTRACT 1511-120A STATION EMERGENCY LIGHTING 

PURPOSE: 
To obtain Board authorization for the General Manager to Award Contract No. 15II-120A, 
Station Emergency Lighting, to Shimmick Construction Inc. of Irvine, CA for the total bid 
price of$ 14,840,942.00 

DISCUSSION: 
This project is the second phase of the seven phases plans to replace Station Emergency 
Lighting systems across the District. The purpose of this contract, is to upgrade the critical 
emergency lighting systems at eleven ( I I) passenger stations within Contra Costa and 
Alameda counties. 

The purpose of the emergency lighting system is to automatically activate lighting on egress 
passageways so that patrons may safely exit the station for at least ninety minutes during a 
power outage. The existing emergency lighting systems have been in operation for over 
twenty years, are difficult to maintain, and are at or near the end of their useful operating life. 

The contract scope of work requires the Contractor to provide all equipment, material, 
installation, testing, commissioning of station emergency lighting system and to ensure full 
compliance with the National Fi.re Protection Association ("NFPA") 101 regulatory 
requirements. 

The District provided an Advance Notice to Bidders for eight-one (81) prospective bidders 
on August 30, 2019. The Contract was advertised on August 30, 2019 in three (3) local 
publications and posted to the District's Procurement Portal on September 3, 2019. A total 
of thirty-two (32) entities downloaded the Contract Docmnents from the BART Procurement 
Portal. A Pre-Bid Meeting was conducted on September 7, 2019 with seven (7) prospective 



AWARD OF CONTRACT l5II-l20A STATION EMERGENCY LIGHTING (cont.) 

bidders. One site tour was conducted on September 7, 2019. 

A total of four (4) bids were received and publicly opened on November 5, 2019. All bids 
received, including the Engineer's Estimate, are shown in Table 1 below: 

Table 1: l 5II-120A Station Emergency Lighting Phase-2 Bid Prices 

Rosendin Electric Inc. San Jose, CA $18,699,179.00 

Shimmick Construction Inc. Irvine, CA $14,840,942.00 

Becker Electric Inc. San Francisco, CA $14,186,852.33 

Blocka Construction, Inc. Fremont, CA $25,157,449.00 

Engineer's Estimate $16,900,000.00 

Becker Electric Inc. was the apparent low Bidder. However, its Bid was deemed non
responsive because it failed to include the required Statement of Qualifications. 

Staff determined that 2nd lowest bidder, Shinunick Construction Inc., is the lowest 
responsive Bidder. Shin1mick Construction Inc.'s Total Bid Price of $14,840,942 was found 
to be fair and reasonable and approximately 12% below the Engineer's estimate. 

Non-Discrin1ination Program: 

Pursuant to the District's Non-Discrimination Program for Subcontracting, the Availability 
Percentages for this Contract are 18.2% for Minority Business Enterprises ("MBEs") and 
9.3% for Women Business Enterprises ("WBEs"). The Bidder Shimmick Construction 
committed to 0% MBE and 0% WBE participation. The Bidder Shimmick Construction did 
not meet either the MBE or WBE Availability Percentages; therefore, the Bidder Shimmick 
Construction was requested to provide the Office of Civil Rights with supporting 
documentation to determine if it had discriminated on the basis of race, national origin, color, 
gender or ethnicity. Based on the review of the information submitted by the Bidder 
Shimmick Construction the Office of Civil Rights found no evidence of discrimination. 

Small Business Program: 

Pursuant to the District's Non-Federal Small Business Program, the Office of Civil Rights 
set a 13% Local Small Business (LSB) Subcontractor Participation Goal for this Contract. 
Bidders who meet the LSB Subcontractor Participation Goal are eligible for an LSB 
Preference of 7% of the lowest responsive Bidder's Bid, up to a cap of $150.000. The 



AWARD OF CONTRACT 15Il-1 20A STATION EMERGENCY LIGHTING (cont.) 

Office of Civil Rights detemlined that the Bidder Shimmick Construction committed to 
subcontracting 0% to LSBs. The apparent lowest responsive Bidder Shimmick 
Construction did not meet the LSB Subcontractor Participation Goal and, therefore, is not 
eligible for the Bid Preference, but is still the apparent lowest responsive Bidder. 

FISCAL IMP ACT: 
Funding in the amount of $14,840,942 for award of Contract No. l 5II-120A is included in 
the total Project budget for FMS #15IIRR1 - Station Emergency Lighting. 

The table below lists funding assigned to the referenced project and is included to track 
funding history against spending authority. Funds needed to meet this request will be 
expended from the following sources: 

Measure RR $27,010,696 

TOTAL $27,010,696 

As of 12/10/2019, $27,010,696 is the total budget for this project. BART has expended 
$3,478,061 , committed $258,070 and reserved $105,839 to date. This action will commit 
$14,840,942 leaving an available fund balance of $8,327,784 in the fund source for this 
project. 

The Office of the Controller/ Treasurer certifies that funds are currently available to meet this 
obligation. 

This action is not anticipated to have any Fiscal Impact on unprogrammed District Reserves. 

ALTERNATIVES: 
The alternatives is to reject all bids and re-advertise the Contract. Staff does not believe that 
re-advertising will result in increased competition or lower piices. 

RECOMMENDATION: 
Adopt the following motion 

MOTION: 
The General Manager is authorized to award Contract No. l 5II-l 20A Station Emergency 
Lighting to Shimmick Construction Inc. of Irvine, CA for the Bid Price of $14,840,942.00, 
Pursuant to notification to be issued by the General Manager, and compliance with the 
District's Protest Procedures. 



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT 

GENERAL MANAGER APPROVAL: GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D: 
Approval 

BOARD INITIATED ITEM: Yes 

Originator/Prepared by : Scott Van Dussen 

···11v 
Signature/Date: 

! Status : Routed ! Date Created : 12/1 3/2019 

AW ARD OF CONTRACT NO. 49GH-110 FOR DESIGN-BIDLD OF A 
COMMUNICATIONS BASED TRAIN CONTROL SYSTEM 

PURPOSE: 
To request Board Authorization for the General Manager to award Contract No. 49GH-110 
for Design-Build of a Communications Based Train Control System to Hitachi Rail STS 
USA, Inc. for the amount of $798,551 ,928 and to exercise Option 3 for the Silicon Valley 
Berryessa Extension for $56,168,590 and Option 4 for the Silicon Valley Santa Clara 
Extension for $25,736,514. In addition, the General Manager requests Board authorization 
to execute a Stipend Agreement with Alstom Signaling Inc. for the amount of $1 ,000,000. 

DISCUSSION: 

In an eff011 to in1prove reliability, maintainability, reduce costs, and increase the frequency of 
trains through the Trans bay Tube (TBT), the Board directed staff to undertake a Train 
Control Modernization Program (TCMP) using Communications Based Train Control 
(CBTC) technology on December 3, 2015. The Board authorized the General Manager to 
issue solicitation documents for a CBTC System using the Design-Build method of 
procurement, pursuant to Public Contract Code Section 22160 et £fill. As discussed further 
below, this led to issuance of the Request for Qualifications and Proposals (RFQ/P) 
for Contract No. 49GH-l 10 on August 17, 2017. 

CBTC technology will replace the existing fixed-block train control system, which has been 
BAR T's method of train control since the commencement of revenue service forty-seven 
years ago. Fixed-block technology is based on traditional signal and track circuit equipment 
to control train movement and relies on widely spaced signal blocks to denote train 



A WARD OF CONTRACT NO. 49GH-l 10 FOR DESIGN-BUILD OF A COMMUNICATIONS BASED TRAIN 
CONTROL SYSTEM (cont.) 

occupancy. This contributes to longer distances between trains, and increased travel times 
and headways. CBTC technology uses communications equipment to niore precisely detect 
a train's location, leading to more efficient train movement, increased reliability, less travel 
time, shorter distances between trains, and decreased headways. These improvements are 
consistent with the overall goals of the TCMP: to achieve a state of good repair, to increase 
core system passenger-carrying capacity, and to improve train control system reliability, 
availability and maintainability. 

On November 19, 2016, the Board adopted the TCMP as one ofBART's four projects 
within the Transbay Corridor Core Capacity Project (TCCCP), a $3.5 billion comprehensive 
and coordinated package of investments funded in part by the Federal Transit 
Administration's (FTA's) Capital Investment Grant program, which will lead to increased 
train ti-equencies between San Francisco and Oakland by more than 36% and increase 
overall capacity by approximately 45%. This will allow BART to operate 28 ten-car trains 
per hom on the Core Capacity Corridor, maximizing throughput in the most heavily used 
part of the BART System. 

The TCMP is exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to 
Public Resources Code Section 21080(b )( 10) which exempts projects that increase 
passenger or commuter services on rail rights of way already in use. 

On September 14, 2017, the FTA concurred with the District's analysis that the TCCCP 
meets the criteria for a National Environmental Protection Act (NEPA) categorical exclusion 
in accordance with 29 CFR Part 771.118 (subsections ( c)(]) power substations and other 
discrete utilities within or adjacent to existing 1ight of way; (c)(5) installation and 
improvement of safety and communication equipment within or adjacent to existing right of 
way; ( c )(7) acquisition of rail cars that can be accommodated by existing facilities or by new 
facilities that qualify for categorical exclusion; and (c)(l2) projects within existing operational 
right of way including transit power substations and transit venting structures.) 

Issuance of Request for Qualifications and Proposals 

Contract No. 49GH-l 10, Design-Build of a CBTC System (CBTC Contract), consists of 
furnishing all 111anagement and technical services including coordination, professional 
services, labor, equipment, materials, safety certification, training and manuals. spare pai1s, 
and other services to perform the design, manufacture, installation, testing and 
commissioning, and handover of the turnkey communications based train control system for 
BART. The Work includes related vehicle carbon1e equipment (310 D-cars ), wayside, 
communications. and Operation Control Center's (OCC's) Automated Train Supervision 
(ATS) Systems work. The Contract perfomrnnce period is expected to be approximately 11 

years from Notice To Proceed. 

On March 13, 2017, the District issued the Advance Notice to Proposers of the District's 



A WARD OF CONTRACT NO. 49GH-l 10 FOR DESIGN-BUILD OF A COMMUNICATIONS BASED TRAIN 
CONTROL SYSTEM (cont.) 

Request for Qualifications and Proposals (RFQ/P) for Contract No. 49GH-l l O and the 
accompanying Contract No. 49GH-120 for Train Control Performance Suppmt Services 
(TCPSS) (that is separately being submitted to the Board for award) to prospective CBTC 
Design-Build Entities. The same Advance Notice was issued to the small business 
community. On March 15, 2017, the District advertised the RFQ/P in the following 
publications: San Francisco Examiner, Inter-City Express, Progressive Railroading, Railway 
Gazette International, and the American Public Transportation Association (APTA) 
newsletter. 

In total throughout the procurement process, the Office of Civil Rights hosted three (3) 
Networking I Matchmaking Sessions for potential Third Parties on March 30, 2017, 
September 6, 2017, and May 30, 2018. 

Due to the vital safety features of the CBTC System, the RFQ/P is designated as a Security 
Sensitive Information (SSI) Contract. Accordingly, prospective firms completed the SSI 
Clearance prior to being issued the RFQ/P Documents on August 17, 2017. 

On October 17, 2017, the District received Qualification Statements from seven (7) Design
Build Entities and commenced its Qualification evaluation. 

The District's Evaluation Committee, chaired by Procurement/Contract Administration, 
included representatives from the Planning, Development, and Construction (PD&C), 
Maintenance and Engineering (M&E), Operations Planning, Rolling Stock and Shops 
(RS&S), Transportation, Risk and Insurance Management, Office of Civil Rights (OCR), 
and Performance and Audit Departments who evaluated the Qualification Statements and the 
Proposals including Best and Final Offers (BAFOs ). 

On January 5, 2018, the General Manager notified the BART Board of Directors of the 
Preliminary Notice of Approved Prequalified Proposers which included Thales Transport & 
Security, Inc. (Thales), Alstom Signaling, Inc. (Alstom), and Ansaldo STS USA, Inc. 
(subsequently known as Hitachi Rail STS USA, Inc. (Hitachi)). The Final Notice of 
Approved Prequalified Proposers was sent to the Prequalified Proposers on May 1, 2018. 

On May 30, 2018, a Pre-Proposal Conference and Site Tour were conducted for Pre
Qualified Proposers and Systems Equipment Installers. 

On March 19, 2019, Technical and Price Proposals were received from Alstom and Hitachi. 
Due to ongoing commitments. Thales chose to withdraw prior to the Proposal Due 
Date. The Evaluation Committee, [ with the addition of representatives from two (2) peer 
agencies]. completed reviews of the Technical and Price Proposals and determined both 
Proposals to be responsive. A series of clarification and negotiations meetings with both 
Alstom and Hitachi were held in June and July 2019. 

Proposal Evaluation Methodology and Criteria 



AWARD OF CONTRACT NO. 49GH-l l0 FOR DESIGN-BUILD OF A COMMUNICATIONS BASED TRAIN 
CONTROL SYSTEM (cont.) 

The RFQ/P required the District to evaluate Proposals based on a best value method of 
procurement to determine the Proposals that are the best value to the District. The best 
value methodology allows the Evaluation Committee to evaluate price in combination with 
other criteria listed below consistent with the Design-Build statute, and in accordance with 
the District's Source Selection Plan (SSP). 

The RFQ/P listed the technical evaluation criteria in the following descending order of 
importance: 

1. Migration Plan. 
2. Systems Performance Analysis. 
3. System Design/ Specifications Compliance. 
4. Management Approach. 
5. Train Control Performance Support Services Approach. 
6. Reliability, Availability and Maintainability (RAM) Analysis. 

The Technical Proposals were rated in accordance with a descriptive method: 1) 
Exceptional, 2) Good, 3) Acceptable, 4) Potential to Become Acceptable, and 5) 
Unacceptable. A proposal would be excluded from .further review if it was rated Potential to 
Become Acceptable or Unacceptable. 

Following the completion of the Technical Proposal Evaluation, those Proposals found to be 
rated Acceptable or better underwent an evaluation of their Price Proposals. Price 
evaluations include a comparison against the Engineer's Estimate for the CBTC Contract. 

Evaluation of Best and Final Offers 

A Modification for a Request for Best and Final Offers (BAFOs) was issued on September 
5, 2019. In response, BAFOs were received on October 22, 2019 from both Alstom and 
Hitachi. 

Both Alstom and Hitachi's BAFO Technical Proposals (for both the CBTC Contract and 
for the TCPSS Contract) were determined to be responsive in that all required forms and 
certifications, including Buy America Ce11ificates, were provided. 

The Evaluation Committee evaluated the BAFO Technical Proposals from Alstom and 
Hitachi as follows: 

Alstom's BAFO Technical Proposals were rated Unacceptable regarding three criteria: 
Management, Migration, and TCPSS. Therefore, in accordance with the Instructions to 
Proposers, Alstom's BAFO Price Proposals were not opened for review. 

Hitachi's BAFO Technical Proposals were rated Good Minus overall. Hitachi provided 



A WARD OF CONTRACT NO. 49GH-l 10 FOR DESIGN-BUILD OF A COMMUNICATIONS BASED TRAIN 
CONTROL SYSTEM (cont.) 

better than acceptable quality Proposals meeting all of the technical evaluation criteria listed 
above, thus instilling confidence of successful Contract performance. Hitachi's BAFO Price 
Proposals were subsequently opened for review. The CBTC BAFO prices are shown 
below. 

Table l - CBTC BAFO Base Proposal Price Plus Allowances and Options 

CBTC BAFO Base 
Proposal Plus Allowances 
CBTC BAFO Option 1 -
Roadway Worker 
Protection Device 
CBTC BAFO Option 2 -

DELETED 
CBTC BAFO Option 3 -

VTAPhaseI 
CBTC BAFO Option 4 -

VTAPhaseII 
CBTC BAFO Base 
Proposal Plus Allowances 
and Options 1, 3, and 4 

Hitachi Price ' Engineer's 
[I Proposal Estimate 

$798,551 ,928 I $851,698,430 

I 

$357,117 

$56,168,590 

$25,736,514 

$880,814,150 $967,448,430 

Difference 

$53,146.502 

$86,634,280 

Hitachi's CBTC BAFO Base Price Proposal is $53,146,502 less than the Engineer's 
Estimate of $851 ,698,430. In addition, Hitachi's CBTC BAFO Price Proposal including 
Options 1, 3, and 4 is $86,634,280 less than the Engineer' s Estimate of $967,448,430. After 
a detailed price evaluation of all BAFO price items contained in the Price Proposal, the 
Evaluation Committee determined Hitachi's CBTC BAFO Price Proposal to be fair and 
reasonable. 

The Evaluation Committee determined that Hitachi's BAFO Technical Proposals and 
approach met the requirements specified in the RFQ/P and that Hitachi is a responsible 
Proposer based on the requirements of the RFQ/P. 

Buy America Compliance 

The CBTC Contract is subject to Buy America provisions required of public transit agencies 
by the FTA. Hitachi submitted both completed Buy America certificates for the CBTC 
Contract indicating compliance as follows: 



AW ARD OF CONTRACT NO. 49GH-l 10 FOR DESIGN-BUILD OF A COMMUNICATiONS BASED TRAIN 
. CONTROL SYSTEM (cont.) 

1. Buy America Certification Requirement for Procurement of Rolling Stock and 
Associated Equipment, at 70% minimum domestic content. 

2. Buy America Certification Requirement for Procurement of Steel, Iron, or 
Manufactured Products, at i 00% domestic content. 

Disadvantaged Business Enterprise 

The Design-Build RFQ/P was advertised pursuant to the District's Disadvantaged Business 
Enterprise (DBE) Program requirements. · The Office of Civil Rights reviewed the scope of 
work for this Contract and detem1ined that there were DBE subcontracting/subconsulting 
opportunities; therefore, a DBE participation goal of 5% was set for this Contract. The 
Proposer, Hitachi, committed to subcontracting 5 .1 % to DB Es. The Office of Civil Rights 
has determined that Hitachi has met the DBE participation goal commitment set for this 
Contract. 

District staff recommends award of the CBTC Contract No. 49GH-l 10 to Hitachi. 

Separately, staff is recommending award of the TCPSS Contract No. 49GH-120 to Hitachi 
be made concurrent with the award of Contract No. 49GH-110. This is discussed in more 
detail on the accompanying EDD for award of Contract No. 49GH-120. 

St~pend Agreement 

The RFQ/P includes a Stipend Agreement in the amount of $1,000,000 to be paid by the 
District under certain stated conditions to the responsive Proposers who were not selected 
for award. If Alstom does not protest the recommended award, it will be entitled to request 
issuance of the $1,000,000 stipend. Staff requests that the Board authorize the General 
Manager to execute the Stipend Agreement with Alstom. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

FUNDING AVAILABLE TO AWARD CBTC CONTRACT NO. 49GH-110 BAFO 
BASE PROPOSAL AND STIPEND AGREEMENT 

Funding of $798,551,928 for award of Contract 49GH-110 is included in the total project 
budget for 49GH, Train Control Modernization Program (TCMP). An additional $1,000,000 
for a Stipend Agreement is also included in the total project budget for 49GH, TCMP. 

Table 2 below lists current funding assigned to the referenced project and is included to 
track funding history against spending authority. Table 3 below lists funding that has been 
programmed, but not yet allocated to, the referenced project. Table 4 below lists funding for 
the referenced project that is pending a Full Funding Grant Agreement (FFGA) with FTA. 



AW ARD OF CONTRACT NO. 49GH- l 10 FOR DESIGN-BUILD OF A COMMUNICATIONS BASED TRAIN 
CONTROL SYSTEM (cont.) 

Funds needed to meet this request will be expended from the following current, programmed 
and pending sources: 

Table 2 - Current Funding 

Federal Funds $19,883,421 
Local $1,035,542 
Measure RR $26,000,000 
BART Funds $11,093,406 
TOTAL $58,012,369 

As of December 12, 2019, $58,012,369 is the current available budget for this project. 
BART has expended $47,479,329, committed $7,683,883, and reserved $0 to date. This 
action will commit $2,849,157 leaving an available fund balance of$0 in these fund sources 
for this project. 

The remaining $795,702,771 will come from a combination of Progran1med and Pending 
funds, as shown in Table 3 and Table 4 below. The $397.240.488 of FT A Capital 
Investment Grant (CIG) funds is anticipated to be programmed as part of a $1.169 billion 
FFGA for the Core Capacity Program (CCP) in the first quarter of calendar year 2020. 

Table 3 - Programmed Funding 

Federal Funds $49,100,000 
TIRCP $318,600,000 
Measure RR $374,000,000 
BART Funds $41,832,374 

TOTAL $783,532,374 

Table 4 - Pending Funding 

FTA CIG Funds $397,240,488 
TOTAL $397,240,488 

This action will authorize the General Manager to commit $798,551,928 with Hitachi for 
CBTC Contract No. 49GH- l 10. contingent upon execution of the FTA CIG FFGA and 
subject to concurrence by the Controller-Treasurer that funding is secured. 



AW ARD OF CONTRACT NO. 49GH-l 10 FOR DESIGN-BUILD OF A COMMUNICATIONS BASED TRAIN 
CONTROL SYSTEM (cont.) 

This action further authorizes the General Manager to execute a Stipend Agreement for 
$1,000,000 with Alstom. 

ADDITIONAL FUTURE FUNDING FOR TCMP 

The District continues to pursue additional funding of approximately $288M from State and 
local sources to fully fund the TCMP Project, excluding the VTA components fully 
described below. Without this funding, the project has sufficient funding to cover Design 
Services During Construction (DSDC), Construction Management (CM), and BART soft 
costs for more than seven years. 

While this additional future funding is not needed to award CBTC Contract No. 49GH-110 
DB BAFO Base Proposal, it is necessary to fully fund DSDC, CM, and BART soft costs 
through completion. Awarding this Contract commits BART to fully implementing the 
TCMP, excluding Option 3 and Option 4. 

These actions are not anticipated to have any Fiscal Impact on unprogrammed District 
reserves. 

FUNDING TO EXERCISE CBTC CONTRACT NO. 49GH-110 OPTION 3 AND 
OPTION 4 

The exercise ofCBTC Contract No. 49GH-l 10 Option 3 for the Silicon VaHey Berryessa 
Extension and Option 4 for the Silicon Valley Santa Clara Extension will be contingent upon 
the Controller-Treasurer certifying that full funding of those Options has been secured from 
the Santa Clara Valley Transportation Authority (VTA). 

ALTERNATIVES: 
Not proceed with award of the Contract at this time and re-advertise the RFQ/P. This 
would entail the loss of up to $318.6 million Transit and Intercity Rail Capital Program 
(TIRCP) ft.mds already awarded to the project and the likely loss of the pending $1.169 
billion FTA ClG grant. The loss of the TIRCP and FTA ClG funds would impact not only 
the TCMP, but also the procurement of Core Capacity Program rail vehicles, construction of 
rail vehicle storage and other improvements at the Hayward Maintenance Complex, and 
construction of Traction Power Substations. Among other things, this will leave the District 
with its existing aging Automatic Train Control System. 

RECOMMENDATION: 
Adoption of the following motions: 



AW ARD OF CONTRACT NO. 49GH- l l O FOR DESIGN-BUILD OF A COMMUNICATIONS BASED TRAIN 
CONTROL SYSTEM (cont.) 

MOTION: 

1. The General Manager is authorized to award Contract No. 49GH-110 for the Design
Build of a Communications Based Train Control System to Hitachi Rail STS USA, 
Inc. for the price of $798,551,928, (including all taxes) upon certification by the 
Controller-Treasurer that funding is available, pursuant to notification to be issued by 
the General Manager and subject to the District's protest procedures and FTA's 
requirements related to protests. The General Manager is further authorized to exercise 
Option 3, Silicon Valley Berryessa Extension, and Option 4, Silicon Valley Santa Clara 
Extension, to Contract No. 49GH-l l 0, for $56,168,590 and $25,736,514, respectively, 
subject to escalation and upon certification by the Controller-Treasurer that funding is 
available. 

2. The General Manager is authorized to execute a Stipend Agreement with Alstom 
Signaling, Inc. in the amount of $1,000,000 subject to compliance with the conditions 
specified in the Request for Qualifications and Proposals, and upon certification by the 
Controller-Treasurer that funding is available. 



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT 

GENERAL MANAGER APPROVAL: GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D: 

BOARD INITIATED ITEM: Yes 

Originator/Prepared by : Scott Van Duss.e Controller/Treasurer District Secretary 

Signature/Date : 

[ l 

! Status: Routed ! Date Created : 12/ 17/2019 

AW ARD OF CONTRACT NO. 49GH-120 FOR TRAIN CONTROL 
PERFORMANCE SUPPORT SERVICES 

PURPOSE: 
To request Board Authorization for the General Manager to award Contract No. 49GH-120 
for Train Control Performance Support Services to Hitachi Rail STS USA, Inc. for the 
amount of $8,630,000 and authorize the General Manager to exercise Option A and Option B 
for two, 5-year extensions for the amount of $3,150,000 each. 

DISCUSSION: 
In an effort to improve reliability, maintainability, reduce costs, and increase the frequency of 
trains through the Trans bay Tube (TBT), the Board directed staff to undertake a Train 
Control Modernization Program (TCMP) using a Communications Based Train Control 
(CBTC) technology on December 3, 2015. The Board authorized the General Manager to 
issue solicitation documents for a CBTC System using the Design-Build method of 
procurement, pursuant to Public Contract Code Section 22160 et ~- As discussed further 
below, this led to issuance of the Request for Qualifications and Proposals (RFQ/P) for 
both Contract No. 49GH-120 for Train Control Performance Support Services (TCPSS) 
and Contract No. 49GH-110 for the Design-Build of a CBTC System on August 17, 2017. 

The TCPSS Contract provides support services to BART to ensure that after the new 
CBTC System is installed, it performs as defined per the CBTC Contract; the District 
efficiently and effectively operates and maintains the CBTC System; the District has a secure 
supply of replacement parts for those supplied under the CBTC Contract; and the District 
has support for modifications (hardware/software) to the CBTC System the District deems 
necessary. The TCPSS Contract is for a term of 10 years, with two 5-year Option 



AW ARD OF CONTRACT NO. 49GH-I20 FOR TRAIN CONTROL PERFORMANCE SUPPORT SERVICES (cont.) 

extensions. 

On March 13, 2017, the District issued the Advance Notice to Proposers of the District's 
RFQ/P to prospective CBTC Design-Build Entities. The same Advance Notice was issued 
to the small business community. On March 15, 2017, the District advertised the RFQ/P in 
the following publications: San Francisco Examiner, Inter-City Express, Progressive 
Railroading, Gazette Rail International, and the American Public Transportation Association 
(APTA) newsletter. 

In total throughout the procurement process, the Office of Civil Rights hosted three (3) 
Networking I Matchmaking Sessions for potential Third Parties on March 30, 2017, 
September 6, 2017, and May 30, 2018. 

Due to the vital safety features of the CBTC System, the RFQ/P is designated as a Security 
Sensitive Information (SSI) Contract. Accordingly, prospective firms completed the SSI 
Clearance prior to being issued the RFQ/P Documents on August 17, 2017. 

On October 17, 2017, the District received Qualification Statements from seven (7) Design
Build Entities and commenced the Qualification evaluation. 

The District's Evaluation Committee, chaired by Procurement/Contract Administration, 
included representatives from the Planning, Development, and Construction (PD&C), 
Maintenance and Engineering (M&E), Operations Planning, Rolling Stock and Shops 
(RS&S), Transportation, Risk and Insurance Management, Office of Civil Rights (OCR), 
and Performance and Audit Departments who evaluated the Qualification Statements and the 
Proposals including Best and Final Offers (BAFOs ). 

On January 5, 2018, the General Manager notified the BART Board of Directors of the 
Preliminary Notice of Approved Prequalified Proposers which included Thales Transport & 
Security, Inc. (Thales), Alstom Signaling, Inc. (Alstom), and Ansaldo STS USA, Inc. 
(subsequently known as Hitachi Rail STS USA, Inc. (Hitachi)). The Final Notice of 
Approved Prequalified Proposers was sent to the Prequalified Proposers on May 1, 2018. 

On May 30, 2018, a Pre-Proposal Conference and Site Tour were conducted for Pre
Qualified Proposers and Systems Equipment Installers. 

On March 19, 2019, Technical and Price Proposals were received from Alstom and Hitachi. 
Due to ongoing commitments, Thales chose to withdraw prior to the Proposal Due 
Date. The Evaluation Committee, [ with the addition of representatives from two (2) peer 
agencies], completed reviews of the Technical and Price Proposals and determined both 
Proposals to be in the Competitive Range. A series of clarification and negotiations 
meetings with both Alstom and Hitachi were held in June and July 2019. 

Proposal Evaluation Methodology and Criteria 



AWARD OF CONTRACT NO. 49GH-120 FOR TRAIN CONTROL PERFORMANCE SUPPORT SERVICES (cont.) 

The RFQ/P required the District to evaluate Proposals based on a best value method of 
procurement to determine the Proposals that are the best value to the District. The best 
value methodology allows the Evaluation Committee to evaluate price in combination with 
other criteria listed below consistent with the Design-Build statute, and in accordance with 
the District's Source Selection Plan (SSP). 

The RFQ/P listed the technical evaluation criteria in the following descending order of 
importance: 

1. Migration Plan. 
2. Systems Performance Analysis. 
3. System Design/ Specifications Compliance. 
4. Management Approach. 
5. Train Control Performance Support Services Approach. 
6. Reliability, Availability and Maintainability (RAM) Analysis. 

The Technical Proposals were rated in accordance with a descriptive method: 1) 
Exceptional, 2) Good, 3) Acceptable, 4) Potential to Become Acceptable, and 5) 
Unacceptable. A proposal would be excluded from the Competitive Range if it was rated 
Potential to Become Acceptable or Unacceptable. 

Following the completion of the Technical Proposal Evaluation, those Proposals found to be 
rated Acceptable or better underwent an evaluation of their Price Proposals. Price 
evaluations include analysis against the Engineer' s Estimates. 

Evaluation of the Best and Final Offers 

A subsequent Modification for a Request for Best and Final Offers (BAFOs) was issued on 
September 5, 2019. In response, BAFOs were received on October 22, 2019 from both 
Alstom and Hitachi 

Both Alstom and Hitachi' s BAFO Technical Proposals (CBTC and TCPSS) were 
determined to be responsive in that all required forms and certifications, were provided. 

· The Evaluation Committee evaluated the BAFO Technical Proposals from Alstom and 
Hitachi as follows: 

Alstom' s BAFO Technical Proposals were rated Unacceptable regarding three criteria: 
Management, Migration, and TCPSS. Therefore, in accordance with the Instructions to 
Proposers, Alstom' s BAFO Price Proposals were not opened for review. 

Hitachi's BAFO Technical Proposals were rated Good Minus overall. Hitachi provided 
better than acceptable quality Proposals meeting all of the technical evaluation criteria listed 



AW ARD OF CONTRACT NO. 49GH-120 FOR TRAIN CONTROL PERFORMANCE SUPPORT SERVICES (cont.) 

above, thus instilling confidence of successful Contract performance. Hitachi's BAFO Price 
Proposals were subsequently opened for review. The TCPSS prices are shown below. 

TCPSS BAFO Base Proposal Price Plus Allowances and Options 

TCPSS BAFO Base 
Proposal Plus Allowances 
(for IO-Year Term) 
TCPSS BAFO Option A 
TCPSS BAFO Option B 
TCPSS BAFO Base 
Proposal Plus Allowances 
and Option A and Option B 

Hitachi Price 
Proposal 

$8,630,000 

$3,150,000 
$3,150,000 
$14,930,000 

Engineer's 
Estimate 

$6,278,918 

$10,499,204 

Difference 

$2,351 ,082 

$4,430,796 

Hitachi's TCPSS BAFO Base Price Proposal is $2,351,082 more than the Engineer's 
Estimate of $6,278,918. In addition, Hitachi's TCPSS BAFO Price Proposal included 
Option A and Option Band is $4,430,796 more than the Engineer's Estimate of 
$10,499,204. After a detailed price evaluation of all BAFO price items contained in the 
BAFO Price Proposal, the Evaluation Committee determined Hitachi's TCPSS BAFO Price 
Proposal to be fair and reasonable. 

The Evaluation Committee determined that Hitachi's BAFO Technical Proposals and 
approach met the requirements specified in the RFQ/P and that Hitachi is a responsible 
Proposer based on the requirements of the RFQ/P. 

Non-Discrimination Program 

Pursuant to the District's Non-Discrimination Program for Subcontracting, the Availability 
Percentages for the TCPSS Contract are 2.2% for Minority Business Enterprises (MBEs) 
and 1.1 % for Women Business Enterprises (WBEs). The Proposer, Hitachi, will not be 
subcontracting any portion of the Work and therefore, the provisions of the District's Non
Discrimination Program for Subcontracting do not apply. 

Small Business Program 

Pursuant to the District's Non-Federal Small Business Program, the Office of Civil Rights 
set a 5% Small Business (SB) Subcontractor Participation Goal for this Contract. 
Proposers who meet the SB Subcontractor Participation Goal are eligible for a Small 
Business Preference of 5% of the lowest responsive Proposer's BAFO with a cap of 
$150,000. The Office of Civil Rights determined that the Proposer, Hitachi, will not be 



AWARD OF CONTRACT NO. 49GH-120 FOR TRAIN CONTROL PERFORMANCE SUPPORT SERVICES (cont.) 

subcontracting any portion of the Work. Hitachi did not meet the SB Subcontractor 
Participation Goal and therefore, is not eligible for the Small Business Preference. 

District staff recommends award of the TCPSS Contract No. 49GH-120 to Hitachi. 

Separately, staff is recommending that award of the CBTC Contract No. 49GH-1 l O to 
Hitachi be made concurrent with the award of the TCPSS Contract No. 49GH-120. This is 
discussed in more detail in the accompanying EDD for award of the Contract No. 49GH-
110. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
FUNDING AVAILABLE TO AW ARD TCPSS CONTRACT NO. 49GH-120 

The TCPSS Contract No. 49GH-120 in the base amount of $8,630,000 over tenyears 
($863,000 per year) starting in Fiscal Year 2027 with two five-year Options (Option A at 
$3,150,000 and Option Bat $3,150,000) will be funded as follows: 

Funds will be budgeted in the Maintenance & Engineering operating budget (Dept 0802851-
M&E Financial Admin, Account 681300-Professional & Technical Svcs) as follows: 

Base Contract 

Proposed Funding 
FY27 $863,000 
FY28 $863,000 
py29 · $863,000 
FY30 $863,000 
FY31 $863,000 
FY32 $863,000 
FY33 $863,000 
FY34 $863,000 
FY35 $863,000 
FY36 $863,000 
TOTAL $8,630,000 

Option A 

Proposed Funding 
FY37 $630,000 
FY38 $630,000 
FY39 $630,000 



AWARD OF CONTRACT NO. 49GH-120 FOR TRAIN CONTROL PERFORMANCE SUPPORT SERVICES (cont.) 

FY40 $630,000 
FY41 $630,000 
TOTAL $3,150,000 

OptionB 

Proposed Funding 
FY42 $630,000 
FY43 $630,000 
FY44 $630,000 
FY45 $630,000 
FY46 $630,000 
TOTAL $3,150,000 

Funding for this maintenance agreement from FY27 to FY 46 will be included in the 
proposed annual Operating Budget, which is subject to Board approval. 

This action is not anticipated to have any Fiscal Impact on unprogrammed District reserves 
in the current Fiscal Year. 

ALTERNATIVES: 
Not proceed with award of the Contract at this time and re-advertise the RFQ/P for the 
TCPSS. This would result in the District assuming responsibility for support of the new 
CBTC System without the participation of the CBTC System Supplier. In addition, the 
District would lose the support of the Supplier in providing replacement parts for the CBTC 
System which would likely increase the District's costs for replacement parts. 

RECOMMENDATION: 
Adoption of the following motion: 

MOTION: 
The General Manager is authorized to award Contract No. 49GH-120 for Train Control 
Performance Support Services to Hitachi Rail STS USA, Inc. for the price of $8,630,000, 
(including all taxes) subject to escalation, and subject to the District's protest procedures. 
The General Manager is further authorized to exercise Option A and Option B to Contract 
No. 49GH-120, for two 5-year extensions for $3,150,000 each, subject to escalation, and 
upon certification by the Controller-Treasurer that funding is available. 



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT 

GENERAL MANAGER APPROVAL: 

Originator/Prepared by: Abigail Thorne

Lyman 

Dept: Systems Development 

--;-7.,.,, ...-:-0 

Signature/Date: ~~/ 
11/; \It tt 

Status: Routed 

GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D: 
No 

BOARD INITIATED ITEM: No 

Controller/Treasurer District Secretary 

~ [ l 

Date Created: 12/18/2019 

Berkeley MOU for Transit Oriented Development at Ashby and North Berkeley 
stations 

PURPOSE: 
To authorize the General Manager to execute a Memorandum of Understanding between 
BART and the City of Berkeley to advance Transit Oriented Development (TOD) at the 
North Berkeley and Ashby BART stations. 

DISCUSSION: 

Background 
On May 9, 2019, the Berkeley City Council unanimously voted to enter into a Memorandum 
of Understanding (MOU) with BART to collaborate on development at the North Berkeley 
BART Station, to advance zoning of the property, and set goals and objectives for the 
property (Attachment 1 ). 

Since that time, BART and City officials have collaborated on development of an MOU 
addressing development at both the North Berkeley and Ashby Stations. The MOU 
establishes a process by which the City and BART may: 

1. Identify a shared vision and priorities for development at both stations, and set forth 
the steps needed to pursue the vision and priorities; 

2. Clarify the processes that the parties will pursue to address the development activities 
and timelines; and 

3. Provide greater clarity for all parties, including members of the public, on the steps, 



MOU for TOD at Ashby and North Berkeley Stations 

timelines, roles and responsibilities needed to initiate development of TOD on the 
BART properties at both Stations. 

On December 10, 2019 the Berkeley City Council unanimously approved the proposed 
MOU. It was understood by the City Council that BART Board approval of the MOU is 
also required. 

Station Property Context 

The Ashby Station is located under Adeline Street in South Berkeley, perpendicular to 
Ashby Avenue with Adeline separating two parcels with a combined area of 6.3 acres and 
encompassing 603 parking spaces. The City retains an option to the air rights over the west 
parcel. The City has released its draft Adeline Corridor Specific Plan and EIR which 
establishes goals for the Ashby BART parcels (Attachment 2). 

The North Berkeley BART Station sits on approximately 8.1 acres in residential Northwest 
Berkeley and includes three parking areas with a total of 753 spaces. The North Berkeley 
BART site is currently zoned U-Unclassified in the City Zoning Code, meaning it currently 
has no specifically zoned use. 

Relationship to State Law 
The California Government Code, as amended by AB 2923, requires local jurisdictions to 
conform with BART's TOD Zoning Standards by July 1, 2022. At the June 16, 2019 BART 
Board meeting, BART staff indicated that at this time, BART would not set TOD Zoning 
Standards by the Bill's stated July 1, 2020 deadline, with the intent that, by action of the 
statute, BAR T's 2017 TOD Guidelines would become the Zoning Standards for the 
properties. BART staff are developing a guidance document and 1 o:. Year TOD work plan 
for discussion by the Board in mid-2020. 

The City of Berkeley is aware of its obligation to rezone the Station properties to conform 
with AB 2923 by July 1, 2022 and has allocated funds to support rezoning of both 
properties by mid-2021. BART's urban design and land use planning consultants are using 
BART's North Berkeley property as one of several study areas to provide local jurisdictions 
guidance on how to address some of the physical and regulatory aspects of the legislation. 

Summary of Key Terms in the MOU 
The MOU establishes a process for the City and BART to identify a shared v1s1on and 
priorities, clarify activities and timelines, and identify roles and responsibilities needed to 
advance TOD at the North Berkeley and Ashby BART Stations in advance of AB 2923 
timelines. While the City has a process for zoning and entitlements, and BART has a 
process for development of its properties, this MOU identifies in broad terms how these 
processes will work together. 

The key terms of the agreement include: 



MOU for TOD at Ashby and North Berkeley Stations 

• Scope of Agreement: The MOU addresses potential development of the Ashby BART 
parcels and the North Berkeley main parking lot. The parties will consider 
modifications or enhancements to North Berkeley auxiliary BART lots, city streets and 
other surroundings in order to support TOD at those stations. 

• Community Engagement: The City of Berkeley will form a Community Advisory Group 
for both stations to facilitate community input on site master planning and zoning at the 
Stations. While there may be distinct concepts and requirements for each station site, 
the CAG will advise the City Planning Commission on zoning that conforms with AB 
2923. The CAG will also provide input to the City and BART as the parties establish a 
joint vision and priorities document that will be incorporated into eventual Requests for 
Proposal/Requests for Qualifications for potential developers. 

• Zoning: At its own expense, the City of Berkeley will rezone both properties by June 
2021 ( one year in advance of AB 2923 July 2022 deadline). 

• AB 2923: At its own expense, BART will provide an AB 2923 guidance document 
draft by February 2020 and a final document by July 2020. 

• Funding for Affordable Housing: The City of Berkeley will make a decision on set
aside of funding sufficient to assure BART, in its sole discretion that, pending further 
definition of zoning and site capacity, at least 35% of the housing units proposed to be 
constructed at both sites would be deed-restricted to low, very low and/or extremely 
low affordable housing by December 2020. 

• Developer Solicitation: BART's IO-year work plan will set out criteria for prioritizing 
development sites. If the City of Berkeley commits funding by December 2020, 
together with its commitment to complete rezoning of the properties by June 2021, 
BART' s I 0-Y ear TOD Work Plan will place the Ashby and North Berkeley Stations 
higher on the list for initiating joint development (i.e. before 2025). 

• Station Access: Per AB 2923 requirements and BART practice, BART will fund and 
complete an access study to address parking replacement and encourage multimodal 
access alternatives to driving alone. The timeline will depend on the Developer 
solicitation timing for each station, and the Developer may reimburse BART for the 
cost of the study. 

. • Increased City Involvement in the Solicitation Process: The City and BART will meet in 
December 2020 to I ) determine whether the City has approved a set-aside of sufficient 
funding to meet the 35% affordable housing minimum for each station; 2) negotiate 
possible additional City participation in the solicitation processes; and 3) agree upon 
the timing of the developer solicitations for the BART Properties in December 2020. 

If this motion is approved, City and BART staff will fmalize and execute the MOU. The 
Office of the General Counsel will approve the MOU as to form. 

Community Feedback to Date: 
BART staff have participated in public meetings on this topic throughout the last two years. 
Attendance at these meetings has been high. From these meetings, several unresolved issues 



MOU for TOD at Ashby and North Berkeley Stations 

have emerged that must be explored in future BART and City activities throughout 2020 and 
beyond, including: · 

1. Affordable housing 
2. Station access and parking 
3. "Right to Stay, Right to Return" for residents and businesses, including the Ashby Flea 

Market 
4. High quality urban design 

FISCAL IMP ACT: 
This action is not anticipated to have any Fiscal Impact on unprogrammed District 
reserves in the current Fiscal Year. Current BART Planning & Development staff time 
will be involved in the implementation of the activities established in the MOU throughout 
FY2020 and FY2021. AB 2923 activities referenced in the MOU were fully funded in the 
FY2019 Budget. BART will not advance the station access study without a future allocation 
of additional funds which may include an external grant or reimbursement from a future 
developer of the properties. BART is not responsible for costs associated with the zoning of 
the properties or the Community Advisory Group. 

ALTERNATIVES: 
Do not pursue the MOU. This action would result in a missed opportunity to advance a 
TOD, improve access and bring new riders and revenue to the District. 

RECOMMENDATION: 
Adoption of the following motion: 

MOTION: 
The General Manager or his designee is hereby authorized to execute the Memorandum of 
Understanding with the City of Berkeley to cooperatively pursue TOD and the 
implementation of Assembly Bill 2923 at the Ashby and North Berkeley BART Stations. 



Attachment 1 

North Berkeley BART Development Goals and Objectives 

(Approved unanimously by the Berkeley City Council on May 9, 2019) 

State law (AB 2923, Chiu) passed in 2018 requires the San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit 
District (BART) to develop transit-oriented development (TOD) zoning standards for each BART 
station, establishing minimum local zoning requirements for height, density, parking, and floor 
area ratio by July 1, 2020. 

Prior to the enactment of AB 2923, the Berkeley City Council initiated a community process to 
explore the potential for transit-oriented development at the North Berkeley BART station. 
Creating homes at the North Berkeley BART parking lots will help the City of Berkeley address the 
shortage of affordable homes; reduce vehicle miles traveled and meet our climate change goals; 
and improve the livability of the surrounding neighborhood through the creation of green open 
space, pedestrian and bicycle infrastructure improvements; and possible small-scale community, 
non-profit, and/or retail uses. 

AB 2923 requires local jurisdictions like Berkeley to adopt a local zoning ordinance that conforms 
to BART TOD zoning standards. 

While the Berkeley City Council voted at its May 29, 2018 meeting to oppose AB 2923, the City 
Council recognizes that we now have an obligation to comply with the law. The Council is seeking 
to comply as soon as possible with AB 2923 for the purposes of developing the North Berkeley 
BART station in order to ensure that the community has a meaningful opportunity to engage with 
BART on how the site is developed. 

At the same time, the Berkeley City Council acknowledges the unique neighborhood 
characteristics of each BART station and expresses its intent to incorporate a station-specific 
design that is sensitive to the existing single-family (R-1) and two-family (R-2) residential zoning 
directly adjacent to the North Berkeley BART station. 

The City of Berkeley seeks to enter into a Memorandum of Understanding with BART that 
enumerates, among other terms, the following goals and objectives for development: 

Community Input 

A Community Advisory Committee shall be created for the purposes of providing input to the 
City's Planning Commission as it considers City and BART TOD zoning standards. 

The planning process will engage the community in order to ensure that the site reflects the 
community's values for equity, sustainability, and sense of place. In particular, community input 

should be considered for: 

• The number/percentage of affordable housing units and populations to be served, 
including the possibility of a 100% affordable project 



• The size, height, scale, spacing, and setbacks of buildings, and their responsiveness to the 
neighborhood 

• The inclusion of green and open spaces 

• The possibility of limited, small-scale community, non-profit, and retail space to serve the 
immediate neighborhood 

• Exploration of whether it's appropriate to include small-scale community, non-profit, 
and/or retail space to serve the immediate neighborhood, whether any parking should be 
provided for such uses, and consideration of the tradeoff of foregone housing units 

• Access options, including traditional modes such as public transit, taxis and private 
vehicles, active modes such as biking, walking and scooters, emerging modes such as car 
share, ride share, driverless cars, etc., and access for the disabled and mobility impaired 

• Green and sustainable features 

Station Access 
BART, the City of Berkeley, and a future developer(s) will address station access. Specifically, 
Section 29010.G(h) of AB 2923 requires BART -in cases in which commuter parking is reduced as 
a result of a TOD project-to develop and fund an access plan that maintains station access for 
at least the number of customers affected by the reduced number of commuter parking spaces, 
with specific consideration for customers who live further than one-half mile from the station. A 
station access plan for implementation will seek to explore feasible and effective alternatives to 
individuals driving to and parking at the station, such as reserved parking spaces for carpools and 
car-share vehicles, ride-share, enhanced bus/shuttle service, additional electric-assist bikes and 
scooters, among other alternatives. We will also consider limiting or eliminating parking for 
residential and/or potential community, non-profit, or retail uses in order to maximize parking 
availability for commuters. We note that the station access plan should take into account the 
rapid evolution of mobility trends and technologies and consider the adaptability of the plan to 
future mobility patterns. Further, we intend to conduct a traffic study to help determine the 
number of parking spaces that are needed at the site, including reserved spaces for people with 
disabilities. 

In light of Berkeley's long tradition of leadership on issues related to the disabled and mobility 
impaired, access at the North Berkeley BART station should be first in its class, including 
consideration for access to and from the station itself, within the station, and to and from the 
BART platform. 

All traditional modes should be considered : public transit, taxis, carpools and cars; all active 
modes including walking, biking and scooters; all emerging modes including car share, ride share, 
van pools and driverless vehicles; and all modes of accessibility for the disabled. 

Affordability 
Maximize the number of affordable below-market-rate units that are available to low-income 
households of diverse types and sizes, including affordable live/work units for artists. We seek 
to exceed BART's 35% system-wide affordability goal by aiming for a high number of affordable 



units-to potentially be funded by local, state, and regional funding sources. In order to ensure 
housing for a range of income levels, we will consider inclusionary below-market-rate units and 
engagement of an affordable housing developer to develop a fully affordable building. 

We will seek to support the creation of local jobs through a project labor agreement for 
construction of the development. 

We will engage in a community dialogue that is positive, productive, and thoughtful in regards to 
community benefits and financial feasibility. 

Livability 
Enhance the livability of the neighborhood surrounding the North Berkeley BART station. The 
site should create a visual and physical connection with the neighborhood through its 
architectural design, height, and scale. In particular, we seek a development that considers the 
character and context of the neighborhood and steps down in height around the perimeter of 
the station (with consideration for the varying width of streets around the station) in order to 
blend in visually and physically with the residential neighborhood. Such a design honors a 
common theme of many of the designs submitted as part of the October 2018 visioning event. 
We also seek reasonable spacing between buildings, setbacks, and plantings at the perimeter of 
the station . 

The inclusion of green open space should serve as an amenity that enhances the neighborhood's 
sense of place. 

The streetscape design should strive to minimize neighborhood traffic and congestion impacts 
and support safe access to the station for bicyclists and pedestrians. Transportation demand 
management and other best practices should be used to reduce traffic and parking impacts in 
the surrounding neighborhood. 

Environmental Sustainability 
Reflect the City's commitment to reducing our carbon footprint in every possible way. All 
buildings should strive to: incorporate all-electric designs, achieve Zero Net Energy, and reduce 
parking for residents and retail to the maximum extent possible. 

To ensure universal access, regard less of age or ability, Universal Design should be considered 
for all elements of housing and of all other private and public spaces. 



3.7 ASHBY BART 
Future development within the Ashby 
BART subarea shall provide public space, 
community-oriented facilities, and affordable 
housing, consistent with the objectives, 
parameters, and process outlined in the 
Adeline Corridor Specific Plan. 

The Ashby BART Station is one of the most prominent land marks and 
amenities along the Adeline Corridor, with the potential to support 
and advance all five key topic areas addressed in this Plan - land use, 
housing, economic opportunity, transportation, and public space. 

As stated in Chapter 2, the Ashby BART subarea is envisioned to be 
redeveloped as a vibrant neighborhood center with high-density 
mixed-use development that unifies and knits back together the east 
and west sides of Adeline Street. The Ashby BART development will be 

Attachment 2 

. 
: 

' i 

a model for sustainable transit-oriented development, incorporating high levels of affordable housing 
and complementary commercial and civic uses; public space for community gatherings, special events, 
and civic celebrations; and green construction. 

The Plan lays the groundwork for future engagement with the community and BART by outlining key 
objectives that apply to future development and describing a process for evaluating development 
proposals for these sites. Future development in the Ashby BART subarea shall be consistent with the 
seven objectives below, which shall be incorporated into any future master plan and development 
agreements with potential developers. 

OBJECTIVE 1. AFFORDABLE HOUSING. For any future development in the BART subarea, at least 50% 
of the total housing units produced should be comprised of deed-restricted affordable housing, which 
could also include supportive services or other spaces associated with the affordable housing. This 

1'he Ashby BART Station 

3 - 22 ADELINE CORRIDOR SPECIFIC PLAN PUBLIC REVIEW DRAFT MAY 2019 



goal for at least 50% affordable housing at a 
range of income levels (e.g. Extremely Low, Very 
Low, Low and Moderate) would be calculated 
across the entire Ashby BART subarea and 
could be accomplished through multiple phases 
of development. Any future development 
agreement should commit to deliver at least 
this level of affordable housing, and provide a 
plan to do so. Amounts of affordable housing 
exceeding 50% of the total square footage and 
number of units are encouraged. 

OBJECTIVE 2. PUBLIC SPACE. Any future 
development shall include one or more publicly 
accessible spaces incorporated onto the 
development parcels within the Ashby BART 
subarea. The public space could potentially be 
provided as plazas, green space, pedestrian 
paseos, rooftop patios, flexible event space, 
or other pedestrian-accessible spaces that are 
open to the public. Incorporating elements 
of "green infrastructure" in these elements is 
highly encouraged (See Chapter 7). 

Future redevelopment of the Ashby BART west 
parking lot shall incorporate a large civic plaza 
that could be designed and programmed to
accommodate the Berkeley Flea Market and 
pote11tially a relocated Farmers Market, as well 
as support the Juneteenth Festival and other 
music and entertainment events. This space 
could include dedicated flexible space on the 
site and/or in a nearby location such as on 
Adeline Street. The space shall be designed with 
the general and specific needs of the Flea Market 
and Farmers Market, as well as allow flexibility 
for other programming such as the Juneteenth 
Festival, music and entertainment, civic events, 
or other public uses - at different times of the 
week or in complementary locations. This could 
include dedicated flexible space on the site or in 
a nearby location such as on Adeline Street. 

OBJECTIVE 3. ADDITIONAL DEVELOPMENT 
PARAMETERS. The following general 
development parameters will be further refined 
as implementation steps of this Specific Plan: 

PUBLIC REVIEW DRAFT MAY 2019 

CHAPTER 3: LAND USE 

Building Height. To achieve the affordable 
housing goal, climate action goals and maximize 
community benefits from development of public 
land, high density mixed-use development is 
envisioned that are generally up to four to seven 
stories. The City will continue to coordinate with · 
BART as it refines development parameters as 
part of implementation of Assembly Bill 2923. 
In general, development fronting on Adeline 
Street and Ashby Avenue should "step down" or 
transition to lower heights where development 
fronts on Martin Luther King Jr. Way, Woolsey, 
Tremont and Essex Streets. 

Ground-Floor Uses. As noted in Policy 3.1, the 
following types of uses shall be required for 
ground floor uses for the Ashby BART subarea: 

Adeline Street frontage: Ground floor retail 
or active commercial use required. 

CITY OF BERKELEY 3-23 



Ashby Avenue frontage: Ground floor 
commercia l use required . 

Martin Luther King Jr. Way: Residential or 
commercial use allowed on ground floor. 

Tremont, Woolsey and Fairview Streets: 
Residential or commercial use allowed on 
ground floor. 

Additional Land Uses. Additional land uses 
that would be encouraged in the Ashby BART 
area include the following: 

Potential space for a new African American 
Holistic Resource Center (see Chapter 5 for 
more information) 

Ground floor retail, restaurants and family
oriented entertainment; 

Affordable space for neighborhood non
profits 

Small, affordable workspaces 

Universally-accessible community event and 
recreation space, or performance venues. 

OBJECTIVE 4. PUBLIC ART. Future 
redevelopment should maximize opportunities 
to incorporate permanent and/or temporary 
public art insta llations that celebrate 
neighborhood history, cultural heritage and 
identity (see Chapters 2, 5 and 7 for more 
information). 

OBJECTIVE 5. PEDESTRIAN AND BICYCLE 
CONNECTIONS. Future development should 
include pedestrian and bicycle connections that 
serve users of all abilities and ages. Development 
of the west parking lot should incorporate the 
following key bicycle connections at minimum, 
consistent with the City of Berkeley Bike Plan 
and as described in the Transportation Chapter 
of this Plan: 

Connection of the Woolsey/Prince bicycle 
bou levard facility across the Ashby site 

Provision of an off-street/protected bicycle 
facility along Adeline Street between Ashby 
and the intersection with MLKJr. Way. 

3 - 24 ADELINE CORRIDOR SPECIFIC PLAN 

Ownership of land can be divided into rights on 
the surface, subsurface (i.e. mining or mineral 
rights) and air rights. The City of Berkeley 
acquired air rights over both parking lots at 
Ashby BART Stiltion bilck in 1966 after the voters 
approved undergrounding the BART lines. In 
1999, the City executed a contract with the Ed 
Roberts Campus to assign the City's option 
to the air rights over the eastern Ashby BART 
parking lot (the current Ed Roberts Campus 
site and the remainder parking lot behind it), 
to facilitate development of the Ed Roberts 
Campus. An agreement between the City and 
the Ed Roberts Campus in 2008 confirmed that 
the City assigned the air rights over the eastern 
BART parking lot to the Ed Roberts Campus, but 
the City still retained the option over the western 
BART parking lot. The air rights generally refer 
to the space starting 10 feet above the average 
finished grade location. 

OBJECTIVE6.PARKINGANDTRANSPORTATION 
DEMAND MANAGEMENT. Any future 
development must include aggressive and 
innovative Transportation Demand Management 
strategies to reduce demand for parking and 
single-use automobile trips (See Chapter 6). 
Consistent with BART Transit-Oriented Design 
Guidelines and the City's Climate Action Plan, 
any future mixed-use development shall 
provide parking at ratio not to exceed 0.5 
spaces/residential unit and 1.6 spaces per 
1000 sqft of commercial space. Because of the 
urban environment of the station, replacement 
parking for BART patrons can be provided at 
a ratio of 0.5 spaces/per existing space or less 
while access improvements are incorporated 
to offset the loss of parking and ride spaces 
and offe r viable non-auto alternatives to BART 
patrons. 

OBJECTIVE 7. PROCESS ANO ENGAGEMENT. 
Because of the importance of the BART site both 
to'the success of the proposed housing strategy 
and to the overall character of the neighborhood, 
any development process should include a 

PUBLIC REVIEW DRAFT MAY 2019 



deliberate and extensive community decision 
making process. The City will work with BART 
to complete a planning process which includes 
a Station Area Advisory Group or similar body 
comprised primarily of representatives of local 
stakeholder organizations. This stakeholder 
group should participate in decisions regarding 
the site requirements to be included in any 
Request for Proposals (RFP). In addition, any RFP 
that is issued for development at the BART site 
will outline specific requirements that a selected 
developer continue to invest in proactive 
community engagement throughout the 
development process and to identify appropriate 
additional community benefits as part of the 
project design process. A development team's 
proven track record of managing this kind of 
community engagement/community benefits 
process will be one criteria for selection. The 
local community should continue to be closely 
involved in development of these key public 
sites. Chapter 4 (Housing Affordability) includes 
additional information and considerations for 
future phasing, funding, programming, and 
affordable housing strategies for the Ashby 
BART area. 

PUBLIC REVIEW DRAFT MAY 2019 

CHAPTER 3: LAND USE 

CITY OF BERKELEY 3 - 25 



SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: DATE: January 3, 2020 

FROM: 

Board of Directors 

General Manager 

SUBJECT: El Cerrito Plaza Transit Oriented Development (TOD) Update 

At the January 9, 2019 Board meeting, BART Staff will provide an update on the El Cerrito Plaza Transit 
Oriented Development Request for Qualifications (RFQ) process, with a focus on the Goals & Objectives for 
the development. The future development relates back to the BART and City of El Cerrito Memorandum 
of Understanding (MOU) which the BART Board authorized in September 2016. 

As background, on November 19, 2019, the El Cerrito City Council provided feedback on the draft TOD 
Goals and Objectives. Staff refined the Goals and Objectives given the City Counci l feedback and 
additional staff input (Attachment 1). 

Additionally, at the November 19 meeting, City Council adopted a Resolution to: 
1) Request the evaluation of a potential City library (to be funded by the City of E l Cerrito) to be 

included in BART's Request for Qual ifications (RFQ). 
2) Support the District' s inclusion of Sustainable Access Studies and Strategies in the TOD process. 

Leading up to the Board meeting and the forthcoming release of the RFQ, BART staff have conducted 
extensive outreach, including 

• Participation in the February 5, 2019 E l Cerrito City Council meeting 
• Participation in the July 27 and 29, 2019 City San Pablo Avenue Specific Plan Update meetings 
• Held an in-station Open House about future TOD at El Cerrito Plaza BART on August 14, 2019 
• Held a workshop on Thursday, October 3, 2019 to update the community on access conditions 

and the RFQ process 
• Participation in the November 19, 2019 City Council meeting. 

If you have further questions, please feel free to contact Val Menotti, Chief Planning & Development Officer 
at 510-287-4794. 

Attachments 

cc: Board Appointed Officers 
General Manager 
Executive Staff 



A. Complete Communities 

BART El Cerrito Plaza Transit-Oriented Development 

PRELIMINARY DRAFT Goals and Objectives 

For El Cerrito City Council Review - November 19, 2019 

1. Regularly engage with the community in the development of the project and associated access investments, 

and trade-offs between parking, housing and community amenities. 
2. Enhance the Ohlone Greenway's role in increasing connectivity, sustainability and placemaking. 

3. Create visual and physical connection between the BART station, adjacent neighborhoods, and 

shopping/services in El Cerrito Plaza, and along San Pablo Avenue and Fairmount Avenue. 

4. Create active ground floor on Fairmount Avenue, with a mix of uses that complements and leverages the 

surrounding area. 

5. City to manage area parking-with BART's support - to ensure neighborhood and business needs can be 

met. 

6. Explore options for integrating public library into the TOD in partnership with City. 

B. Sustainable Communities Strategy 
1. Deliver community serving facilities and dense residential mid-rise uses at the station to support envisioned 

growth in the "San Pablo Avenue Corridor" Priority Development Area and the San Pablo Avenue Specific Plan. 

2. Address the regional housing need while simultaneously helping the City put in place transportation 

management tools to avoid potential congestion and traffic impacts of population growth. 

3. Incorporate green and sustainable design to minimize vehicle- and building-related greenhouse gas emissions. 

C. Ridership 
1. Increase BART ridership at times and locations when BART has capacity. 

2. Attract BART patrons from the larger San Pablo Avenue Specific Plan area and beyond through 

sustainable access alternatives. 

D. Value Creation & Value Capture 
1. Deliver a feasible development that generates long term revenue to support BART operations. 
2. Participate in future area-wide financing efforts (such as a developer supported set up of a parking benefit 

district, enhanced infrastructure financing district or business district) to capture value changes resulting from 

TOD to support community amenities and other investments. 

3. Leverage innovative third-party funding and financing options that deliver TOD-related BART infrastructure 

and programming. 

E. Transportation Choice 
1. Per BART's Access Policy, increase the share of patrons who walk, bike, or take transit to BART through 

access improvements that offer safe 1 viable non-auto alternatives to BART patrons, including accessible 

demand responsive services. 

2. Minimize the need for BART patron parking replacement in an on-site garage by maximizing the use of 

existing available parking capacity in close proximity to the station and exploring other parking and access 

options for patrons who do not live near the station. 

3. Per BART's TOD Policy, develop an Access Plan to identify future access needs and strategies. 

4. Enable new residents of the development to reduce their reliance on cars by providing transportation 

alternatives through GreenTRIP certification or equivalent. 

5. Expand the pedestrian and bicycle network - particularly connecting to the Ohlone Greenway - to support the 

City and BART's active transportation goals. 
6. Embrace the rapid evolution of mobility trends and technologies to adapt to future transportation needs. 

F. Affordability 
1. Minimum of 20% of housing units will be affordable to low and very-low income households or below, and 

support BART's 35% systemwide affordability goal by aiming for a higher percentage of affordable units. 

2. Support local economy through project labor agreements for construction of project . Aim for Small Business 

Enterprise inclusion in design and construction of the TOD. 



SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: Board of Directors DATE: January 3, 2020 

FROM: General Manager 

SUBJECT: PPAAL Agenda Item: Update on BART and VTA Phase I- For Information 

At the Board of Directors meeting on January 9, 2020, the BART Silicon Valley Berryessa 
Extension (SVBX) Phase I, will be presented for information. 

If you have any questions, please contact Carl Holmes at (510) 464-7592. 

cc: Board Appointed Officers 
Deputy General Manager 
Executive Staff 



SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: Board of Directors DATE: January 3, 2020 

FROM: General Manager 

SUBJECT: Consent Calendar Guidelines 

Attached are proposed revisions to the existing Guidelines for Consent Calendar Items. The 
revisions increase the dollar limit for items that can be placed on the consent agenda and remove 
the requirement that only items meeting DBE goals can be considered. 

The proposed changes are shown on the attached Resolution in redline/strikeout form. If approved, 
a new Resolution incorporating those changes would supersede the existing Resolution 5193. 

cc: Board Appointed Officers 
Deputy General Manager 
Associate General Counsel 
Executive Staff 



BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID 

TRANSIT DISRICT 

In the Matter of Establishing 
Guidelines for Consent Calendar 
Items Which are Referred Directly 
To the Board of Directors __ _ Resolution No. 5193 

WHEREAS, on January 13, 2000, the Board of Directors of the San Francisco Bay Area Rapid 

Transit District adopted rules which modified the existing Regular Board Meeting and 

Committee Meeting schedules wh ich are Intended to streamline the administration of the 

business of the District, and 

WHEREAS, it is the continued desire of the Board to make the most productive use of its time 

by focusing on pol icy issues and other matters of major importance to the District, and 

WHEREAS, the Board wishes to further facilitate the business of the District by eliminating the 

need for routine matters to be presented first to one of the Committees of the Board and then 

again to the fu ll Board at a regular or special meeting, and 

WHEREAS, the Board desires to establish a process whereby routine items of District business 

will be referred directly to the Board as part of the regular Consent Calendar without first being 

presented to a Committee of the Board, and 

WHEREAS, it continues to be the policy of the Board that any Board member shall be allowed 

to remove an item of business from the Consent Calendar upon his/her request, 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board hereby establishes the following guidelines 

for items of routine District business which shall be referred directly to the Board for action on a 

Consent Calendar without first being presented to a Committee of the Board : 

1. Awards of construction contracts or contracts for the procurement of supplies, 
equipment and materials when the amount of the contract award is less than 
$5~,000,000 and any applicable DBE goals of the District's DBE program or any 
applicable a'lailability percentages of the District's nondiscrimination programs ha'le 
been achie'led. 

Adopted May 24, 2012 



2. Awards of service agreements (including professional, technical , maintenance and repair 
agreements) and lease of license agreements for District use of real property, facilities , 
equipment and software when the amount of such agreement is less than $ij2_.QQO ,OOO 
and any applicable DBE goals of the District's DBE program or any applicable 
a11ailability percentages of the District's nondiscrimination programs have been 
achie11ed. 

3. Routine insurance matters. 
4. Routine real estate matters such as disposal of remnant parcels or leases of District 

property for periods of three years or less. 
5. Reports of Compliance with Environmental Mitigation and Monitoring Plans. 
6. Quarterly Financial Reports (internal) . 
7. Quarterly Audit Reports (Internal) . 
8. Annual District financial audits (external audit) and Directors' audits. 
9. Routine personnel matters including commencing recruitment and relocation efforts for 

District positions and hiring executive search firms. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that prior to the Board Meetings, written information on the 

foregoing matters shall be mailed to the Board in accordance with established schedules and 

procedures, and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that Board members are encouraged to notify the District Secretary 

in advance of the Board Meeting if they wish to have items removed from the Consent Calendar 

so that the Secretary can notify the Board President in advance as time permits, and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that these matters shall be itemized on the Board Agenda and 

Calendar of Business under a separately listed Consent Calendar as the first item of business, 

and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that any matter which requires a vote of more than a simple 

majority of the Board shall not be placed on the Board Consent Calendar, and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that nothing herein supercedessupersedes any authority 

previously or hereafter delegated to the General Manager or other staff to act with respect to 

District business under any statute, Board Rule, Board Resolution or Board Motion. 

### 





BART Office of the Chief Information Officer – Travis Engstrom x6837 0


The BART Digital Railway


Commercial Telecommunications Revenue


January 9, 2020


BART Office of the Chief Information Officer







BART Office of the Chief Information Officer 1


Background


• 2017 – SFMTA Communications 
Agreement


• 2017 – Public Request for Proposals


• 2018 – Board Authorized an Exclusive 
Negotiating Agreement (ENA)


• 2019 – Negotiations Complete







BART Office of the Chief Information Officer 2


4 Commercial Projects


SFMTA 


Underground 


Cellular


BART


Station


Wireless


BART


Wayside


Wireless


BART & SFMTA


Fiber Optic


Cable


1 2 3 4







BART Office of the Chief Information Officer – Travis Engstrom x6837 3


Project 1:


SFMTA 


Underground 


Cellular 


Coverage







BART Office of the Chief Information Officer – Travis Engstrom x6837 4


Project 2:


Station


Wireless







BART Office of the Chief Information Officer – Travis Engstrom x6837 5


Project 3:


Wayside 


Wireless







BART Office of the Chief Information Officer 6


Project 3: Wayside Wireless


A


B


C


D


E


F


Cellular


Future BART Use


BART Wayside WiFi


Radio Bay 1


Radio Bay 2


Power/Switch Bay


A A


B
B


C
C


D
D


E
E


F


F







BART Office of the Chief Information Officer – Travis Engstrom x6837 7


Project 4:


Commercial 


Fiber Optic 


Cable







BART Office of the Chief Information Officer 8


Financials


Over Initial 20-Year Term


Anticipated Revenue to the District $243,100,000


Minimum Guarantee payments $26,700,000


Technology Improvement Reserve $10,000,000


Anticipated Capital Expenditure $48,200,000







BART Office of the Chief Information Officer 9


Additional Infrastructure


• WiFi in Stations


• Wireless Network for Fleet of the Future


• Additional Capacity for Future Equipment


• 72 Strands of new Fiber Optic Cable







BART Office of the Chief Information Officer 10


Project Coordination


• Common needs for power, data and 
mounting locations. 


• Coordination Benefits: Communications 
Based Train Control (CBTC), Advertising 
Franchise Digital Signage, & various other 
radio, network and Internet of Things (IoT) 
initiatives.







Contract Schedule


BART Office of the Chief Information Officer 11


2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025


SFMTA Cellular


BART Station Wireless


BART Wayside Wireless


Commercial Fiber


2 Years


4 Years


5 Years


2 Years


1


2


3


4







BART Office of the Chief Information Officer 12


Vendor Selection


Largest Private Cell Construction Co.


Active Projects in all 50 States


200 Neutral Host Systems


3,000 Macro Towers


15,000+ Micro Cell Sites


70,000+ Miles of Fiber


100,000+ Carrier Network Designs


• New York Fiber/DAS


• Chicago Fiber/DAS


• Seattle Sound Transit DAS


• Arenas & Stadiums







BART Office of the Chief Information Officer 13


Motion


The Board of Directors:


(1) Approves the BART Digital Railway Project.


(2) Authorizes the General Manager or his designee to execute a 


Master Program License Agreement (MPLA), and associated 


License Agreements with Mobilitie Services, LLC (Mobilitie), for 


development of the BART Digital Railway, including 1) Underground 


Cellular Services for SFMTA, 2) Wayside and Fleet of the Future 


Wireless Services, 3) In-Station Wireless Services, and 4) Fiber 


Optic Telecommunication Services for both BART and SFMTA.








Quality of Life FY20 
$1.5 M End of Year 
Allocation
BART Board


January 9, 2020







Agenda


• Quality of Life Summary
• Cost Allocation
• Ambassador Pilot Program
• Station Hardening Effort
• Board Action Item


| 1


/ / BART 


/ f 
~~~~~~~~~ / r 


\ 







Motion


At the October 10, 2019 Board Meeting, the Board approved a 
motion to revise the Fiscal Year 2019 Year-End Budget.


Included in the revision was an allocation to a Quality of Life 
Reserve Funding Source.


• $1.5 M to fund Quality of Life efforts, including addressing 
fare evasion, safety and security, homelessness, cleanliness, 
and the pilot ambassador program.


| 2







Staff Recommendation For 
Cost Allocation


| 3


Initiative Cost
Ambassador Pilot Program $690 K
Paid Area Expansion - Coliseum $810 K


Total $1.5 M







2018 Quadrant Chart


| 4


II.I u z 
<C 
t-
11:11:: 


0 a. 
::5 
Q 
w 
i:: 
11:11:: 
w 
Cl 


14S 


130 


115 


100 


85 


70 


55 
2.? 


Target Issues 


Po lio! on t rains 


Fare e·v.asion1 ll?fi11orcement 


• No ~atln~rinllln9 
enfQl'oement 


LOWE.R RAllNG 


St1ndlng room 
Tr.a in t emp ava ilabil ity • • 


Train ~eat ,comfort e 
Spac.. for luggage, bik.M, strollor1 


• Tr, in windowi 
e Tr.ain exterior 


le-.i~itor :a1a1ailabilit )I • lfsca1.at o r avia il abi lity • A9"nt availabi1ity 
Graffiti O A9ent 


h:elpfuln~51 


0 Tr ln noise 
courtesy 


Train PA 
Car part ing 


4.0 


• Quality of Life 


• Or>'l ime performance 


0 Train t,equency 


(xitlinM 


Faregate relia bility 


Tr1:nsil tr ns! rJ BART tran<fen 
Disable,:! ~= • Parking 


Ught,ng 


4.? 


T\IM reliabi lity 
• Delay information 


Station signs. 


O Hik" parkin9 


0 BART tick ts 


Operating hours 


b rt.gov =bslte O Maphchedul,e 
ava ilabilily 


• Clipper 
cardi 


(Sur.. rnd poin.t} (1996 bendmark average) 
6. 1 


HIGHER RATING 


PERFORMANICE (7 point sca le: 1 =poor to 7=excellent) 







Ambassador Pilot Program


| 5







Challenge


Safety and security 
concerns expressed by 
our riders and front-line 
employees riding BART 
primarily during nights 
and weekends.


|6







Customer Comments
General Manager Listening Tour


| 7


• “Things can get sketchy and I don’t always feel safe.” (16th Street Station Listening 
Tour)


• “I’ve noticed more police in stations but not on the trains.” (Fruitvale Listening 
Tour)


• “It’s bad policy for police to ask riders to make citizen arrests. More presence is 
needed.” (West Oakland Listening Tour)


• “Safety is all over the map. I feel safe during crowded commute times, but 
evenings are less safe.” (Walnut Creek Listening Tour)


• “We need police on the last train car where drug use frequently takes place. They 
should walk the entire train. I’ve experienced violent passengers.” (MacArthur 
Listening Tour)


• “We need more security on trains, but I’d like them to be unarmed.” (El Cerrito 
del Norte Listening Tour)


• “Ambassadors are a good idea, I often see strange behavior when the trains are 
less crowded. More staff will help make me feel safer.” (Bay Fair Listening Tour)







Customer Comments
2018 Customer Satisfaction Survey


• “I would not recommend riding BART during off hours – including 
nights and weekends. it is unsafe.”


• “BART needs more staff walking trains during rides to help with 
homeless. it doesn't feel safe after dark.”


• “I do not feel safe using the BART system. I would like to see 
more BART police/security in and around BART.” 


• “I would like to see BART police on trains late at night. I don't feel 
safe at all late at night. Too many crimes happen during my rides. 
I get off work late at night. I want more safety.”


• “I truly do not feel safe on BART. If I were to ride the train late at 
night, I would be scared for my life and vigilant at all times. I 
wouldn't want to get hurt.”


| 8







Proposed Solution


Provide additional and 
immediate BART presence in 
the system.


Outcomes:
• Increased sense of safety 


and security for both 
riders and our front-line 
staff


• Improved customer 
experience


• Increased ridership during 
nights and weekends


| 9







Recommendation


Implement the Ambassador Pilot Program as a special 
assignment to BART Community Service Officers (CSOs) at a 10% 
premium.


• 10 Ambassadors in teams of 2 
• Will report to BART PD
• If the 6 month pilot is successful, the goal is to continue with 


internal BART resources pending available funding


| 10







Roles and Responsibilities


• Be visible to the public
• Answer questions and 


respond to complaints 
and requests for services 


• Identify, report, and 
document the following 
to BPD:
o Inappropriate 


behavior
o Safety and security 


issues on/in the 
system


o Bio hazards


| 11







Uniforms


• Ambassadors will wear a 
distinct uniform from CSOs 
for high visibility


• Uniforms will include the 
official BART logo and 
‘Ambassador’ clearly labeled 
on the back of the shirt


| 12







Delivery Strategy


• Short-Term Plan:
o Create 10 temporary allocations
o Existing CSOs can bid for the Ambassador Program
o Current CSOs will be redirected to accommodate Ambassador roles
o Additional CSOs will be onboarded in April to provide full 


complement of CSOs and Ambassadors


• Long-Term Plan:
o If successful, continue to have a full complement of CSOs and 


Ambassadors
o Set aside funding in FY21 budget to continue program indefinitely


| 13







Hiring Plan


• 46 CSOs deployed across assignments
o 10 to be assigned to the Ambassador Program


• 13 vacant positions (+10 temporary allocations)
o 15 candidates in active Background Investigation
o 34 additional candidates in pool
o Full staffing expected by March 1, 2020
o Backfill the 10 assigned to Ambassador Program by 


April 15, 2020


| 14







Performance Measures


• Incidents reported
• Incidents addressed
• Customer satisfaction 


comments from 2018 -
2020


• Ambassador-focused 
survey at month four on 
customer satisfaction


• Analyzing trends and 
response times in calls 
for police service


| 15







Preliminary Deployment Plan


When:
Coverage 7 days/week, 2:00 pm – 12:00 am
• Schedule


o Saturday – Tuesday OR Wednesday - Saturday
o 4 days/week, 10 hours/day
o Double coverage on Saturday


Where: 
Main route at Transbay crossing as it is the heart of the system and will 
maximize benefits of the program.  Alternate routes for commute 
period. 


| 16







Preliminary Deployment Plan
Primary Routes – 7pm to 12am


| 17


Route A: The trip from Civic Center to West Oakland takes 11 minutes, with an 11 minute layover, and a 
return trip time of 12 minutes


Route B: The trip from Powell Street to 12th Street takes 15 minutes, with an 11 minute layover for the 
first scheduled trip. The final two trips have a 30 minute layover, and a return trip time of 15 minutes


*Note: The travel times above are for typical weekday nights.  Weekend nights will vary slightly.







Preliminary Deployment Plan
Commute Period Routes – 2pm to 7pm


| 18


Route C: The trip from Walnut Creek to 
Pittsburg/Bay Point takes 18 minutes, with 
an 13 minute layover, and a return trip time 
of 18 minutes


Route D: The trip from Coliseum to Union 
City takes 21 minutes, with a 5 minute 
layover, and a return trip of 20 minutes


*Note: The travel times above are for typical 
weekdays.  Weekends will vary slightly.


Alternate routes and stations will be scheduled throughout the system weekly to provide optimal visibility







Cost Estimate
CSOs on Special Assignment


• The cost for 10 Ambassadors including a 10% premium, 7% 
swing shift differential, and fringe benefits is $681,104.70 for 
a 6 month pilot


• Pilot with fully loaded costs is not to exceed $690,000 in 
FY20/21


• Seek approval to put funding aside in FY21 budget


| 19


*Note: Salary rates are reflective of the 2021 wage increase based on the CBA.







Timeline 


| 20


Date Action
9-Jan Board to consider approval
10-Jan Patrol sign-up
20-Jan Advanced training (de-escalation, anti-bias, etc.)
10-Feb 6 month deployment


10-Aug End of pilot







Community 
Ambassador 
Pilot Program 
Summary


• Provide additional BART 
presence primarily during 
nights and weekends 


• Reports to BART PD


• Expected outcome: Increased 
sense of safety/security, 
improved customer experience, 
and increased ridership


• Cost is not to exceed $690 K


• Should pilot prove to be 
successful, the goal is to 
continue with internal BART 
resources pending available 
funding


| 21







Station Hardening


| 22







Paid Area Expansion - $810 K


| 23







Fare Gate Addition


| 24


Prototype fare gate in front 
of the elevator outside the 
paid area at Coliseum 


• Hardens station
• Showcases new fare gate 


capability







Action Item


Board requested to approve the following motion:


The Board authorizes the General Manager to implement the 
BART Quality of Life initiatives to include:


• $690,000 to fund BART Ambassador


• $810,000 to fund Station Hardening


This agreement is not to exceed $1,500,000 through FY21.


| 25





		Quality of Life FY20 $1.5 M End of Year Allocation

		Agenda

		Motion

		Staff Recommendation For Cost Allocation

		2018 Quadrant Chart

		Ambassador Pilot Program

		Challenge

		Customer Comments�General Manager Listening Tour�

		Customer Comments�2018 Customer Satisfaction Survey

		Proposed Solution

		Recommendation�

		Roles and Responsibilities

		Uniforms

		Delivery Strategy�

		Hiring Plan

		Performance Measures

		Preliminary Deployment Plan

		Preliminary Deployment Plan�Primary Routes – 7pm to 12am

		Preliminary Deployment Plan�Commute Period Routes – 2pm to 7pm

		Cost Estimate�CSOs on Special Assignment

		Timeline �

		Community Ambassador Pilot Program Summary

		Station Hardening

		Paid Area Expansion - $810 K

		Fare Gate Addition

		Action Item






Communication Based Train Control (CBTC)  
Executive Decision Documents 


Board Presentation for Award – January 9, 2020


1


_B CBTC 
Communications Based Train Control 







2


The Problem - Capacity through Transbay Tube & Wye


23 Trains Per Hour 
(TPH)


eBART not 
part of CBTC


VTA
(Options 3 & 4)


OAK not part 
of CBTC







Train Overcrowding –
Transbay Peak Riders


3


Pa
ss


en
ge


rs
 p


er
 H


ou
r


30,000
30,000


2012 2013 2014


20,000


15,000


17,500


22,500 22,900


20,300
21,500


May 2015


24,500


Sept 2015


26,500
25,000


27,500


National Standard 
(5.4 S.F. per passenger)


26,000


Sept 2017


26,700


Feb 2019 2025 
Forecast


2030 
Forecast


28,000







Train Control System Delay Trend


0.0%


5.0%


10.0%


15.0%


20.0%


25.0%


0


200


400


600


800


1000


1200


1400


1600


1800


Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec


Pe
rc


en
t o


f A
ll 


D
el


ay
ed


 T
ra


in
s


D
el


ay
ed


 T
ra


in
s


Total Delayed Trains Caused by the Train Control 
System


10-20%


Total Delayed Trains


Train Control
Delayed Trains


Percent of Train 
Control Delayed 
Trains


4


2019 Data







Core Capacity Improvements
Evaluated Communication Based Train 
Control (CBTC) vs New Track Circuits


Board presentation, May 8, 2014


CBTC Objectives:


• Eliminate aged and obsolete equipment


• Improve reliability and availability


• Enhanced maintenance efficiency/state of good 
repair


• Increase in capacity/support future ridership 
numbers


CBTC addresses all!
5







45% MORE CAPACITY 


Core Capacity Program
Big 4 Capital Projects


Fleet of the
Future 


$1.105B
306 more vehicles


Hayward 
Maintenance


Complex
$345M


Communication 
Based Train Control


$1.673B


6


Traction Power 
Substations


$137M


_B CBTC 
Communications Based Train Control 







Core Capacity Program Scope


7


Project Scope


• New CBTC train control 
system-wide, + VTA Phases 
1 & 2


• 306 railcars


• New railcar storage yard at 
Hayward Maintenance 
Complex (HMC)


• 6 new traction power 
substations


Core 
Capacity 


$3.5B


CBTC
$1.673B 


Note 1:  Corridor limit shown for FTA 
Program eligibility only. 


HMC


Options 3 & 4


Note 1


Note 1







openoccupied openoccupied openoccupied openoccupied openoccupied openoccupied openoccupied openoccupiedbuffer buffer buffer buffer buffer buffer


FIXED-BLOCK SIGNALING







open open open open open open open open


CBTC MOVING BLOCK SIGNALING


occupied occupied occupied occupiedbuffer buffer buffer buffer


CBTC MOVING BLOCK SIGNALING


FIXED-BLOCK SIGNALING







CBTC Migration Strategy


• Increase train Capacity from 23 Trains per hour (TPH) to 
30+ TPH


•Operations Control Center - Implement New Central Control 
Software prior to CBTC wayside deployment


•310 D-Cars Modified prior to CBTC wayside deployment


•Phased Deployment - 10 Phases, 125 miles of track


•VTA  Options 3 & 4 


•Prove on Test Track prior to Installation on Revenue Track


10


Radio Communications 
Equipment







Phased Migration


CBTC Migration Strategy


11







Outreach


• Board direction, undertake CBTC Technology – Design-Build Contract, December 3, 2015.


• Advance Notice to Proposers, Sent out March 13, 2017


• Three (3) Networking/Matchmaking Sessions hosted by Office of Civil Rights


• RFQ/P access required Security Sensitive Information (SSI) Clearances


• CBTC is California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Exempt


• Categorical Exclusion for National Environmental Protection Act (NEPA)


12


_B CBTC 
Communications Based Train Control 


\. 







Procurement Process


• Request For Qualifications and Proposals (RFQ/P) Issued August 2017
• Pre-Qualification criteria:


o Service-proven CBTC System


o Deployed in a “brownfield” environment;


o Commit highly experienced team of CBTC professionals 


o Financial stability


o Compliant with Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Buy America requirements; and


o Mature program and engineering management processes


13


_B CBTC 
Communications Based Train Control 


\. 







Notice of Prequalified Proposers


Received Qualification Statements from 7 Design-Build Proposers in October 2017; District 
prequalified 3 


January 5, 2018, General Manager notified Board of Directors of Prequalified Proposers:
• Alstom Signaling, Inc.


System Equipment Installer: Aldridge Electric, Inc.
• Ansaldo STS USA, Inc. (Hitachi)


System Equipment Installer: L.K. Comstock National Transit, Inc.
• Thales Transport & Security, Inc.


System Equipment Installer: Mass. Electric Construction Co.


3 Protests were Received, Final Notice of Approved Prequalified Proposers sent on May 1, 2018


14


_B CBTC 
Communications Based Train Control 


\. 







Evaluation Committee


15


SOURCE SELECTION OFFICIAL
PD&C


EVALUATION COMMITTEE 
CHAIRPERSON


Procurement


Operation 
PlanningTransportation RS&SM&E


3 Departments
PD&C (External)


United 
Kingdom


(External)
North 


America


ADVISORS


• BART STAFF• ON-CALL TEAM


VOTING MEMBERS







CBTC RFP Evaluation Approach


Best Value Methodology to evaluate price in combination with following criteria (descending order 
of importance):


o Migration Plan


o Systems Performance Analysis


o System Design / Specifications Compliance


o Management Approach


o Train Control Performance Support Services Approach


o Reliability, Availability and Maintainability (RAM) Analysis


16


_B CBTC 
Communications Based Train Control 


\. 







RFP Scoring Method for Technical Proposals


The Technical Proposals were rated in accordance with the following: 


1) Exceptional


2) Good


3) Acceptable


4) Potential to Become Acceptable


5) Unacceptable


Proposal excluded if rated Potential to Become Acceptable or Unacceptable


17


_B CBTC 
Communications Based Train Control 


\. 







CBTC Proposal Review


• Thales Proposer withdrew from the Procurement, December, 2018


• March 19, 2019, Technical and Price Proposals received from Alstom and Hitachi


• Alstom and Hitachi’s Technical Proposals determined to be Responsive


• June and July of 2019, clarification and negotiation meetings, with Alstom and Hitachi


18


_B CBTC 
Communications Based Train Control 


\. 







CBTC Evaluation of Best and Final Offers (BAFOs)


• Request for BAFOs issued on September 5, 2019
• BAFOs received on October 22, 2019 from Alstom and Hitachi


• Alstom and Hitachi’s BAFO Technical Proposals determined to be Responsive


• Alstom BAFO Technical Proposals were rated Unacceptable for three criteria:


o Management


o Migration


o Train Control Performance Support Services


• Since Alstom’s Technical Proposal were rated unacceptable, Alstom’s BAFO Price Proposals 
were not opened for review


19







CBTC Evaluation of BAFOs


20


• Hitachi’s BAFO Technical Proposals were rated Good Minus


• Hitachi provided better than acceptable Proposals meeting all technical evaluation 
criteria & instilling confidence of successful Contract performance.


• Hitachi’s BAFO Price Proposals opened for review. Prices are as follows:
Hitachi Price 


Proposal
Engineer’s Estimate Difference


CBTC BAFO Base Proposal Plus 
Allowances


$798,551,928 $851,698,430 $53,146,502


CBTC BAFO Option 1 – Roadway Worker 
Protection Device


$357,117


CBTC BAFO Option 2 –


DELETED
CBTC BAFO Option 3 –


VTA Phase I


$56,168,590


CBTC BAFO Option 4 –


VTA Phase II


$25,736,514


CBTC BAFO Base Proposal Plus 
Allowances and Options 1, 3, and 4


$880,814,150 $967,448,430 $86,634,280







CBTC Buy America Compliance


• Contract subject to Buy America requirements


• Hitachi submitted Buy America certificates indicating compliance as follows:


o Buy America Certification Requirement for Procurement of Rolling Stock and Associated 
Equipment, at 70% minimum domestic content


o Buy America Certification Requirement for Procurement of Steel, Iron, or Manufactured 
Products, at 100% domestic content


21


_B CBTC 
Communications Based Train Control 


\. 







CBTC Disadvantaged Business Enterprise


• Design-Build RFQ/P per District’s Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) Program 
requirements


• DBE participation goal of 5%


• Hitachi, committed subcontracting 5.1% to DBEs


• Office of Civil Rights determined Hatachi met DBE goal commitment set forth in the Contract


22


_B CBTC 
Communications Based Train Control 


\. 







RFP Stipend Agreement


• Stipend Agreement of $1,000,000 paid under specified conditions, if Proposer not selected for 
award


• If Alstom does not protest award, entitled to request $1,000,000 stipend


23


_B CBTC 
Communications Based Train Control 


\. 







CBTC Evaluation of BAFOs


• Hitachi’s CBTC BAFO Technical & Price Proposals and approach 


 Met RFQ/P requirements 


 Hitachi was found to be a Responsible Proposer 


 Hitachi’s Price Proposal was determined to be fair and reasonable.


• December 12, 2019, Evaluation Committee unanimously agreed that Hitachi is the Preferred 
Proposer and recommend award of the CBTC Contract No. 49GH-110 to Hitachi


• Concurrently, Evaluation Committee recommends award of TCPSS Contract No. 49GH-120 to 
Hitachi (accompanying CBTC Contract No. 49GH-110 EDD).


24







CBTC Fiscal Impact 


Table 2 - Current Funding
Federal Funds $19,883,421
Local $1,035,542
Measure RR $26,000,000
BART Funds $11,093,406
TOTAL $58,012,369


25


Table 3 - Programmed Funding
Federal Funds $49,100,000
TIRCP $318,600,000
Measure RR $374,000,000
BART Funds $41,832,374
TOTAL $783,532,374


Table 4 - Pending Funding
FTA CIG Funds $397,240,488
TOTAL $397,240,488







CBTC Future Funding 


• Table 2 Current Funding will commit $ 2,849,157 leaving a balance of $0 in this fund source.  
Table 3 & 4 will provide the remaining $ 795,702,771 from the Programmed and Pending Funds 
for the Total Base Contract Award of $ 798,551,928.


• District continues to pursue funding of approximately $288M from State and local sources, 
excluding the VTA components


• Current Project funding is sufficient to cover Design Services During Construction (DSDC), 
Construction Management (CM), and BART soft costs for seven years.


• Additional future funding will be needed to fully fund DSDC, CM, and BART soft costs through 
completion.


• Award CBTC Contract commits BART to fully implement CBTC, excluding Option 3 and Option 4


• These actions are not anticipated to have any Fiscal Impact on unprogrammed District reserves


26


_B CBTC 
Communications Based Train Control 


\. 







CBTC Funding to Exercise VTA Option 3 and Option 4


• Option 3 - Silicon Valley Berryessa Extension 


• Option 4 - Silicon Valley Santa Clara Extension 


• VTA Funding Agreement required


• Exercise of Options contingent on Controller-Treasurer certifying full funding of Options is 
secured from the Santa Clara Valley Transportation Authority (VTA)


27


_B CBTC 
Communications Based Train Control 


\. 







CBTC Alternatives


Not proceeding with award of CBTC Contract at this time and re-advertise the RFQ/P will: 


• Result in loss of up to $318.6 million Transit and Intercity Rail Capital Program (TIRCP) funds 
already awarded and likely loss of pending $1.169 billion FTA CIG grant


• Impact procurement of Core Capacity Program:


o Rail Vehicles


o Construction of rail vehicle storage and other improvements at Hayward Maintenance Complex


o Construction of new Traction Power Substations


• Force the District to continue running existing aging Automatic Train Control System


28


_B CBTC 
Communications Based Train Control 


\. 







CBTC Motions 


1. The General Manager is authorized to award Contract No. 49GH-110 for the Design-Build of a 
Communications Based Train Control System to Hitachi Rail STS USA, Inc. for the price of 
$798,551,928, (including all taxes) upon certification by the Controller-Treasurer that funding is 
available, pursuant to notification to be issued by the General Manager and subject to the District’s 
protest procedures and FTA’s requirements related to protests.


The General Manager is further authorized to exercise Option 3, Silicon Valley Berryessa 
Extension, and Option 4, Silicon Valley Santa Clara Extension, to Contract No. 49GH-110, for 
$56,168,590 and $25,736,514, respectively, subject to escalation and upon certification by the 
Controller-Treasurer that funding is available.


2. The General Manager is authorized to execute a Stipend Agreement with Alstom Signaling, 
Inc. in the amount of $1,000,000 subject to compliance with the conditions specified in the Request 
for Qualifications and Proposals, and upon certification by the Controller-Treasurer that funding is 
available.


29


_B CBTC 
Communications Based Train Control 


\. 







Contract No. 49GH-120
Train Control Performance Support Services


TCPSS


30


_B CBTC 
Communications Based Train Control 


\. 







Train Control Performance Support Services (TCPSS)


• 10 year term, with two 5-year Option extensions


• Provides support services to BART post-installation


• Enables the District to efficiently and effectively operate and maintain the CBTC System


• Provides secure supply of replacement parts 


• CBTC System support for (hardware/software) modifications 


• Telephone support, 24/7


• Plan technology transfer for 3rd level board repairs


31


_B CBTC 
Communications Based Train Control 


\. 







TCPSS BAFOs


32


• Hitachi’s BAFO Technical Proposals rated Good Minus


• Hitachi provided better than acceptable Proposals meeting all technical evaluation 
criteria & instilling confidence of successful Contract performance


• Hitachi’s TCPSS BAFO Price Proposals opened for review. Prices are as follows:


Hitachi’s Price 
Proposal


Engineer’s 
Estimate


Difference


TCPSS BAFO Base Proposal Plus 
Allowances (for 10-Year Term)


$8,630,000 $6,278,918 $2,351,082


TCPSS BAFO Option A (for 5-Year Term) $3,150,000
TCPSS BAFO Option B (for 5 Year Term) $3,150,000
TCPSS BAFO Base Proposal Plus 
Allowances and Option A and Option B


$14,930,000 $10,499,204 $4,430,796







TCPSS Non-Discrimination Program


• Non-Discrimination Program for Subcontracting, Availability Percentages for TCPSS Contract are:


o 2.2% for Minority Business Enterprises (MBEs)


o 1.1% for Women Business Enterprises (WBEs)


• Hitachi, will not subcontract TCPSS Work therefore, Non-Discrimination Program does not apply 


33


_B CBTC 
Communications Based Train Control 


\. 







TCPSS Small Business Program


• Office of Civil Rights set 5% Small Business (SB) Subcontractor Participation Goal


• Hitachi will not subcontract any portion of the TCPSS Work


• Hitachi is not eligible for Small Business Preference


34


_B CBTC 
Communications Based Train Control 


\. 







TCPSS BAFOs


• Hitachi’s TCPSS BAFO Technical Proposals and approach


 Met RFQ/P requirements 


 Hitachi was found to be a resonsible Proposer 


 Hitachi’s Price Proposal was determined to be fair and reasonable


• Evaluation Committee recommend award of TCPSS Contract No. 49GH-120 to Hitachi


• Separately, staff recommends award of CBTC Contract No. 49GH-110 to Hitachi be made 
concurrent with the award of TCPSS Contract No. 49GH-120


35







TCPSS Funding


• Funding for TCPSS Contract Agreement from FY27 to FY46 will be included in BART’s proposed 
annual Operating Budget, subject to Board Approval


• This action is not anticipated to have any Fiscal Impact on unprogrammed District reserves in 
current Fiscal Year


36


_B CBTC 
Communications Based Train Control 


\. 







TCPSS Funding


37


Base Contract
Proposed Funding


FY27 $863,000
FY28 $863,000
FY29 $863,000
FY30 $863,000
FY31 $863,000
FY32 $863,000
FY33 $863,000
FY34 $863,000
FY35 $863,000
FY36 $863,000
TOTAL $8,630,000


Option A
Proposed Funding


FY37 $630,000
FY38 $630,000
FY39 $630,000
FY40 $630,000
FY41 $630,000
TOTAL $3,150,000


Option B
Proposed Funding


FY42 $630,000
FY43 $630,000
FY44 $630,000
FY45 $630,000
FY46 $630,000
TOTAL $3,150,000







TCPSS Alternatives


Not proceeding with award of TCPSS Contract at this time and re-advertise the RFQ/P will:


• Result in District assuming responsibility for support of new CBTC System without the 
participation of the CBTC System Supplier


• Result in loss of Supplier in providing replacement parts for the CBTC System which likely will 
increase District’s costs for replacement parts


• Lack of support for technical issues, no 24 hour hot line


• 3rd Level Board Repair technology transfer plan will not be implemented


38


_B CBTC 
Communications Based Train Control 


\. 







TCPSS Motions


• The General Manager is authorized to award Contract No. 49GH-120 for Train Control 
Performance Support Services to Hitachi Rail STS USA, Inc. for the price of $8,630,000, 
(including all taxes) subject to escalation, and subject to the District’s protest procedures. The 
General Manager is further authorized to exercise Option A and Option B to Contract No. 49GH-
120, for two 5-year extensions for $3,150,000 each, subject to escalation, and upon certification 
by the Controller-Treasurer that funding is available.


39


_B CBTC 
Communications Based Train Control 


\. 







Questions


Questions


40


_B CBTC 
Communications Based Train Control 


\. 





		Communication Based Train Control (CBTC)  �Executive Decision Documents �Board Presentation for Award – January 9, 2020

		The Problem - Capacity through Transbay Tube & Wye

		Train Overcrowding – �Transbay Peak Riders

		Train Control System Delay Trend

		Core Capacity Improvements�Evaluated Communication Based Train Control (CBTC) vs New Track Circuits

		Slide Number 6

		Core Capacity Program Scope

		Slide Number 8

		Slide Number 9

		CBTC Migration Strategy

		CBTC Migration Strategy

		Outreach

		Procurement Process

		Notice of Prequalified Proposers

		Evaluation Committee

		CBTC RFP Evaluation Approach

		RFP Scoring Method for Technical Proposals

		 CBTC Proposal Review

		CBTC Evaluation of Best and Final Offers (BAFOs)

		CBTC Evaluation of BAFOs

		CBTC Buy America Compliance 

		CBTC Disadvantaged Business Enterprise 

		RFP Stipend Agreement 

		CBTC Evaluation of BAFOs

		CBTC Fiscal Impact 

		CBTC Future Funding 

		CBTC Funding to Exercise VTA Option 3 and Option 4

		CBTC Alternatives

		CBTC Motions 

		Slide Number 30

		Train Control Performance Support Services (TCPSS)

		TCPSS BAFOs

		TCPSS Non-Discrimination Program

		TCPSS Small Business Program

		TCPSS BAFOs

		TCPSS Funding

		TCPSS Funding

		TCPSS Alternatives

		TCPSS Motions

		Questions










MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 


This Memorandum of Understanding (“MOU”) is entered into on this ___ day of _______, 2020, by                               
and between the San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District (“BART”) and the City of Berkeley                               
(“City”) to cooperatively pursue transit oriented development (“TOD”) and the implementation of                       
Assembly Bill 2923 (“AB 2923”) at the Ashby and North Berkeley BART Stations. 


RECITALS 


A. BART and the City both acknowledge that the region faces a shortage of affordable homes and a                               
climate crisis that requires a significant reduction in vehicle miles traveled; and


B. BART and the City have adopted District- and City-wide policies that prioritize creating                       
affordable homes and reducing greenhouse gas emissions; and


C. Publicly-owned land at the Ashby and North Berkeley BART stations provides a rare                       
opportunity to create more homes, including below-market-rate affordable homes, in a manner                     
that reduces residents’ reliance on driving; and


D. State law AB 2923 (AB 2923, Stats. 2018, Chp. 1000) requires BART to adopt TOD zoning                             
standards for BART-owned property surrounding its stations and requires that the City’s local                       
zoning conform with TOD zoning standards by July 1, 2022; and


E. BART and the City are committed to enabling multiple opportunities for community input and                         
engagement that inform site master planning and zoning; and


F. The purpose of this agreement is to:


1. Identify a shared vision and priorities for development for BART and the City, and set                           
forth steps needed to pursue this vision and priorities;


2. Clarify the processes that BART and/or the City will pursue to address the activities and                           
timelines outlined below in Section III; and


3. Provide greater clarity for all parties, including BART, the City, and members of the                         
public, on the currently-planned steps, timelines, and the Parties’ roles and                   
responsibilities needed in seeking to commence construction of TOD on BART-owned                   
property at both the Ashby and North Berkeley BART Stations.







MUTUAL UNDERSTANDING OF THE PARTIES 


I. Framework for Development at Ashby and North Berkeley BART Stations


A. Goals and objectives for TOD have been established for Ashby and North Berkeley BART                         
stations by the City through two separate processes. Similarly, BART has adopted policies and                         
performance targets guiding its TOD program as a whole. These documents will inform the                         
Parties’ respective goals and objectives with regard to TOD at the Ashby Station and North                           
Berkeley Station.


B. The Draft Adeline Corridor Specific Plan (published in May 2019) sets forth a vision, policies                           
and objectives for the Ashby BART Station area. Specifically, Policy 3.7 of the Plan, shown in                             
Exhibit 1, includes seven objectives relating to affordable housing, public space, development                     
parameters, public art, pedestrian and bicycle connections, transportation and demand                 
management and community engagement.


C. On May 9, 2019, the Berkeley City Council unanimously approved the City’s goals and objectives                           
for North Berkeley BART development, which are shown in Exhibit 2. The City’s goals focus                           
on community input, station access, affordability, livability and environmental sustainability.


D. In 2016, the BART Board adopted three policies which set overall goals for BART’s                         
transit-oriented development (TOD) program:


1. A TOD Policy (Exhibit 3), setting the goals of creating complete communities,                     
advancing sustainable communities, increasing ridership, capturing the value of transit,                 
enhancing transportation choice, and increasing affordability with a district-wide               
affordability target of 35%.


2. An Affordable Housing Policy, which requires a 20% affordable housing minimum for                     
its projects, and favors projects with the greatest depth and quantity of affordable                       
housing (Exhibit 4).


3. A Station Access Policy (Exhibit 5) to guide access practices and investments through                       
2025. The policy is designed to support the broader livability goals of the Bay Area,                           
reinforce sustainable communities, increase the share of BART passengers walking and                   
biking to the stations, and enable riders to get to and from stations safely, comfortably,                           
affordably, and cost-effectively.


E. Together these documents, as well as further engagement of community stakeholders and                     
additional collaboration and activities as set forth in this MOU, lay the groundwork for future                           
development at the Ashby and North Berkeley BART Stations.







II. Scope of Agreement


A. This MOU applies to development of the following properties, henceforth known as the “BART                         
Properties”:


1. Ashby BART Western Parking Lot: Bounded by Ashby Ave, Adeline St, and Martin                       
Luther King Jr Way. Site is owned by BART, with an option to the City to retain the air                                   
rights above 10 feet;


2. Ashby BART Eastern Parking Lot: Located on the east side of the station, behind the                           
Ed Roberts campus, which is owned by BART; and


3. North Berkeley BART Main Parking Lot: Bounded by Sacramento, Delaware, Acton                   
and Virginia Streets. Site is owned by BART.


B. In order to ensure that development of the BART Properties is, to the extent possible,                           
consistent with the vision and priorities established by the City and BART, during the TOD                           
planning process outlined in this MOU there will be an opportunity to consider infrastructure                         
enhancements to other areas that are owned by BART or the City. These may include the                             
following (henceforth known as “Surrounding Areas”):


1. North Berkeley BART: auxiliary parking lots owned by BART, and areas owned by the                         
City that abut the Ohlone Greenway;


2. Other public infrastructure (e.g., streets, crosswalks, bicycle paths, on-street parking,                 
stormwater and sewer infrastructure) within a one-mile radius of the BART Properties;                     
and


3. Proposed changes to access and circulation at each Station would be identified through                       
the Station Access Study described in Section III.F of this MOU, as well as through the                             
development master plan or entitlement process. Any such changes would therefore be                     
subject to public review and comment, and to approval by the Parties.







III. Activities and Timelines


Activities and Timelines – Summary Table 


Activity  Lead Party  Milestone  Date 


1. Community Advisory
Process and other
community engagement
activities


City  Establish a Community Advisory 
Group to inform site zoning and 
to facilitate community input on 
site master planning and zoning 


Initiate December 
2019 


2. Zoning for Ashby and
North Berkeley BART
Stations


City  a. Zoning alternatives
proposed


b. Draft CEQA document
released


c. Planning Commission and
community review


d. Planning Commission
approval


e. Council zoning approval


Complete by June 
2021 


3. BART AB 2923
Guidance Document


BART  a. Draft Guidance
b. Final Guidance


a. February 2020
b. July 2020


4. City Affordable
Housing Funding


City  Decision on set-aside of City 
funding for affordable housing 
to Ashby and North Berkeley 
Stations 


December 2020 
(pending further 
definition of zoning 
and site capacity) 


5. Developer Solicitation BART  Decision on timeline to initiate 
solicitation of a developer (as 
part of BART’s 10-Year TOD 
Work Plan) 


July 1, 2020 


6. Station Access Studies BART  Station Access Studies 
Completed 


Timeline dependent 
upon Developer 
solicitation for each 
station 







A. Community Advisory Process and other Community Engagement Activities


1. Pursuant to the Draft Adeline Corridor Specific Plan (Policy 3.7) and the North Berkeley                         
BART Development Goals and Objectives adopted by the City Council on May 9, 2019,                         
an advisory group consisting of members of the community will be created for the                         
purposes of providing input:


a. To the City Planning Commission as it considers zoning standards that will be                       
consistent with the City’s obligations under AB 2923 for the Ashby and North                       
Berkeley BART station areas; and


b. To the City and BART as the Parties establish a joint vision and priorities                         
document (“Joint Vision and Priorities”) that will be incorporated in eventual                   
Requests for Proposal/Requests for Qualifications for potential developers of               
the BART Properties.


2. The City will be responsible for the selection and all logistics and funding for the                           
Community Advisory Process.


3. Contingent on availability of funding, the City will also organize public participation                     
design charrettes that inform predictable form-based design standards that BART will                   
incorporate into guidelines for future development of the BART properties.


4. BART will support the City’s efforts by participating in meetings, presenting                   
information, as necessary, and considering input arising from the Community Advisory                   
Process as part of its larger community engagement for AB 2923, TOD and station                         
access studies in the City.


B. Zoning Ashby and North Berkeley BART Stations. As required by AB 2923, the City will                           
pursue rezoning of developable, BART-owned property within ½-mile of the Ashby and North                       
Berkeley Stations. The City will be responsible for all logistics and funding required for these                           
rezoning efforts. As the agency responsible for local zoning regulations, the City will work in                           
good faith with BART to coordinate the City’s rezoning efforts with BART’s development of                         
AB 2923 guidance.


C. BART AB 2923 Guidance. BART and the City understand that AB 2923 requires further                         
clarification related to height, floor-area-ratio, density, bicycle parking minimums, automobile                 
parking minimums and maximums. To address these points of clarification, BART will publish a                         
guidance document offering all affected local jurisdictions information on AB 2923. As the                       







agency responsible for determining whether local zoning conforms to state law, BART will be                           
responsible for all logistics and funding required for the AB 2923 guidance document. The                           
guidance document will provide guidance on TOD zoning standards for all local jurisdictions as                           
those jurisdictions seek to comply with their obligations under AB 2923. 


D. City Affordable Housing Funding Decision


1. The voters of Berkeley recently established three important new sources of funding to                       
support the creation and preservation of affordable housing, keep vulnerable people                   
housed, and rehouse the homeless:


a. Measure O provides for issuance of $135 million in bonds to fund capital                       
expenditures for a variety of types of affordable housing;


b. Measure P established a real estate transfer tax on the most expensive one-third                       
of real estate sales with a stated intent to rehouse the homeless and fund the                           
services they need to remain housed; and


c. Measure U1 increased the gross receipts tax on most residential rental properties                     
with a stated intent to fund affordable housing and protect Berkeley residents                     
from homelessness.


2. The above measures establish advisory panels which advise the City Council as it makes                         
determinations regarding the allocation of these and other affordable housing monies                   
(such as City Housing Trust Fund resources) and related resources such as public land                         
and inclusionary units.


3. The City will set-aside appropriate funding, including development fees and other                   
above-mentioned sources, to support deed-restricted affordable housing at a range of                   
income levels to meet BART and the City’s affordable housing goals at the Ashby and                           
North Berkeley BART Stations (as referenced in Section I).


E. Developer Solicitation


1. Consistent with its standard practice, BART will issue a Request for Qualifications                     
(“RFQ”), Request for Proposals (“RFP”) or both to initiate the process of identifying                       
and recommending potential developers of the BART Properties to the BART Board of                       
Directors. The committee(s) established to evaluate RFQ/RFP submissions will include                 
City Representatives and BART staff as well as an independent financial consultant, who                       







will evaluate the capabilities of each proposer to deliver the project. The criteria used to                             
select a developer with whom to negotiate will be based on the BART Station                           
Development Joint Vision and Priorities that will take into account community input as                         
outlined in Section III.A. 


2. For the Ashby BART Western Parking Lot, which is owned by BART with an option to                             
the City to retain the air rights above 10 feet, and assuming that the City exercises said                               
option, the City and BART will enter into a separate agreement detailing how they will                           
share decision-making authority in the developer solicitation process.


3. The evaluation committee’s role is to make a recommendation to the BART Board of                         
Directors regarding a developer with whom BART will negotiate for the development of                       
TOD. The BART Board of Directors has the sole discretion and authority to determine                         
whether, and with whom, BART will enter into an exclusive negotiating agreement                     
(“ENA”) relating to potential TOD development on the BART Properties. It is                     
anticipated that, among other things, the ENA will require the developer to advance the                         
proposed project through the City’s entitlement process, lead or participate in a                     
community engagement process, fund a Station Access Study for BART (see below), pay                       
BART an option fee in exchange for exclusive negotiating rights, and reimburse BART                       
for its expenses, including engineering review, outside legal fees, and outside consultant                     
expenses.


F. Station Access Study


1. Per the draft policies in the Adeline Corridor Plan, Council-adopted goals and objectives                       
for development of the North Berkeley BART property, BART’s TOD Policy, and the                       
requirements of AB 2923, a Station Access Study must be prepared prior to                       
development of the BART Properties that identifies sustainable access options for both                     
the Ashby and North Berkeley BART Stations in light of potential changes to the BART                           
Properties and surrounding areas resulting from TOD. AB 2923 added Section                   
29010.6(h) to the California Public Utility Code, which requires BART—with respect to                     
any station where BART commuter parking is reduced as a result of a TOD project on                             
land where TOD zoning standards apply—to develop and fund an access plan that                       
maintains station access for at least the number of customers affected by the reduced                         
number of commuter parking spaces, with specific consideration for customers who live                     
further than one-half mile from the station.


2. The Station Access Studies will evaluate a range of access options that support BART’s                         
goals to increase the share of BART patrons who access the stations via modes other                           
than the private automobile, and that maximize the potential number of homes                     







(including homes restricted to low, very low, and extremely low-income households) on                       
site. In exploring alternatives to parking, the Studies will evaluate whether and how to                           
offer viable, multimodal access to BART for the station catchment areas, and how to                           
ensure that TOD and associated improvements result in an overall increase in the                         
number of people who use the BART Stations. The Studies will identify infrastructure                         
needs on and near BART’s property to improve access for riders using all modes,                           
including pedestrians, bicyclists, community members with access and functional needs,                   
shared mobility users, and patrons using public and private transportation. 


3. BART will be responsible for all logistics required for the Station Access Studies. BART                         
will fund these Studies in advance, but may require reimbursement for the Studies from                         
a developer or developers pursuant to an ENA with said developer(s). Findings from the                         
Ashby and North Berkeley BART station access studies will be presented to the                       
community.


IV. Zoning and Solicitation Process; Retention of Decision-making Authority by City and                   
BART


A. To demonstrate its commitment to advancing development at BART property, and in                     
consideration for its inclusion as a high priority in BART’s 10-year work plan for development,                           
the City will: 1) complete rezoning of the properties by June 2021, and 2) make a decision by the                                   
end of December 2020 to set-aside funding sufficient to assure BART, in its sole discretion, that                             
at least 35% of the housing units proposed to be constructed at the BART Properties would be                               
deed-restricted to low, very low and/or extremely low affordable housing. The City recognizes                       
that meeting this level of affordability will require significant local, state, and federal subsidy. The                           
Planning Commission has a target date of December 2020 to review zoning alternatives as a                           
show of progress towards completion of zoning by June 2021.


B. To support the City’s zoning process, BART agrees to provide guidance that will be applicable to                             
North Berkeley Station and all other stations in the BART system to which AB 2923 applies.                             
BART will work with the City of Berkeley to explore possible approaches to conformance with                           
AB 2923 zoning standards in the context of the built form characteristics of a surrounding lower                             
density neighborhood. The City will consult with BART regarding zoning alternatives for the                       
North Berkeley Station that conform with AB 2923 zoning standards.


C. It is understood that both BART and the City desire for more work to be completed in support                                 
of zoning, such as site master planning or objective design guidelines. At the time of this MOU,                               
the City and BART are actively working to identify additional resources to accelerate this work.







D. The City and BART will meet in December 2020 to review the City’s efforts undertaken                           
pursuant to Section III.B and III.D, in order to:


1. Determine whether the City has approved a set-aside of sufficient funding to meet the                         
35% affordable housing minimum for each station as described in Section IV.A;


2. Negotiate possible additional City participation in the solicitation processes; and


3. Agree upon the timing of the developer solicitations for the BART Properties in                       
December 2020.


E. If the zoning for the Ashby and North Berkeley Stations and the set-aside of City affordable                             
housing funds occurs after the dates indicated for those actions in the timeline in Section IV.A                             
above, BART may re-evaluate the inclusion of these stations in its 10-year work plan. Likewise, if                             
BART does not proceed with developer solicitations for the BART Properties as determined in                         
Section III.D, the City may reallocate affordable housing funding to other projects.


F. Notwithstanding any other provision in this MOU, nothing herein shall be construed to limit or                           
restrict the discretionary decision-making authority of the City or of BART. The Parties                       
acknowledge that any reference to a project or proposed project in this MOU or in any                             
document that may be created in connection with this MOU does not constitute a Project or                             
Project approval by either Party as those terms are defined in CEQA and discussed in Save Tara                               
v. City of West Hollywood , 45 Cal. 4th 116 (2008).







3-22 ADELINE CORRIDOR SPECIFIC PLAN PUBLIC REVIEW DRAFT MAY 2019


3.7 ASHBY BART 
Future development within the Ashby 
BART subarea shall provide public space, 
community-oriented facilities, and affordable 
housing, consistent with the objectives, 
parameters, and process outlined in the 
Adeline Corridor Specific Plan. 


The Ashby BART Station is one of the most prominent landmarks and 
amenities along the Adeline Corridor, with the potential to support 
and advance all five key topic areas addressed in this Plan – land use, 
housing, economic opportunity, transportation, and public space. 


As stated in Chapter 2, the Ashby BART subarea is envisioned to be 
redeveloped as a vibrant neighborhood center with high-density 
mixed-use development that unifies and knits back together the east 
and west sides of Adeline Street. The Ashby BART development will be 
a model for sustainable transit-oriented development, incorporating high levels of affordable housing 
and complementary commercial and civic uses; public space for community gatherings, special events, 
and civic celebrations; and green construction. 


The Plan lays the groundwork for future engagement with the community and BART by outlining key 
objectives that apply to future development and describing a process for evaluating development 
proposals for these sites. Future development in the Ashby BART subarea shall be consistent with the 
seven objectives below, which shall be incorporated into any future master plan and development 
agreements with potential developers. 


OBJECTIVE 1. AFFORDABLE HOUSING. For any future development in the BART subarea, at least 50% 
of the total housing units produced should be comprised of deed-restricted affordable housing, which 
could also include supportive services or other spaces associated with the affordable housing. This 


The Ashby BART Station


Exhibit 1







3-23CITY OF BERKELEY


CHAPTER 3:  LAND USE


PUBLIC REVIEW DRAFT MAY 2019


goal for at least 50% affordable housing at a 
range of income levels (e.g. Extremely Low, Very 
Low, Low and Moderate) would be calculated 
across the entire Ashby BART subarea and 
could be accomplished through multiple phases 
of development. Any future development 
agreement should commit to deliver at least 
this level of affordable housing, and provide a 
plan to do so. Amounts of affordable housing 
exceeding 50% of the total square footage and 
number of units are encouraged.  


OBJECTIVE 2. PUBLIC SPACE. Any future 
development shall include one or more publicly 
accessible spaces incorporated onto the 
development parcels within the Ashby BART 
subarea. The public space could potentially be 
provided as plazas, green space, pedestrian 
paseos, rooftop patios, flexible event space, 
or other pedestrian-accessible spaces that are 
open to the public. Incorporating elements 
of “green infrastructure” in these elements is 
highly encouraged (See Chapter 7).


Future redevelopment of the Ashby BART west 
parking lot shall incorporate a large civic plaza 
that could be designed and programmed to 
accommodate the Berkeley Flea Market and 
potentially a relocated Farmers Market, as well 
as support the Juneteenth Festival and other 
music and entertainment events. This space 
could include dedicated flexible space on the 
site and/or in a nearby location such as on 
Adeline Street. The space shall be designed with 
the general and specific needs of the Flea Market 
and Farmers Market, as well as allow flexibility 
for other programming such as the Juneteenth 
Festival, music and entertainment, civic events, 
or other public uses – at different times of the 
week or in complementary locations. This could 
include dedicated flexible space on the site or in 
a nearby location such as on Adeline Street. 


OBJECTIVE 3. ADDITIONAL DEVELOPMENT 
PARAMETERS. The following general 
development parameters will be further refined 
as implementation steps of this Specific Plan:  


Building Height. To achieve the affordable 
housing goal, climate action goals and maximize 
community benefits from development of public 
land, high density mixed-use development is 
envisioned that are generally up to four to seven 
stories. The City will continue to coordinate with 
BART as it refines development parameters as 
part of implementation of Assembly Bill 2923.  
In general, development fronting on Adeline 
Street and Ashby Avenue should “step down” or 
transition to lower heights where development 
fronts on Martin Luther King Jr. Way, Woolsey, 
Tremont and Essex Streets. 


Ground-Floor Uses.  As noted in Policy 3.1, the 
following types of uses shall be required for 
ground floor uses for the Ashby BART subarea:


• Adeline Street frontage: Ground floor retail
or active commercial use required.


WHAT IS ASSEMBLY BILL  (AB) 
2923?
Assembly Bill 2923 was signed into law by 
Governor Jerry Brown on September 30, 2018.  
AB2923 grants BART the authority to establish 
transit-oriented development (TOD) zoning 
standards that apply to its property across the 
Bay Area, including the North Berkeley and 
Ashby BART Station sites. The intent of the 
law is to enable BART to work together with 
cities to maximize the public benefit of scarce 
transit-adjacent land (see Appendix B for more 
information).  Although BART has the ultimate 
authority to establish zoning standards for its 
property, BART has indicated that it intends 
to work in close collaboration with local 
elected officials and community stakeholders. 
Furthermore, since the City controls the 
“air rights” for the west Ashby BART parking 
lot, it would have a direct role in approving 
any future master plan and development 
agreement for that site, and would work with 
BART to implement the Objectives described 
in the Adeline Corridor Specific Plan for any 
redevelopment of the Ashby BART subarea. 







3-24 ADELINE CORRIDOR SPECIFIC PLAN PUBLIC REVIEW DRAFT MAY 2019


• Ashby Avenue frontage: Ground floor
commercial use required.


• Martin Luther King Jr. Way: Residential or
commercial use allowed on ground floor.


• Tremont, Woolsey and Fairview Streets:
Residential or commercial use allowed on
ground floor.


Additional Land Uses.  Additional land uses 
that would be encouraged in the Ashby BART 
area include the following: 


• Potential space for a new African American
Holistic Resource Center (see Chapter 5 for
more information)


• Ground floor retail, restaurants and family-
oriented entertainment;


• Affordable space for neighborhood non-
profits


• Small, affordable workspaces


• Universally-accessible community event and 
recreation space, or performance venues.


OBJECTIVE 4. PUBLIC ART. Future 
redevelopment should maximize opportunities 
to incorporate permanent and/or temporary 
public art installations that celebrate 
neighborhood history, cultural heritage and 
identity (see Chapters 2, 5 and 7 for more 
information).


OBJECTIVE 5. PEDESTRIAN AND BICYCLE 
CONNECTIONS. Future development should 
include pedestrian and bicycle connections that 
serve users of all abilities and ages.  Development 
of the west parking lot should incorporate the 
following key bicycle connections at minimum, 
consistent with the City of Berkeley Bike Plan 
and as described in the Transportation Chapter 
of this Plan: 


• Connection of the Woolsey/Prince bicycle
boulevard facility across the Ashby site


• Provision of an off-street/protected bicycle
facility along Adeline Street between Ashby
and the intersection with MLK Jr. Way.


OBJECTIVE 6. PARKING AND TRANSPORTATION 
DEMAND MANAGEMENT. Any future 
development must include aggressive and 
innovative Transportation Demand Management 
strategies to reduce demand for parking and 
single-use automobile trips (See Chapter 6). 
Consistent with BART Transit-Oriented Design 
Guidelines and the City’s Climate Action Plan, 
any future mixed-use development shall 
provide parking at ratio not to exceed 0.5 
spaces/residential unit and 1.6 spaces per 
1000 sqft of commercial space.  Because of the 
urban environment of the station, replacement 
parking for BART patrons can be provided at 
a ratio of 0.5 spaces/per existing space or less 
while access improvements are incorporated 
to offset the loss of parking and ride spaces 
and offer viable non-auto alternatives to BART 
patrons.  


OBJECTIVE 7. PROCESS AND ENGAGEMENT. 
Because of the importance of the BART site both 
to the success of the proposed housing strategy 
and to the overall character of the neighborhood, 
any development process should include a 


WHAT ARE “AIR RIGHTS?”
Ownership of land can be divided into rights on 
the surface, subsurface (i.e. mining or mineral 
rights) and air rights.  The City of Berkeley 
acquired air rights over both parking lots at 
Ashby BART Station back in 1966 after the voters 
approved undergrounding the BART lines. In 
1999, the City executed a contract with the Ed 
Roberts Campus to assign the City’s option 
to the air rights over the eastern Ashby BART 
parking lot (the current Ed Roberts Campus 
site and the remainder parking lot behind it), 
to facilitate development of the Ed Roberts 
Campus. An agreement between the City and 
the Ed Roberts Campus in 2008 confirmed that 
the City assigned the air rights over the eastern 
BART parking lot to the Ed Roberts Campus, but 
the City still retained the option over the western 
BART parking lot.  The air rights generally refer 
to the space starting 10 feet above the average 
finished grade location. 







3-25CITY OF BERKELEY


CHAPTER 3:  LAND USE


PUBLIC REVIEW DRAFT MAY 2019


deliberate and extensive community decision 
making process. The City will work with BART 
to complete a planning process which includes 
a Station Area Advisory Group or similar body 
comprised primarily of representatives of local 
stakeholder organizations. This stakeholder 
group should participate in decisions regarding 
the site requirements to be included in any 
Request for Proposals (RFP).  In addition, any RFP 
that is issued for development at the BART site 
will outline specific requirements that a selected 
developer continue to invest in proactive 
community engagement throughout the 
development process and to identify appropriate 
additional community benefits as part of the 
project design process. A development team’s 
proven track record of managing this kind of 
community engagement/community benefits 
process will be one criteria for selection. The 
local community should continue to be closely 
involved in development of these key public 
sites. Chapter 4 (Housing Affordability) includes 
additional information and considerations for 
future phasing, funding, programming, and 
affordable housing strategies for the Ashby 
BART area.







North Berkeley BART Development Goals and Objectives 
(Approved unanimously by the Berkeley City Council on May 9, 2019) 


State law (AB 2923, Chiu) passed in 2018 requires the San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit 
District (BART) to develop transit-oriented development (TOD) zoning standards for each BART 
station, establishing minimum local zoning requirements for height, density, parking, and floor 
area ratio by July 1, 2020. 


Prior to the enactment of AB 2923, the Berkeley City Council initiated a community process to 
explore the potential for transit-oriented development at the North Berkeley BART station. 
Creating homes at the North Berkeley BART parking lots will help the City of Berkeley address the 
shortage of affordable homes; reduce vehicle miles traveled and meet our climate change goals; 
and improve the livability of the surrounding neighborhood through the creation of green open 
space, pedestrian and bicycle infrastructure improvements; and possible small-scale community, 
non-profit, and/or retail uses. 


AB 2923 requires local jurisdictions like Berkeley to adopt a local zoning ordinance that conforms 
to BART TOD zoning standards. 


While the Berkeley City Council voted at its May 29, 2018 meeting to oppose AB 2923, the City 
Council recognizes that we now have an obligation to comply with the law. The Council is seeking 
to comply as soon as possible with AB 2923 for the purposes of developing the North Berkeley 
BART station in order to ensure that the community has a meaningful opportunity to engage with 
BART on how the site is developed.  


At the same time, the Berkeley City Council acknowledges the unique neighborhood 
characteristics of each BART station and expresses its intent to incorporate a station-specific 
design that is sensitive to the existing single-family (R-1) and two-family (R-2) residential zoning 
directly adjacent to the North Berkeley BART station. 


The City of Berkeley seeks to enter into a Memorandum of Understanding with BART that 
enumerates, among other terms, the following goals and objectives for development: 


Community Input  
A Community Advisory Committee shall be created for the purposes of providing input to the 
City’s Planning Commission as it considers City and BART TOD zoning standards. 


The planning process will engage the community in order to ensure that the site reflects the 
community’s values for equity, sustainability, and sense of place. In particular, community input 
should be considered for:  


 The number/percentage of affordable housing units and populations to be served,
including the possibility of a 100% affordable project


Exhibit 2







 The size, height, scale, spacing, and setbacks of buildings, and their responsiveness to the
neighborhood


 The inclusion of green and open spaces


 The possibility of limited, small-scale community, non-profit, and retail space to serve the
immediate neighborhood


 Exploration of whether it’s appropriate to include small-scale community, non-profit,
and/or retail space to serve the immediate neighborhood, whether any parking should be
provided for such uses, and consideration of the tradeoff of foregone housing units


 Access options, including traditional modes such as public transit, taxis and private
vehicles, active modes such as biking, walking and scooters, emerging modes such as car
share, ride share, driverless cars, etc., and access for the disabled and mobility impaired


 Green and sustainable features


Station Access 
BART, the City of Berkeley, and a future developer(s) will address station access. Specifically, 
Section 29010.6(h) of AB 2923 requires BART—in cases in which commuter parking is reduced as 
a result of a TOD project—to develop and fund an access plan that maintains station access for 
at least the number of customers affected by the reduced number of commuter parking spaces, 
with specific consideration for customers who live further than one-half mile from the station. A 
station access plan for implementation will seek to explore feasible and effective alternatives to 
individuals driving to and parking at the station, such as reserved parking spaces for carpools and 
car-share vehicles, ride-share, enhanced bus/shuttle service, additional electric-assist bikes and 
scooters, among other alternatives. We will also consider limiting or eliminating parking for 
residential and/or potential community, non-profit, or retail uses in order to maximize parking 
availability for commuters. We note that the station access plan should take into account the 
rapid evolution of mobility trends and technologies and consider the adaptability of the plan to 
future mobility patterns. Further, we intend to conduct a traffic study to help determine the 
number of parking spaces that are needed at the site, including reserved spaces for people with 
disabilities. 


In light of Berkeley’s long tradition of leadership on issues related to the disabled and mobility 
impaired, access at the North Berkeley BART station should be first in its class, including 
consideration for access to and from the station itself, within the station, and to and from the 
BART platform.  


All traditional modes should be considered: public transit, taxis, carpools and cars; all active 
modes including walking, biking and scooters; all emerging modes including car share, ride share, 
van pools and driverless vehicles; and all modes of accessibility for the disabled. 


Affordability 
Maximize the number of affordable below-market-rate units that are available to low-income 
households of diverse types and sizes, including affordable live/work units for artists. We seek 
to exceed BART’s 35% system-wide affordability goal by aiming for a high number of affordable 







units—to potentially be funded by local, state, and regional funding sources. In order to ensure 
housing for a range of income levels, we will consider inclusionary below-market-rate units and 
engagement of an affordable housing developer to develop a fully affordable building. 


We will seek to support the creation of local jobs through a project labor agreement for 
construction of the development. 


We will engage in a community dialogue that is positive, productive, and thoughtful in regards to 
community benefits and financial feasibility. 


Livability 
Enhance the livability of the neighborhood surrounding the North Berkeley BART station. The 
site should create a visual and physical connection with the neighborhood through its 
architectural design, height, and scale. In particular, we seek a development that considers the 
character and context of the neighborhood and steps down in height around the perimeter of 
the station (with consideration for the varying width of streets around the station) in order to 
blend in visually and physically with the residential neighborhood. Such a design honors a 
common theme of many of the designs submitted as part of the October 2018 visioning event. 
We also seek reasonable spacing between buildings, setbacks, and plantings at the perimeter of 
the station.    


The inclusion of green open space should serve as an amenity that enhances the neighborhood’s 
sense of place.  


The streetscape design should strive to minimize neighborhood traffic and congestion impacts 
and support safe access to the station for bicyclists and pedestrians. Transportation demand 
management and other best practices should be used to reduce traffic and parking impacts in 
the surrounding neighborhood.  


Environmental Sustainability 
Reflect the City’s commitment to reducing our carbon footprint in every possible way. All 
buildings should strive to: incorporate all-electric designs, achieve Zero Net Energy, and reduce 
parking for residents and retail to the maximum extent possible. 


To ensure universal access, regardless of age or ability, Universal Design should be considered 
for all elements of housing and of all other private and public spaces. 







Transit-Oriented Development Policy 
Adopted June 9, 2016 


Amended August 22, 2019 


Transit-Oriented Development Policy Amended August 22, 2019 


VISION 


The San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District (BART) is a steward of a large scale public investment. 
This includes real estate assets essential to BART’s transit operations, and real estate assets that can be 
used to catalyze transit-oriented development in furtherance of BART’s purpose and goals. BART 
leverages these opportunities by working in partnership with the communities it serves in order to 
implement the regional land use vision and achieve local and regional economic development goals. 
Strengthening the connections between people, places, and services enhances BART’s value as a regional 
resource.  


GOALS 


A. Complete Communities. Partner to ensure BART contributes to neighborhood/district vitality, creating
places offering a mix of uses and incomes.


B. Sustainable Communities Strategy.  Lead in the delivery of the region’s land use and transportation vision
to achieve quality of life, economic, and greenhouse gas reduction goals.


C. Ridership.  Increase BART ridership, particularly in locations and times when the system has capacity to
grow.


D. Value Creation and Value Capture. Enhance the stability of BART’s financial base by capturing the
value of transit, and reinvesting in the program to maximize TOD goals.


E. Transportation Choice. Leverage land use and urban design to encourage non-auto transportation choices
both on and off BART property, through enhanced walkability and bikeability, and seamless transit
connectivity.


F. Affordability. Serve households of all income levels by linking housing affordability with access to
opportunity.


STRATEGIES


A. Manage Resources Strategically to Support Transit-Oriented Development
1. Develop a 4-Year Work Plan to assess how staff and financial activities toward TOD will be most fruitful.


Identify BART staffing priorities and assignments to promote TOD on and around District property, including
contributions to efforts such as planning and development, community engagement, funding and financing
strategies.


2. Favor long-term ground leases of no more than 66 years, rather than sale of property, as the standard disposition
strategy for joint development projects, except in cases where alternative approaches are required to achieve
specific development objectives or where other strategies would generate greater financial return to the District.


3. Solicit proposals for transit-oriented development in localities that have an adopted plan allowing for transit-
supportive land uses as defined in the TOD Guidelines. Utilize a competitive selection process but ensure the
solicitation process considers property assembly with adjacent land owners for optimal TOD.


Exhibit 3







Transit-Oriented Development Policy 
Adopted June 9, 2016 


Amended August 22, 2019 


Transit-Oriented Development Policy Amended August 22, 2019 


4. Develop a procedure that will allow BART to respond to unsolicited proposals for property development on
BART-owned land. Although BART does not encourage unsolicited proposals, they can be a valuable means
for BART to partner with local communities and/or the development community to produce innovative or
unique developments that deliver benefits in excess of what is typically provided by the market.


5. Revisit the Transit-Oriented Development Policy every 10 years.


B. Support Transit-Oriented Districts
1. Proactively support local jurisdictions in creating station area plans and land use policies that: a) encourage


transit-supportive, mixed-use development on and around station properties, b) enhance the value of BART
land, and c) enhance the performance of the BART system as a whole.


2. Form partnerships with public agencies, developers and landowners, community development organizations,
finance entities, and consider strategic land acquisition to help build TOD both on and off BART property.


3. For BART system expansion, ensure that transit-oriented development and value capture opportunities are
explicitly accounted for in major investments such as the location of new station sites, design and construction
of station facilities, and acquisition of new properties.


C. Increase Sustainable Transportation Choices using Best Practices in Land Use and Urban Design
1. Utilize BART’s TOD Guidelines to ensure future development and investments seamlessly connect BART


stations with surrounding communities.


2. Ensure that combined TOD/parking/access improvements on and around each BART station encourage net new
BART ridership, utilizing corridor-level, shared, and off-site approaches to parking replacement as appropriate.
Following the aspirational Station Access Policy place types, use the following guidelines to replace current
BART parking as follows when developing BART property with TOD: strive for no or limited parking
replacement at “Urban with Parking” Stations; and use the access model to maximize revenue to BART from
development and ridership when determining a parking replacement strategy at all station types.


3. Utilize strategies including mixed-use development, transportation demand management, and pedestrian-
friendly urban design to encourage reverse-commute, off-peak, and non-work trips on BART and other modes
of non-auto transportation, thereby reducing greenhouse gas emissions.


D. Enhance Benefits of TOD through Investment in the Program
1. Evaluate the financial performance of proposed projects based on sound financial parameters and the ability to


generate transit ridership, fare revenue, lease payments, parking revenues, grant resources, other financial
participation, and/or cost savings.  Consider the opportunity cost to the District of delaying or accelerating
development opportunities.


2. Use a variety of financing and governance mechanisms, including joint powers authorities, assessment districts,
improvement districts, and lease credits to achieve station area TOD objectives.


3. As appropriate, and in consideration of District-wide financial needs, reinvest revenues from the sale and lease
of BART land into the TOD Program, informed by the priorities identified in the 4-Year Work Plan.







Transit-Oriented Development Policy 
Adopted June 9, 2016 


Amended August 22, 2019 


Transit-Oriented Development Policy Amended August 22, 2019 


E. Invest Equitably
1. Increase scale of development at and near BART stations through catalytic investments in TOD, to help address


the regional shortfall in meeting housing and other sustainable growth needs.


2. Implement BART’s adopted Affordable Housing Policy and aim for a District-wide target of 30 percent of all
units to be affordable, with a priority to very low (<50% AMI), low (51-80% AMI) and/or transit-dependent
populations.


3. Ensure the 4-Year Work Plan addresses how BART will achieve its affordable housing goals.







AFFORDABLE HOUSING POLICY 


It shall be the policy of the District that at each station where the District intends to pursue 
development that the cumulative development consist of a number of affordable housing units 
amounting to no less than 20 percent of the total proposed housing units on the property.  This 
goal is for the total aggregate number of residential units on BART property at the station, 
regardless of the planned phasing of the project. 


Each Request for Qualifications (RFQ) or Request for Proposals (RFP) issued by the District 
relating to proposed residential development projects at BART stations shall include the current 
percentage of affordable housing constructed at that station along with the cumulative 20 percent 
goal of affordable housing units per station. 


The percentage of affordable units and/or depth of unit affordability based on Area Median 
Income (AMI) categories in any residential developments at its stations shall be a part of the 
District’s assessment of RFQ/RFP responsiveness. There shall be a priority on residential units 
made available to very low (< 50% AMI) and low (51-80% AMI) income households. The 
General Manager or his/her designee will develop an approach to evaluating respondents' 
affordability housing proposals, that will consider a proposal’s quantity and depth of 
affordability, as well as the proposal’s validity and feasibility with respect to this policy. 


If a party responding to the RFQ or RFP determines that such a goal is not feasible, that party 
shall provide an impact analysis, which will be assessed by the District to determine if the goal 
cannot be attained.    


Upon selection of a Developer, the District commits to working with the Developer throughout 
the development’s negotiation process to achieve the pre-established affordable housing goal.   


As the negotiations of the proposed development proceed, the General Manager or his/her 
designee will provide periodic updates to the Board regarding the financial details of each 
component of the development, culminating in a term sheet for Board approval. 


BART also affirms its commitment to develop sustainable partnerships to achieve thriving 
Priority Development Areas (PDA) at or near BART stations with housing opportunities for 
residents of all income levels – particularly those populations most reliant on public transit – in 
order to reduce Greenhouse Gas Emissions (GHG), encourage use of public transit and active 
transportation, and decrease reliance on automobiles. 


On a project-by-project basis, the General Manager or his/her designee may request from the 
Board an exception to this Policy if staff determines it is infeasible for a specific project.   


This policy shall be prospective, and shall not be applicable to past or present development 
projects for which exclusive negotiating agreements, option agreements for ground leases, or 
ground leases have already been executed between BART and developers. 


Adopted: January 28, 2016 


Exhibit 4







1 


BART STATION ACCESS POLICY 


Adopted June 9, 2016 


VISION 


For more than 40 years, the San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District (BART) has been a 
steward of major public investment to connect people and places.  The BART Station Access Policy 
is designed to support the broader livability goals of the Bay Area, reinforce sustainable 
communities, and enable riders to get to and from stations safely, comfortably, affordably, and 
cost-effectively.  


GOALS 


A. Safer, Healthier, Greener.  Advance the region’s safety, public health, and greenhouse
gas (GHG) and pollution-reduction goals.


1. Ensure safe access for all users of the BART system, including users with disabilities.


2. Promote and invest in active transportation access modes to improve public health.


3. Prioritize the most sustainable access modes, with a focus on the lowest greenhouse gas
and pollutant emissions per trip.


4. Reduce the access mode share of the automobile by enhancing multi-modal access to and
from BART stations in partnership with communities and access providers.


5. Develop station-level designs that are consistent with the Station Design Access
Hierarchy (Figure 1).


B. More Riders. Invest in station access to connect more riders cost-effectively, especially
where and when BART has available capacity.


1. As ridership grows, invest in and manage access resources so as not to exacerbate peak
period – peak direction crowding, including by ensuring users can find parking spaces at
all times of day.


2. Develop access solutions that promote reverse-peak and off-peak ridership to optimize
use of the BART system.


C. More Productive and Efficient. Manage access investments, programs, and current
assets to achieve goals at the least cost.


1. Consider life-cycle costs, including capital and operating budget implications, using best
asset management practices.


2. Factor land value in decision-making, prioritizing access that generates the most riders
with the least space.


3. Consider the Station Access Investment Framework (Figure 2) in identifying contextual
access investments at each station, and seek to move stations from their existing to their
aspirational types.


D. Better Experience. Be a better neighbor, and strive for an excellent customer experience,
including on the first and last mile of the trip to and from BART stations.


1. Expand station access choices for all riders.


Exhibit 5







BART STATION ACCESS POLICY  
 


2 


2. Promote Transit-Oriented Development (TOD) on and off of BART property as a 
powerful access tool, putting more riders within walking distance of stations, connecting 
communities. 


3. Collaborate with local jurisdictions to improve station access and create more 
sustainable communities, including by promoting access improvements off BART 
property. 


4. Ensure high quality design for access improvements, with careful consideration of the 
local context and the quality of the environment accessing BART.  


E. Equitable Services. Invest in access choices for all riders, particularly those with the 
fewest choices. 


1. Ensure that disadvantaged communities share in the benefits of BART accessibility.  


2. Strive to be a partner to reduce the cost of living (i.e., transportation and housing) in the 
Bay Area for low-income communities by increasing access and housing options (i.e. 
TOD), providing greater access to opportunity. 


3. Use Universal Design principles to improve safety and ensure access is available for 
everyone at all times. 


F. Innovation and Partnerships. Be an innovation leader, and establish durable 
partnerships with municipalities, access providers, and technology companies. 


1. Involve BART riders in station access decision-making. 


2. Develop partnerships with municipalities, transit operators, developers, technology 
providers, corporate shuttle providers, Transportation Network Companies, bike share 
operators, advocacy groups and other entities to best meet access goals. 


3. Continue to research and pilot emerging technologies and new forms of access services 
to keep up with the rapidly-changing transportation ecosystem. 


4. Remain technology- and operator-agnostic; make long-term investments in the access 
technologies and services that best meet the needs of BART riders. 


5. Prioritize projects that leverage other fund sources and local matches both to further 
build partnerships and to capture more value from BART investments.  


 


STRATEGIES 


Plan, Innovate and Partner 


1. Plan for systemwide access mode shift to reduce drive alone rates. 


2. Partner with interested stakeholders to improve access to the BART system. 


3. Plan all BART facilities to be accessible to all users, including users with disabilities. 


Invest and Implement 


1. Invest in the pedestrian and bicycle assets with a focus on BART property, and partner to 
advance projects off BART property, including partnering on local initiatives, such as 
Vision Zero, Safe Routes to School, and Safe Routes to Transit. 







BART STATION ACCESS POLICY  
 


3 


2. Invest in transit connections, including investments that improve passenger experience 
in transit transfers (shelters, real-time information); seek to reduce barriers to transit 
connections; and partner with local transit service providers on last mile improvements.  


3. Prioritize station access investments that support ridership growth where and when the 


system has capacity. 


4. Improve management of existing parking resources, and invest in or partner on strategic 
parking resources; including shared parking, on-street parking, programs to maximize 
existing parking assets, and locating new parking resources only where other approaches 
are not sufficient, consistent with the station typology investment matrix. 


 Manage and Assess 


1. Manage resources we have. 


2. Regularly collect and analyze station access data, and consider emerging data sources. 


3. Develop a 4-year work plan to identify projects BART staff will advance in the near-term.  


4. Revisit the Station Access Policy every ten years.  


 


FIGURE 1: STATION ACCESS DESIGN HIERARCHY  


 
*All Stations must be paratransit accessible 
Note: All stations must always remain readily accessible to and usable by persons with disabilities 







BART STATION ACCESS POLICY  


 


4 


FIGURE 2: STATION ACCESS INVESTMENT FRAMEWORK  


 


Primary Investment:   
BART will prioritize investments of 
funds and staff time on and off of 
BART property, consistent with 
access goals; priority projects best 
achieve policy goals, focus on 
safety and sustainability.  
 
Secondary Investment:  
BART will invest funds and staff 
time on and off of BART property, 
consistent with policy goals; 
secondary investments balance 
policy goals.  
 
Accommodated:  
BART will maintain and manage 
existing assets, and partner with 
other access providers as needed. 
 
Not Encouraged:   
BART will not invest in 
construction of parking expansion. 


 


Note: TNC is for Transportation 
Network Company (shared use 
mobility) 


*Parking Management is a secondary investment at all stations with parking.  
*Parking replacement for transit-oriented development to be determined by BART’s Transit-Oriented Development Policy.    


 Note: TNC is for Transportation Network Company (shared use mobility) 





		Approval of a Memorandum of Understanding between the City of Berkeley and BART on Implementation of State Law AB 2923 at the Ashby and North Berkeley BART Stations and Establishment of a Commun

		Memorandum of Understanding by and between the San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District and the City of Berkeley

		Memorandum of Understanding by and between the San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District and the City of Berkeley

		Exhibit 1 - Policy 3.7 of the Draft Adeline Corridor Specific Plan

		Exhibit 2 - North Berkeley BART Development Goals and Objectives

		Exhibit 3 - BART TOD Policy

		Exhibit 4 - BART Affordable Housing Policy

		Exhibit 5 - BART Station Access Policy












Berkeley MOU for Transit-
Oriented Development


BART Board of Directors
January 9, 2020


Photo: Yalonda M. James/San Francisco Chronicle Photo: Natalie Orenstein/Berkeleyside







El Cerrito – Berkeley Corridor


• Many customers currently use a 
combination of the stations along 
the Richmond corridor 


• Future development at 3 
consecutive stations within close 
proximity has significant potential 
to transform the corridor, helping  
BART meet its policy goals 


• Need to plan for growth to ensure 
access to BART stations 


• Staff has applied for $3M in 
grants to support planning for 
and financing comprehensive 
access infrastructure and 
transportation demand 
management (TDM) alternatives, 
as well as affordable housing 


2







Presentation Overview


• Station Property and 
Access Overview


• MOU History


• MOU Terms


• Next Steps


• Motion


BART Board of Directors – January 9, 2020


Contra Costa Centre, Pleasant Hill BART


3







Station Profile: Ashby


• Station Typology:  “Urban 
Neighborhood/City Center” and “Urban w/ 
Parking”


• Riders: Approximately 5,000 weekday exits 


• Station area: 6.3 acres total  


• Current zoning: South Area Commercial 
(west) and Multiple Family Residential (east)


• Air Rights: The City retains an option to the 
air rights above 10’ at west parcel but not 
east parcel (behind Ed Roberts)


• Draft Adeline Corridor Specific Plan/EIR:  


• Multi-year planning with extensive 
community engagement 


• Clears 1,450 units corridor-wide with 
59% (850) of the units located at 
Ashby 


• Target of at least 50% income-
restricted affordable units. 


BART Board of Directors – January 9, 2020 4







Mobility patterns: Ashby  


• Station Access (home based entries): 


• 71% walk or bike to station


• Driving and parking has 
decreased by 28% since 2008 


• 10% are dropped off. Up 100% 
from 2008 


• Median distance traveled: 


• Park & Ride: 1.01 mile


• Walk: 0.42 miles 


• All modes: 0.60  miles 


• Car parking: 603 spaces


• Bike parking: 


• Bike Station for 130 bikes 


• 40 bike link lockers


• 25 key lockers 


• 150 racks


BART Board of Directors – January 9, 2020 5


57%


12%


1%
5%


25%


59%


11%


2%


10%


18%


Walk Bike Transit Drop Off Drive/Park


2008 2015







• Station Typology:  “Urban 
Neighborhood/City Center” and “Urban 
w/ Parking”


• Riders: Approximately 4,300 weekday 
exits 


• Station area: 8.1 acres total: ~4 acres over 
tracks + 1.2 acres in auxiliary lots


• Current Zoning: Site is not currently zoned 
(“Unclassified”)


• Community outreach: 


• Multiple city-led community 
outreach events in the last 2 years 


• BART participation in several


• Access Improvements: RR-funded bicycle 
and pedestrian access improvements 
planned w/City of Berkeley


Station Profile: North Berkeley


BART Board of Directors – January 9, 2020 6







43%


8%


1%


6%


41%
45%


12%


1%


16%


25%


Walk Bike Transit Drop Off Drive/Park


2008 2015


Station Profile: North Berkeley 


• Station Access (home based entries): 


• 51% walk or bike to station 


• Biking has increased 50% since 
2008


• Driving and parking decreased 
from by 39% since 2008


• 16% are dropped off. Up 260% 
from 2008 


• Median distance traveled: 


• Park & Ride: 1.37 miles 


• Walk: 0.51 miles 


• All modes: 0.72  miles 


• Car parking: 753 spaces


• Bike parking: 


• 95 bike link lockers


• 230 racks


BART Board of Directors – January 9, 2020 7







History of BART-Berkeley MOU


May 2018: Town Hall on Development of North Berkeley BART


October 2018: Design Workshop for North Berkeley BART


January 2019: City Council Meeting


March 2019: Town Hall on Development of Ashby BART


May 2019: Draft Adeline Corridor Plan & DEIR Released


May 2019: City Council Meeting


December 2019: City Council Meeting


BART Board of Directors – January 9, 2020 8
8







Memorandum of Understanding –
Scope &Process for City and BART  


Scope: 


• Ashby BART parcels 


• North Berkeley main parking lot


• Consideration of modifications or enhancements to North Berkeley 
auxiliary BART lots, city streets and other surroundings to support 
TOD


Process: 


• Identify a shared vision and priorities for development


• Set forth the steps needed to pursue the vision and priorities


• Clarify the processes to address development activities & timelines


• Provide clarity on the steps, timelines and roles responsibilities 
needed to initiate development of TOD on BART properties


BART Board of Directors – January 9, 2020 9







BART Board Workshop 2018 10


Terms of Memorandum of 
Understanding - Highlights


February 8 - 9, 2018


Activity Lead Party Milestone Dates
1. Community Advisory Process and


other community engagement 


activities


City December 2019: City Council voted to 


establish)


January 2020: Applications due
2. Zoning for Ashby and North


Berkeley BART Stations


City June 2021 to complete 


3. BART AB 2923 Guidance


Document


BART February 2020: Draft guidance


July 2020: Final guidance 


4. City Affordable Housing


Funding


City December 2020: Decision on set-aside for 


affordable housing (pending further 


definition of zoning and site capacity)
5. Developer Solicitation BART Decision on timeline to initiate solicitation of


a developer (as part of BART’s 10-Year TOD 
Work Plan)


6. Station Access Studies BART Timeline dependent upon Developer 


solicitation for each station







What we have heard from the 
community


1. Affordable Housing: 35% goal set out in the MOU differs from 
city plans some of the Council Members and Community 
feedback 


2. Station Access: While 75% of those who use North Berkeley 
and 82% of those who use Ashby do not drive, customers who 
currently drive and park at the stations face real barriers, 
including childcare and school drop off and pickups, 
topography, road safety, and in particular, ensuring full 
accessibility for customers with different physical abilities.


3. “Right to Stay, Right to Return”: Residents of the Ashby BART 
neighborhood, as well as Flea Market vendors and other 
stakeholders, expressed concern about displacement of 
residents and businesses


4. Urban Design: High-quality design with great public space is a 
top priority for both sites. 


BART Board of Directors – January 9, 2020 11







Memorandum of Understanding –
Next Steps


The City and BART to meet in December 2020 to:


• Determine whether the City has approved a set-aside of 
sufficient funding to meet the 35% affordable housing 
minimum 


• Negotiate possible additional City participation in the 
solicitation processes


• Agree  upon  the  timing of the developer solicitations for 
the BART Properties in December 2020.


The City and BART are actively working to identify additional 
resources to accelerate the work outlined in the MOU


BART Board of Directors – January 9, 2020 12







Proposed Board Motion


The General Manager or his designee is hereby 
authorized to execute the Memorandum of 
Understanding with the City of Berkeley to 
cooperatively pursue TOD and the implementation 
of Assembly Bill 2923 at the Ashby and North 
Berkeley BART Stations. 


BART Board of Directors – January 9, 2020 13








El Cerrito Plaza Transit-
Oriented Development


Flickr: Zach Franzen


BART Board of Directors
January 9, 2020



https://creativecommons.org/licenses/by/2.0/





El Cerrito – Berkeley Corridor


• Many customers currently use a 
combination of the stations along 
the Richmond corridor 


• Future development at 3 
consecutive stations within close 
proximity has significant potential 
to transform the corridor, helping  
BART meet its policy goals 


• Need to plan for growth to ensure 
access to BART stations 


• Staff has applied for $3M in 
grants to support planning for 
and financing comprehensive 
access infrastructure and 
transportation demand 
management (TDM) alternatives, 
as well as affordable housing 


2







Presentation Overview


• El Cerrito Plaza – TOD 
Background


• Work to Date to Prepare 
for TOD


• Draft Goals & Objectives
• Summary of Feedback 


Received
• Process to date and next 


steps


BART Board of Directors – January 9, 2020


Contra Costa Centre, Pleasant Hill BART


3







El Cerrito Plaza TOD - History


• 1992 – BART issues first RFP for 
development 


• 2006 – BART Board approves 
ENA with Fairfield residential


• 2008 – Recession causes 
developer to pull out of ENA


• 2014 – El Cerrito adopts San 
Pablo Ave Specific Plan


• 2016 – Council requests BART 
advance TOD at El Cerrito Plaza


• 2016 – BART Board authorizes 
MOU


4BART Board  - January 9, 2020
Source: FF Development LP, Architects Orange 


Original 2007 
Development 
Concept







5


Graphics Courtesy of City of El Cerrito, Group 4


El Cerrito Plaza – TOD Background
San Pablo Avenue Specific Plan


Site A B&C D


Acreage 1.57 4.4 1.59


Land Use 
Designation


Transit-
Oriented 


Mixed Use


Transit-
Oriented
Higher-
Intensity
Mixed Use


Transit-
Oriented
Higher-
Intensity
Mixed 
Use


Use


205 Parking, 
Bike Lockers, 


Ohlone 
greenway


484 parking 
spaces


59 
parking 
spaces


Zo
ni


ng
Density 35-45 du/ac NA* NA*


Height 65’ 85’ 85’


Meets
AB 2923 No Yes** Yes**


*Form based code – does not limit density
**Minor modifications neededBART Board  - January 9, 2020







Access Type: Balanced Intermodal
Urban w/Parking (Aspirational)
190 Bike parking spaces 
749 BART patron parking spaces
Median distance traveled: 


• Park & Ride: 1.41 miles 
• Walk: 0.52 miles 
• All modes: 0.88 miles 


6


Home location of riders by mode
Station Profile Survey, 2015


El Cerrito Plaza –
Station Access Overview







7


El Cerrito Plaza –
Station Access Overview


• More people travel to El Cerrito Plaza BART by 
walking than any other mode (38%). 


• Driving & parking to the station has gone down 
by 20% (42% in 2008 to 34% in 2015).


• 27% of people coming to BART drive alone, many 
from within a 1-mile radius


• 11% of those who drive alone park on the streets


Walk
38%


Bike
5%Transit


4%


DropOff
19%


Drive/Park
34%


2015 Station Access Survey


There are approximately 700 spaces available 
during the mid-day weekday period on the 
residential streets immediately surrounding 
Plaza BART (1/4 mile)


Source: 2019 El Cerrito On-Street Parking Study, Nelson Nygaard







Tradeoffs between parking, housing and 
other community benefits


Every dollar spent on building structured parking means 
less money for:


• Affordable Housing 


• Residential Density (important for activation/retail) 


• Community-serving uses (childcare, etc.) 


• Open Space and landscaping/urban design elements 


• Transportation Infrastructure Improvements 


• Other Community Benefits 


8


It costs $60K-$80K PER SPACE 
to build a parking garage. 







Station Access Improvements 


• Increase the share of patrons who walk, bike, or take transit to BART
• Minimize the need for onsite BART patron parking replacement
• Expand the pedestrian and bicycle network 
• Embrace the rapid evolution of mobility trends and technologies


9







BART’s TOD Preparation Process: 
What’s happened so far


10


• El Cerrito Plaza Station Access Survey 
(January-February 2019) 


• El Cerrito City Council meeting (February 
2019)


• San Pablo Avenue Specific Plan workshops 
(July 2019)


• El Cerrito Plaza Station Open House 
(August 2019)


• Community Open House (October 2019)


• El Cerrito City Council meeting 
(November 2019)







BART’s TOD Preparation Process: 
City Activities


11


• 2016 City Council action requesting 
BART to advance TOD & MOU 


• Library Feasibility Study (2018-2019)


• On-Street Parking studies (2019)


• San Pablo Ave. Specific Plan & EIR 
Amendment (est. completion 2020)


• Nov 19, 2019: City Council adopted 
resolution supporting the RFQ’s 
inclusion of Sustainable Access Studies 
and Strategies and the inclusion of a 
library as option







Findings – El Cerrito Library Study 


BART Board  - January 9, 2020 12


Library on parcel B&C, ground 
floor of mixed-use building


Library on parcel D, 
standalone


Library on parcel A, 
standalone


• Library could be accommodated in a number of ways
• 21,000 square feet, 63 dedicated parking spaces
• 3 other sites being considered
• City will need to determine funding for construction & operation







TOD Goals & Objectives - Purpose


13BART Board  - January 9, 2020


Goals and Objectives 
synthesize site 
priorities from: 


- Adopted local plans
- BART policies
- Community feedback
- City feedback
- Board feedback


Goals & 
Objectives


Developer 
Selection


Concept 
Design


Station 
Access PlanGrants


Term 
Sheet







Draft Goals & Objectives
Highlights: Complete Communities & Value Capture


A2. Enhance Ohlone greenway’s 
role in increasing connectivity, 
placemaking
A4. Active ground floor on Fairmont 
Ave.
A5. Manage parking at and around 
station to ensure neighborhood and 
business needs are met
A6. Explore options for integrating 
public library, in partnership with 
City
D2. Participate in district-wide 
financing efforts, possibly including 
parking benefit district


14BART Board  - January 9, 2020


Community Members Provided Feedback 
at October 3 Community Event







Draft Goals & Objectives 
Highlights: Transportation Choice


E1. Increase share of patrons who 
walk, bike, or take transit to work 
through improvements including 
accessible demand responsive 
services
E2. Minimize need for BART patron 
parking replacement by making use of 
existing available parking capacity in 
close proximity to the station and 
offering other access options for 
patrons
E4. Enable new residents of the 
development to reduce auto reliance
E6. Embrace rapid evolution of 
mobility trends and technologies


15BART Board  - January 9, 2020


El Cerrito City Council discussed 
Goals & Objectives at Nov 19 meeting







El Cerrito TOD Next Steps


16


1. Pre-
Solicitation


2. 
Solicitation/ 


Selection


3. Project 
Refinement 
& Developer 
Agreement


4. Permitting 
& 


Construction


We Are Here Spring/Summer 
2020


Begin Summer/Fall 
2020


(May take 2-5 years, 
depends on 


market/financial 
conditions)



Presenter

Presentation Notes







		Slide Number 1

		El Cerrito – Berkeley Corridor

		Presentation Overview

		El Cerrito Plaza TOD - History

		Slide Number 5

		Slide Number 6

		Slide Number 7

		Tradeoffs between parking, housing and other community benefits

		Station Access Improvements 

		BART’s TOD Preparation Process: �What’s happened so far

		BART’s TOD Preparation Process: �City Activities

		Findings – El Cerrito Library Study 

		TOD Goals & Objectives - Purpose

		Draft Goals & Objectives�Highlights: Complete Communities & Value Capture

		Draft Goals & Objectives �Highlights: Transportation Choice

		El Cerrito TOD Next Steps






Silicon Valley BART Extension: 


Phase 1 Update


Board of Directors Presentation


January 9, 2020







2


Current Status


• BART continues to maintain jurisdiction


• BART suspended Testing & Pre-Revenue Operations as of 11/25/2019                               


• BART & VTA jointly creating schedule to achieve Revenue Service Date


• BART continues to provide support, when requested, by shadowing 
discrepancy resolution efforts for VTA’s remaining work & testing


• VTA progressing with their work using over a dozen crews on site 


• VTA anticipates completing their remaining work & testing Jan/Feb 2020


• BART anticipates resuming testing operations, pending:
• VTA completion of remaining work and testing
• VTA resolution of discrepancies that impact safe Revenue service
• VTA removal of restrictions that impact BART testing and Revenue service







3


Next Steps


1. Continue collaboration between both agencies


2. VTA to complete remaining work and testing – Jan/Feb 2020


3. VTA to resolve Revenue-impacting discrepancies – Jan/Feb 2020


4. VTA will remove restrictions for BART testing – Jan/Feb 2020


5. BART to resume Testing – scheduled to start Feb/Mar 2020 
(pending items 2-4 above)


6. VTA to resolve any new discrepancies, if identified - TBD


7. BART resumes Pre-Revenue Testing & Operations – TBD 
(pending items 2-6 above)







QUESTIONS?


4







